
Professionally Managed by:  
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W. Eisenhower, Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: 970-669-3611 | FAX: 970-669-3612 

District Email: info@horizonmd.live 
District Website: www.horizonmds.org 

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1 & 3-10 
NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING AND AGENDA 

Board of Directors Office Term Expiration 
David Crowder, Jr.  President & Chairperson May 2027 
Karen Voit Vice President May 2025 
Jason Rutt Secretary  May 2025 
Lisa Garcia  Treasurer  May 2025 
Vacant Asst. Secretary  May 2027 

Date:  July 10, 2024 (Wednesday) 
Time: 9:00 A.M. 
Place: MS Teams & Teleconference 

Join the meeting now  
Meeting ID: 291 572 810 386; Passcode: gAuP5n  
Dial-in by phone  
+1 720-721-3140,,517965477#; Phone conference ID: 517 965 477#

I. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
A. Declaration of Quorum/Call to Order.
B. Director Disclosure of any Potential Conflicts of Interest.
C. Approval of Agenda.  (Pages 1 – 2)
D. Public Comment for Non-Agenda Items. (Limited to 3-Minutes Per Person)
E. Director Comment.

II. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Minutes – April 3, 2024, Regular Meeting.  (Pages 3 – 8)
B. Contract Modifications Report.  (Pages 9 - 10)
C. Ratification of Payment of Claims.  (Pages 11 – 18)

III. DISTRICT MANAGER ITEMS
A. District Manager’s Report.  (Pages 19 – 22)
B. Status Review of Landscape Maintenance Contractor.  (Pages 23 – 28)
C. Recommendation based upon Status Review.
D. Community Management Report.

i. Community Enforcement Activities.  (Pages 29 – 38)
E. Consider Approval of Revised Fee Schedule Form.  (Page 39)
F. CoHere Newsletter Schedule.
G. Park-A-Palooza Event Update - August 10th.

1

Draft

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NDI2MDkyZTUtODMxNy00MzI5LWI5NzMtN2VmZjYzMDc5YmJh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2295d90e40-ea92-4b9b-bab0-f6f9c6fe1c1d%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2284dce002-0dc2-473e-a6ab-17aa03af6a63%22%7d
tel:+17207213140,,517965477


Professionally Managed by:  
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

550 W. Eisenhower, Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: 970-669-3611 | FAX: 970-669-3612 

District Email: info@horizonmd.live 
District Website: www.horizonmds.org 

IV. CAPITAL INFRASTRUCTURE ITEMS
A. Resolution Accepting Capital Costs Improvements #5.

(To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)
B. Resolution Accepting Capital Costs Improvements #6.

(To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)
C. Resolution Accepting Capital Costs Improvements #7.

(To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)
D. Resolution Accepting Capital Costs Improvements #8.

(To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)

V. FINANCIAL ITEMS
A. Finance Manager’s Report.
B. Review Unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending March 31st, 2024.

(Pages 40 – 80)
C. Review and Consider Approval of 2023 Audited Financial Statements for District 

No. 1 and District No. 3.  (To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)
D. Ratification of 2023 Audit Exemptions for District Nos. 4-10.  (Pages 81 – 157)
E. Public Hearing regarding the Proposed Amended 2023 Budgets.
F. Consider Adoption of Amended 2023 Budgets; Consideration and Approval of 

Resolution to Amend Budgets; and Appropriate Sums of Money.
G. 2025 Budget Planning Update.

VI. LEGAL ITEMS
A. Consideration and Approval of Disclosures to Purchasers for District Nos. 1 – 10.

(To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)
B. Consideration and Approval of Project Management Services Agreement with 

Horizon Uptown (Denver) SPV, LLC.
(To Be Distributed Under Separate Cover)

VII. DIRECTOR COMMENT

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION – If necessary, pursuant to pursuant to § 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S. 
for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions.

IX. ADJOURNMENT

***The next Regular Meeting is scheduled for October 2, 2024*** 

2

Draft



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

   

1 

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1, 3-10 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 2024 04 03 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 3-10  

 

HELD 

April 3, 2024 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1, 3-10 was 

held via MS Teams and Teleconference on Wednesday, April 3, 2024, at 9:00 a.m. 

 

ATTENDANCE Directors in Attendance: 

David Crowder Jr., President & Chairperson 

Karen Voit, Vice President  

Jason Rutt, Secretary 

Lisa Garcia, Treasurer 

 

Also in Attendance:  

Alan Pogue and Deborah Early; Icenogle Seaver Pogue, P.C.   

Kenny Parish, Jenna Pettit, Wendy McFarland, Irene Buenavista, Christy 

McCutchen, and Daryl Fields; Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.  

Several Members of the Public. 

__________ 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

ITEMS 

Declaration of Quorum/Call to Order: Director Crowder Jr. noted that a 

quorum was present, with four out of four Directors in attendance. All 

Board Members confirmed their qualifications to serve on the Board. The 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors (collectively, the “Boards”) of 

the Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 3-10 (collectively, the 

“District”) was called to order by Director Crowder Jr. at 9:48 a.m.  

 

Combined Meeting: The Boards determined to hold joint meetings of the 

Districts and to prepare joint minutes of actions taken by the Districts at 

such meetings. Unless otherwise noted below, the matters set forth below 

shall be deemed to be the actions of the Board of Directors of Horizon 

Metropolitan District No. 1, with concurrence by the Boards of Directors 

of Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10.  

 

Director Qualifications/Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest: Mr. 

Pogue noted that notices of potential conflicts of interest for all Board 

Members were filed with the Colorado Secretary of State’s office and 

with the District’s Board.  Mr. Pogue advised the Boards that pursuant to 

Colorado law, certain disclosures by the Board Members might be 

required prior to taking official action at a meeting.  The Boards reviewed 

the agenda for the meeting, following which each Board Member present 

confirmed the contents of the written disclosures previously made stating 

3

Draft



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

   

2 

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1, 3-10 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 2024 04 03 

 

 

the fact and summary nature of any matters as required under Colorado 

law to permit official action to be taken at the meeting.  Additionally, the 

Boards determined that the participation of the members present was 

necessary to obtain a quorum or otherwise enable the Boards to act.   

 

Approval of Agenda: The Boards considered the approval of the agenda. 

Following review and discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director 

Rutt, seconded by Director Garcia, and upon vote, unanimously carried, 

it was  

 

RESOLVED to approve the agenda, as presented. 

 

Public Comment: There were no Public Comments received. 

 

Director Comment: There were no Director Comments received.  

__________ 

 

CONSENT AGENDA Mr. Parish reviewed the items on the consent agenda with the Boards. Mr. 

Parish advised the Boards that any item may be removed from the consent 

agenda to the regular agenda upon the request of any Director. No items 

were requested to be removed from the consent agenda. Upon a motion 

duly made by Director Garcia, Seconded by Director Rutt, the following 

items on the consent agenda were unanimously approved, ratified and 

adopted: 

 

A. Approval of Minutes – December 6, 2023, Special Meeting.  

B. Payment of Claims. 

C. Contract Modifications.  

D. District Website Accessibility Resolution.  

__________ 

 

FINANCIAL ITEMS 

 

Finance Manager’s Report: Ms. McFarland presented the Finance 

Manager’s Report to the Boards and answered questions. 

 

Financial Statements: Ms. McFarland reviewed the unaudited Financial 

Statements for the period ending December 31, 2023, with the Boards and 

answered questions. Following review and discussion, upon a motion 

duly made by Director Garcia, seconded by Director Rutt, and upon vote, 

unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to accept the unaudited Financial Statements for the 

period ending December 31, 2023, as presented.  

 

 

4

Draft



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

   

3 

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1, 3-10 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 2024 04 03 

 

 

2023 Audit Engagement Letter for District Nos. 1 & 3: Ms. McFarland 

presented the 2023 Audit Engagement Letter for District Nos. 1 & 3 to 

the Boards and answered questions. Following review and discussion, 

upon a motion duly made by Director Rutt, seconded by Director Garcia, 

and upon vote, unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to ratify the 2023 Audit Engagement Letter for  

District Nos. 1 & 3, as presented.  

 

2023 Audit Engagement Letter for District Nos. 4-10: Ms. McFarland 

presented the 2023 Audit Engagement Letter for District Nos. 4-10 to the 

Boards and answered questions. Following review and discussion, upon 

a motion duly made by Director Rutt, seconded by Director Garcia, and 

upon vote, unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to ratify the 2023 Audit Engagement Letter for  

District Nos. 4-10, as presented.  

 

Operations and Maintenance Costs pursuant to the 2022 Funding and 

Reimbursement Agreement. Schedio Group Report No. 4: Ms. 

McFarland discussed the Operations and Maintenance Costs pursuant to 

the 2022 Funding and Reimbursement Agreement, Schedio Group Report 

No. 4 with the Boards and answered questions.  

__________ 

 

LEGAL ITEMS 

 

Capital Costs and Improvements pursuant to the Facilities Acquisition 

and Reimbursement Agreement (District No. 1): Ms. Early presented the 

Capital Costs and Improvements pursuant to the Facilities Acquisition 

and Reimbursement Agreement (District No. 1) to the Boards and 

answered questions. Following review and discussion, upon a motion 

duly made by Director Garcia, seconded by Director Rutt, and upon vote, 

unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to approve the Capital Costs and Improvements 

pursuant to the Facilities Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement 

(District No. 1), as presented.  

 

District No. 5 Mill Levy Status: Mr. Pogue, Mr. Parish, and Director 

Crowder discussed the District No. 5 Mill Levy Status with the Boards 

and answered questions.  

__________ 

 

DISTRICT MANAGER 

ITEMS 

Community Garden Rules: Mr. Parish presented the Community Garden 

Rules to the Boards and answered questions. Following review and 

5

Draft



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

   

4 

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1, 3-10 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 2024 04 03 

 

 

discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director Crowder, seconded by 

Director Rutt, and upon vote, unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to approve Community Garden Rules, as 

presented.  

 

Engagement with Altitude Community Law for Collections Services: Mr. 

Parish recommended the Boards engage Altitude Community Law for 

Collections Services and answered questions.  

 

MSA with CoHere for 2024: Mr. Parish presented the MSA with CoHere 

for 2024 to the Boards and answered questions. Following review and 

discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director Voit, seconded by 

Director Garcia, and upon vote, unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to ratify the MSA with CoHere for 2024, as 

presented.  

 

Authorization of District Manager to Execute 2024 Work Orders with 

Approved Operations and Maintenance Service Contractors within the 

Approved 2024 Budget not to Exceed $25,000: Mr. Parish requested the 

Boards consider delegating authority to the District Manager to Execute 

2024 Work Orders with Approved Operations and Maintenance Service 

Contractors within the Approved 2024 Budget not to exceed $25,000. 

Following review and discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director 

Rutt, seconded by Director Voit, and upon vote, unanimously carried, it 

was  

 

RESOLVED to authorize the District Manager to Execute 2024 

Work Orders with Approved Operations and Maintenance Service 

Contractors within the Approved 2024 Budget, not to Exceed $25,000, as 

presented.  

 

Pet Waste Management Company: Mr. Fields recommended the District 

continue its engagement with the current Pet Waste Management 

Company, Brightview, and answered questions. Following review and 

discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director Crowder Jr., seconded 

by Director Rutt, and upon vote, unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to continue engagement with the District’s 

current Pet Waste Management Company, Brightview.  

 

Potential Closure of Dog Park: Director Crowder and Mr. Fields 

discussed the Potential Closure of the Dog Park with the Boards and 

answered questions. Mr. Navik inquired into Brightview’s parameters for 

6

Draft



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

   

5 

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1, 3-10 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 2024 04 03 

 

 

servicing animal fecal cleanup. Mr. Navik noted animal fecal matter can 

be found throughout the community. Mr. Fields suggested a community 

effort in coordination with Brightview to resolve this matter. Director 

Crowder requested pictures of the animal fecal matter be sent to District 

Management for inclusion in the Community Newsletter.  

 

Construction Contract for Alley-Way Repairs and Maintenance: Mr. 

Fields presented the Construction Contract for Alley-Way Repairs and 

Maintenance to the Boards and answered questions. Following review 

and discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director Rutt, seconded by 

Director Crowder Jr., and upon vote, unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to approve the Construction Contract with Denver 

Commercial Property Services for Alley-way Repairs and Maintenance 

in the amount of $27,624.00, as presented.  

 

Adoption of Transfer Fee in the amount of $250: Ms. McCutchen 

requested the Boards adopt a Transfer Fee in the amount of $250 and 

answered questions. Mr. Pogue requested “transfer” be removed from the 

naming convention. The new name for this fee is Administrative Set-Up 

Fee. Following further review and discussion, upon a motion duly made 

by Director Crowder Jr. seconded by Director Voit, and upon vote, 

unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to approve the Administrative Set-Up Fee in the 

amount of $150.  

 

Colorado Vista Landscape Design for ARC Reviews: Ms. McCutchen 

recommended the Boards engage Colorado Vista Landscape Design for 

ARC Reviews and answered questions. Ms. McCutchen suggested the 

District impose an ARC Review fee of $150 for first-time landscape 

plans. Following further review and discussion, upon a motion duly made 

by Director Crowder Jr. seconded by Director Garcia, and upon vote, 

unanimously carried, it was  

 

RESOLVED to engage Colorado Vista Landscape Design for 

ARC Reviews, as presented.  

 

District Manager Report: Mr. Parish and Ms. McCutchen presented the 

District Manager’s Report to the Boards and answered questions. 

 

Operations and Maintenance Report: Mr. Fields presented the Operations 

and Maintenance Report to the Boards and answered questions. Mr. 

Navik noted a path light in need of repairs as well as LED lights operating 

during daylight hours and flickering. Mr. Navik requested the lights be 

7

Draft



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

   

6 

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1, 3-10 
 Regular Meeting Minutes 2024 04 03 

 

 

part of Mr. Field’s inspections. Mr. Fields noted the Operations and 

Maintenance plan will include quarterly inspections of the lights and 

requested pictures of the faulty lights be sent to District Management for 

inclusion in the Community Letter. Mr. Navik requested delivery of 

physical copies of the Community Newsletter.  

__________ 

 

DIRECTOR  

ITEMS 

There were no Director Matters to come before the Boards. 

__________ 

 

OTHER  

MATTERS 

There were no Other Matters to come before the Boards.  

__________ 

 

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to come before the Boards, the meeting 

was adjourned at 11:23 a.m. 

__________ 

 

 The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes of the 

above-referenced meeting. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

  

Kenny Parrish, Recording Secretary for the Meeting 

 

8

Draft



Contract Modifications for Board Ratification

Horizon Metopolitan District

Horizon - OM  (Horizon - OM)

Contractor:

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.

Contract #:

Cnt-01393

Modification Amount:

$657.00

Modification Date:

4 /11/2024
Modification Description:
WO 2024-01

Modification Scope:
Dog Station Relocation & Ground Cover Fabric Repair Contractor Signed Date:

5 /2 /2024

District Signed Date:

5 /2 /2024

Payment Method:

Lump Sum

Contractor:

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.

Contract #:

Cnt-01393

Modification Amount:

$5,849.79

Modification Date:

4 /30/2024
Modification Description:
WO 2024-02
Modification Scope:
Storm Conveyance Cleanout

Contractor Signed Date:

5 /8 /2024

District Signed Date:

5 /2 /2024

Payment Method:

Lump Sum

Contractor:

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.

Contract #:

Cnt-01393

Modification Amount:

$1,186.62

Modification Date:

4 /30/2024
Modification Description:
WO 2024-03
Modification Scope:
Garden Center Maintenance Services

Contractor Signed Date:

5 /8 /2024

District Signed Date:

5 /2 /2024

Payment Method:

Lump Sum

Contractor:

BrightView Landscape Services, Inc.

Contract #:

Cnt-01393

Modification Amount:

$1,418.09

Modification Date:

4 /30/2024
Modification Description:
WO 2024-04
Modification Scope:
Garden Center Spring Soil Prep

Contractor Signed Date:

5 /8 /2024

District Signed Date:

5 /2 /2024

Payment Method:

N/A (Placeholder)

Contractor:

Game Set Match, Inc.

Contract #:

Cnt-01395

Modification Amount:

$3,000.00

Modification Date:

4 /15/2024
Modification Description:
WO 2024-01

Modification Scope:
Tennis Court Maintenance Services

Contractor Signed Date:

5 /1 /2024

District Signed Date:

4 /15/2024

Payment Method:

Time & Materials

Printed:  7/3/2024 9:43:32 AM  Contract Modifications by Date Range  7/1/2023  to  7/3/2024

GL Code:1-52901
Budget: $58,000.00

GL Code:1-52401
Budget: $15,000.00

GL Code:1-52101
Budget: $141,600.00

GL Code:1-52901
Budget: $58,000.00

GL Code:1-52911
Budget: $40,000.00

GL Code:1-52901
Budget: $58,000.00

9

Draft



Horizon Metopolitan District

Contractor:

Radiant Lighting Services, Inc.

Contract #:

Cnt-01394

Modification Amount:

$10,000.00

Modification Date:

4 /11/2024
Modification Description:
WO 2024-01
Modification Scope:
Electrical and Lighting Maintenance Services

Contractor Signed Date:

4 /24/2024

District Signed Date:

4 /24/2024

Payment Method:

Time & Materials

Contractor:

Schedio Group LLC

Contract #:

Cnt-01396

Modification Amount:

$5,000.00

Modification Date:

4 /17/2024
Modification Description:
WO 2024-01
Modification Scope:
Graffiti Removal and Power Washing Services

Contractor Signed Date:

4 /17/2024

District Signed Date:

4 /17/2024

Payment Method:

Time & Materials

Printed:  7/3/2024 9:43:32 AM  Contract Modifications by Date Range  7/1/2023  to  7/3/2024

GL Code:1-52911
Budget: $40,000.00

GL Code:1-52911
Budget: $40,000.00

10

Draft



 Horizon Metropolitan District No 1

 Check Detail
 March 28 through July 1, 2024

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 1 - 2024 02/20/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 765.71

TOTAL 765.71

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8784913 02/01/2024 1-52101 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping O&M 10,395.00

TOTAL 10,395.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 9 - 2024 02/22/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 3 - 2024 02/20/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 343.97

TOTAL 343.97

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 25747 01/31/2024 1-12005 ꞏ eUnify Prepaid Postage 834.51

1-51040 ꞏ District Management 3,487.50

1-51000 ꞏ Accounting 1,575.00

TOTAL 5,897.01

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 6 - 2024 02/22/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 4 - 2024 02/20/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Cohere 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8118 12/31/2023 1-51044 ꞏ Constituent Communication 2,050.00

TOTAL 2,050.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 5 - 2024 02/20/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 7 - 2024 02/22/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 Page 1 of 8

11

Draft



 Horizon Metropolitan District No 1

 Check Detail
 March 28 through July 1, 2024

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 10 - 2024 02/22/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Segments 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill JANUARY2024 01/31/2024 1-51043 ꞏ ARC Reviews 3,300.00

TOTAL 3,300.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 8 - 2024 02/22/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 225.00

TOTAL 225.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Special District Association of CO 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill SDA MD No 2 - 2024 02/20/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 411.69

TOTAL 411.69

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/02/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8784893 01/01/2024 1-52101 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping O&M 10,395.00

TOTAL 10,395.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/15/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8800720 02/22/2024 1-52201 ꞏ Snow Removal 3,622.00

TOTAL 3,622.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/15/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8789644 02/07/2024 1-52101 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping O&M 1,700.00

TOTAL 1,700.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/15/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 25891 02/29/2024 1-51044 ꞏ Constituent Communication 750.00

1-51042 ꞏ Covenant Enforcement 525.00

1-51041 ꞏ Property Transfer/Title 562.50

TOTAL 1,837.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/15/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 25889 02/29/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 256.98

1-51125 ꞏ Website Management 128.64

1-51040 ꞏ District Management 11,250.00

1-51046 ꞏ Fee Billing 37.50

1-51000 ꞏ Accounting 9,600.00

1-51045 ꞏ Facilities Management 2,137.50

TOTAL 23,410.62

 Page 2 of 8

12

Draft



 Horizon Metropolitan District No 1

 Check Detail
 March 28 through July 1, 2024

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/15/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 25890 02/29/2024 1-51046 ꞏ Fee Billing 75.00

TOTAL 75.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/15/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8811884 03/01/2024 1-52101 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping O&M 10,395.00

TOTAL 10,395.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/15/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8790311 02/08/2024 1-52201 ꞏ Snow Removal 2,667.00

TOTAL 2,667.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/15/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8797772 02/20/2024 1-52201 ꞏ Snow Removal 2,416.00

TOTAL 2,416.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/15/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8820612 02/28/2024 1-52101 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping O&M 1,700.00

TOTAL 1,700.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/24/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 26039 03/31/2024 1-51046 ꞏ Fee Billing 1,237.50

TOTAL 1,237.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/24/2024 Icenogle Seaver Pogue 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 25434 03/31/2024 1-51110 ꞏ Legal 3,557.00

TOTAL 3,557.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/24/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8860569 03/29/2024 1-52901 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping Upgrades 786.01

TOTAL 786.01

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/24/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8858192 03/28/2024 1-52901 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping Upgrades 1,225.01

TOTAL 1,225.01

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/24/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 26040 03/31/2024 1-51044 ꞏ Constituent Communication 1,087.50

1-51042 ꞏ Covenant Enforcement 300.00

1-51041 ꞏ Property Transfer/Title 787.50

TOTAL 2,175.00

 Page 3 of 8

13

Draft



 Horizon Metropolitan District No 1

 Check Detail
 March 28 through July 1, 2024

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/24/2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill L241143941 12/31/2023 1-51000 ꞏ Accounting 6,076.30

1-51040 ꞏ District Management 3,000.00

1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 453.82

TOTAL 9,530.12

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/24/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8868978 03/27/2024 1-52911 ꞏ Amenity Repair & Upgrade 349.35

TOTAL 349.35

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/24/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8837717 03/22/2024 1-52201 ꞏ Snow Removal 5,781.00

TOTAL 5,781.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/30/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 26095 03/31/2024 1-51045 ꞏ Facilities Management 1,800.00

1-51000 ꞏ Accounting 12,825.00

1-51040 ꞏ District Management 5,850.00

1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 323.05

TOTAL 20,798.05

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/30/2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill L241167388 01/31/2024 1-51000 ꞏ Accounting 4,306.55

1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 215.33

TOTAL 4,521.88

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 04/30/2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill L241039296 12/31/2023 1-51040 ꞏ District Management 4,718.00

1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 567.68

1-51046 ꞏ Fee Billing 3,663.50

1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 419.08

TOTAL 9,368.26

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Icenogle Seaver Pogue 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 25207 02/29/2024 1-51110 ꞏ Legal 3,899.00

TOTAL 3,899.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8887844 04/25/2024 1-52911 ꞏ Amenity Repair & Upgrade 559.02

TOTAL 559.02

 

 Page 4 of 8

14

Draft



 Horizon Metropolitan District No 1

 Check Detail
 March 28 through July 1, 2024

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 26196 04/30/2024 1-51043 ꞏ ARC Reviews 150.00

1-51044 ꞏ Constituent Communication 1,537.50

1-51042 ꞏ Covenant Enforcement 600.00

1-51041 ꞏ Property Transfer/Title 1,425.00

TOTAL 3,712.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Ideate Design 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 032.105.2402 02/21/2024 1-51043 ꞏ ARC Reviews 1,320.00

TOTAL 1,320.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Icenogle Seaver Pogue 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 25606 04/30/2024 1-51110 ꞏ Legal 8,354.00

TOTAL 8,354.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8848169 04/01/2024 1-52101 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping O&M 10,395.00

TOTAL 10,395.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8895519 04/29/2024 1-52901 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping Upgrades 527.39

TOTAL 527.39

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Ideate Design 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 032.106.2402 02/21/2024 1-51043 ꞏ ARC Reviews 1,200.00

TOTAL 1,200.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8895522 04/29/2024 1-52101 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping O&M 380.00

TOTAL 380.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 26195 04/30/2024 1-51046 ꞏ Fee Billing 675.00

TOTAL 675.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 26194 04/30/2024 1-51045 ꞏ Facilities Management 3,862.50

1-51000 ꞏ Accounting 9,187.50

1-51040 ꞏ District Management 6,787.50

1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 325.19

1-51125 ꞏ Website Management 276.00

TOTAL 20,438.69

 Page 5 of 8

15

Draft



 Horizon Metropolitan District No 1

 Check Detail
 March 28 through July 1, 2024

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8867827 04/10/2024 1-52901 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping Upgrades 1,851.24

TOTAL 1,851.24

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Icenogle Seaver Pogue 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 25033 01/31/2024 1-51110 ꞏ Legal 9,170.50

TOTAL 9,170.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 DACS Corp 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 4208 04/30/2024 1-52911 ꞏ Amenity Repair & Upgrade 26,841.00

TOTAL 26,841.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check Bill.com 05/23/2024 Brightview Landscapes, LLC 1072 ꞏ Bill.com Money Out Clearing

 

Bill 8874633 04/23/2024 1-52101 ꞏ Manicured Landscaping O&M 1,700.00

TOTAL 1,700.00

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 04/08/2024 Bill.com 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 24041073590 03/31/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 77.65

TOTAL 77.65

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 04/09/2024 Aurora Water 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A126410 03 2024 03/18/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 13.51

1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 0.68

TOTAL 14.19

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 04/09/2024 Aurora Water 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A126411 03 2024 03/18/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 13.51

1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 0.68

TOTAL 14.19

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 04/11/2024 Xcel Energy - xx557-6 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 870356382 03/22/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 339.45

TOTAL 339.45

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 04/11/2024 Xcel Energy - xx551-0 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 870487280 03/25/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 8.77

TOTAL 8.77

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 04/15/2024 Waste Connections of Denver Inc. Denver D 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 7663023V311 03/31/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 2,412.17

TOTAL 2,412.17

 Page 6 of 8

16

Draft



 Horizon Metropolitan District No 1

 Check Detail
 March 28 through July 1, 2024

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/09/2024 Aurora Water - xx411 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A126411 04.24 04/18/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 14.19

TOTAL 14.19

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/09/2024 Aurora Water - xx844 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A130844 04.24 04/18/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 11.97

TOTAL 11.97

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/09/2024 Aurora Water - xx845 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A130845 04.24 04/18/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 11.97

TOTAL 11.97

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/09/2024 Aurora Water - xx658 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A130658 04.24 04/18/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 43.77

TOTAL 43.77

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/09/2024 Aurora Water - xx410 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A126410 04.24 04/18/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 14.19

TOTAL 14.19

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/09/2024 Aurora Water - xx408 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A126408 04.24 04/18/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 30.19

TOTAL 30.19

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/13/2024 Xcel Energy - xx551-0 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 874441897 04/22/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 8.94

TOTAL 8.94

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/13/2024 Xcel Energy - xx557-6 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 874419418 04/22/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 316.38

TOTAL 316.38

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/14/2024 Waste Connections of Denver Inc. Denver D 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 7739124V311 04/30/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 2,494.08

TOTAL 2,494.08

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 05/23/2024 Bill.com 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 24051584403 04/30/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 85.44

TOTAL 85.44

 

 Page 7 of 8

17

Draft



 Horizon Metropolitan District No 1

 Check Detail
 March 28 through July 1, 2024

Type Num Date Name Account Paid Amount

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/06/2024 Aurora Water - xx408 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A126408 05.24 05/16/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 1,979.28

TOTAL 1,979.28

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/06/2024 Aurora Water - xx411 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A126411 05.24 05/16/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 14.19

TOTAL 14.19

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/06/2024 Aurora Water - xx658 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A130658 05.24 05/16/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 43.77

TOTAL 43.77

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/06/2024 Aurora Water - xx410 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A126410 05.24 05/16/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 14.19

TOTAL 14.19

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/06/2024 Bill.com 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 24062139157 05/31/2024 1-51120 ꞏ Office Dues & Other 82.50

TOTAL 82.50

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/06/2024 Aurora Water - xx844 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A130844 05.24 05/16/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 295.88

TOTAL 295.88

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/06/2024 Aurora Water - xx845 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill A130845 05.24 05/16/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 345.56

TOTAL 345.56

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/13/2024 Xcel Energy - xx557-6 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 878491234 05/21/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 181.07

TOTAL 181.07

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/13/2024 Waste Connections of Denver Inc. Denver D 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 7798037V311 05/31/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 2,675.94

TOTAL 2,675.94

 

Bill Pmt -Check N/A 06/17/2024 Xcel Energy - xx551-0 1-11000 ꞏ Cash - Checking

 

Bill 878840137 05/23/2024 1-51400 ꞏ Utilities 9.62

TOTAL 9.62

Total 244,848.56$     

 Page 8 of 8

18

Draft



Horizon Metropolitan District 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: 970-617-2470 

Email: info@horizonmd.live 
Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

 

 
 
To:   Horizon Metropolitan District Board of Directors 
From:   Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
Subject:  Managers’ Report 
Board Meeting Date: July 10, 2024 
 
 
General District Matters 
 

• Primary Contact: Please contact Kenny Parrish, District Manager, at Kennyp@pcgi.com or for any 
District matters which include operations, Board of Directors relations, financial management, 
compliance, and constituent relations. 
 

• Client Service Team:  As you work with Pinnacle, you will learn that we are interested in building 
lasting relationships with our clients.  Our past experiences will benefit the district as projects are 
managed with efficiency in mind utilizing our highly effective tools and processes.  We will be working 
directly with the boards to ensure that the community standards are met and assist the board in fulfilling 
its vision for the District.  If you would like to find out more about us, and our company values, please 
visit our website at www.pcgi.com. 

 

 
• Management & Administration Updates & Activities:  

o The District transition to PCGI was initiated on February 1st.  Since that time, we have received 
historical documents and assumed all management responsibilities.  Key areas are: 

o Overall District Management and Compliance. 

Horizon MD

Board of Directors

Kenny Parrish

District Manager

kennyp@pcgi.com

Andrew Kunkel

Sr. District Administrator

andrewk@pcgi.com

Irene Buenavista

AD Finance 

ireneb@pcgi.com

Wendy McFarland
Accounting Manager
wendym@pcgi.com

Daryl Fields

Sr. Facilities manager

darylf@pcgi.com

Christy McCutchen

Community Manager

christym@pcgi.com

Shannon McEvoy
Director of M&A                                         

shannonm@pcgi.com

Alan Pogue

Attorney
Icenogle Seaver Pogue

19

Draft

http://www.pcgi.com/


Horizon Metropolitan District 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: 970-617-2470 

Email: info@horizonmd.live 
Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

 

o Monthly reporting and payables. 
o District Operations & Maintenance including contractor oversight. 
o Community Management and Resident Communications. 

 
• Key Meeting Dates and Information:  The District Management Team has met with Board 

Representatives regularly in advance of today’s board meeting.  There have been robust discussions about 
expectations, vendor performance and sharing of historical information. 

• Continuation of the developer coordination calls are paramount to our collective success.   Onsite 
inspections and contractor oversight happen weekly and can expand as the needs of the District continue 
to evolve. These inspections ensure quality of work, maximize curb appeal, minimize plant loss, and help 
reduce operational costs.  

• Key action items discussed at the last meeting have been accomplished, such as concrete replacement in 
targeted alley way and enhanced dog park maintenance. 

• The Community Garden has been activated.  Your team met with interested residents, completed Garden 
Rules, Created Signage and facilitated operations.   

• Contractor accountability is heavily stressed.  We are actively working through concerns with our 
Landscape Maintenance provider. 

• There has been on-going communication with the CoHere team regarding the newsletter content and 
distribution.   

• The Park-A-Palooza event is scheduled for August 10th.  The vendors have been contracted and planning 
is in full-swing. 
 

 
• Website Updates: The District website has been migrated to a new platform, Streamline, on July 1st.  

This was primarily due to enhanced ADA compliance guidelines and to ensure compliance.  There are 
still several updates to be made, and the end result will be a website that is informative, compliant and 
easy to use. 

 
 

• Compliance Matters: Annually, District Management ensures the District meets required statutory 
responsibilities and tracks compliance accordingly. 

Compliance Matters Responsible Due Date Completion Date 
File Boundary Map PCGI 01/01/24 Completed 
Post Transparency Notice PCGI 01/15/24 Completed 
File Certified Copy of Adopted 
Budget PCGI 01/30/24 Completed 

Renew SDA Membership PCGI 03/01/24 Completed 
File Audit Exemptions PCGI 03/31/24 Completed 
Submit Audit to Governing Board PCGI 06/30/24 Pending 
Abide by Website Accessibility 
Standards PCGI 07/01/24 Completed 

File Audit PCGI 07/30/24  
File Annual Report PCGI 10/01/24  
Draft 2025 Budgets Distributed to 
Board of Directors PCGI 10/15/24  

Renew Property & Liability Insurance PCGI 12/01/24  

20

Draft



Horizon Metropolitan District 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: 970-617-2470 

Email: info@horizonmd.live 
Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

 

Certify Mill Levies PCGI 12/15/24  
Adopt Budget PCGI 12/31/24  
Ensure Website Compliance PCGI 12/31/24  
Payables PCGI/Board Monthly Sent to Board third week of the month 

 
 
Operations & Maintenance Updates & Activities 
 

• General Operations Notes: 
o Alleyway repair solutions have been completed.  Phase 1 
o Dog park and dog waste management is provided by the Brightview team.  Services are 

conducted weekly, and we continue to seek the community’s help to clean up after their pets.  
o Tree inventory has been conducted. 
o Enhanced accountability has been placed on the Landscape Contractor.  There have been some 

historical challenges, and we are currently evaluating options. 
o Lighting in the courtyard areas has been addressed.  There were several footings that needed to 

be replaced. 
o Storm drain maintenance has been completed. 
o There have been several areas in the District where manicured turf has had challenges due to 

irrigation issues.  These have been addressed and improvements are visible.  The hill on the 
North Side of the Community Park will be resodded. 
 

              
 

Community Management Updates & Activities 
 

• Phone and Email Communications: 
o In order for our team to manage the structure and budget allocation adopted by the District, all 

emails and voicemails are checked daily by team members and responded to or elevated for a 
response from management if necessary.  

o The District has sent out ten email blasts to the community in 2024.  
o The District has received 147 incoming calls year to date.  The top reasons for calls are listed 

below: 
 Billing information. 
 Login information for the website 
 General information on District-new owners 

 
• Covenant Inspections: 

o Covenant inspections for the District occur bi-monthly. There were 105 violation letters issued in 
2024. The top reasons for violation letters were as follows: 
 Trash cans 
 Cars parked in the alley 
 Maintenance of property- weeds and dry grass 

• Design Review Coordination: 
o The District’s management team has received 18 homeowner applications YTD in 2024.  

Typically, applications are reviewed within 7-10 business days.  
 
 
 

21

Draft



Horizon Metropolitan District 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 

Main office located at 550 W. Eisenhower Blvd., Loveland, CO 80537 
Phone: 970-617-2470 

Email: info@horizonmd.live 
Serving our clients and community through excellent dependable service. 

 

 
 

• Homeowner Closings: 
o The District’s management team processed 52 homeowner closings YTD. This includes all sales, 

including from developer to builder, builder to owner, and owner to owner. 
 

 
• Update on Lot Closings and Collection of Fees: 

o Operation Fees: On June 1st, the Management Team billed trash and stormwater 
maintenance fees. There was a total of 205 homes billed for trash for a total of 
$17,220.  There was a total of 59 homes billed for stormwater maintenance for a total of 
$4,425. 

22

Draft



 / 1 6

Quality Site Assessment
Prepared for: Horizon Metro District

General Information

Customer Focus Areas

DATE:

NEXT QSA DATE:

CLIENT ATTENDEES:

BRIGHTVIEW ATTENDEES:

Tuesday, Jul 02, 2024

Tuesday, Jul 09, 2024

 

William Medellin 

23

Draft



 / 2 6

Carryover Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Horizon Metro District

Rock and mulch beds-
We are currently spraying
all rock and mulch beds
for weed control so we
are having crews focus
on these areas to keep
under control through the
season.

Dog Park- Park is being
maintained on a weekly
basis and crew is picking
up any excess poop left
in gravel and also
emptying dog stations on
a weekly basis. This will
continue through the rest
of the season.

Garden bed area- Garden
areas have active
irrigation and are in use
by residents. Additional
landscape supplies have
also been delivered to
shed for use by
residents. We will
maintain unsused beds
for weed control through
the season.

Turf- dry sections of turf
had Revive added and
also had post emergent
for weeds applied in the
last several weeks.
Irrigation watering also
increased due to warmer
temps. Turf in dry areas
has recovered well and in
good condition.

1 2

3 4

1

2

3

4

24

Draft



 / 3 6

Carryover Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Horizon Metro District

Breeze pathways- breeze
is in good condition and
is maintained for weeds
on a weekly basis.

Rock beds- Rock beds
are in good condition and
we are taking care of
weed control on a weekly
basis

5 6

5

6

25

Draft



 / 4 6

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Horizon Metro District

Turf Maintenance- Turf
areas which had some
dry spots a couple of
weeks ago have greened
up and have good
coverage.

Turf strips- We have
checked the turf strips
which had dry spots and
uneven coverage. These
are in the process of
having heads adjusted to
provide proper coverage

Trash and dog park
cleanup- We have been
having crews clear all
visible trash throughout
the community and dog
park areas. These areas
collect debris on a
weekly basis due to
heavy construction in the
area and also heavy foot
traffic.

Backflow cage- Cage had
new lock installed on 7-3
to prevent cage door
from opening.

1 2

3 4

1

2

3

4

26

Draft



 / 5 6

Recommendations for Property Enhancements

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Horizon Metro District

Turf at large park- Turf is
green and in good
condition. The sloped
area has several areas
that had winter damage
which was recently
de-thatched and seeded.
Due to the fact that there
are still dry section
visible in the turf, we will
install new turf for the
severely damaged areas
on week of 7/8 for no
additional charge

Rut damage- Due to
heavy equipment that
was used by another
vendor to clean out the
storm drains, there is
excess soil damage that
is visible in several
sections. We will send
proposal to management
in order to fix the soil and
breeze damage.

Dead trees- There are
dead trees located
throughout the
community. Although a
proposal was provided to
replace dead trees last
September, we will send
revised proposal to
replace all dead trees
which will include the
north areas which were
taken over by the metro
district last fall.

1 2

3

1

2

3

27

Draft



 / 6 6

Completed Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Horizon Metro District

Parks- Large park is in
good condition. There
were some damage on
the sloped section due to
winter damage so this
area has been seed and
roped off to allow turf to
grow.

1

1

28

Draft

rkenfield
Inserted Text
 



Horizon Metro Districts
Community Enforcement

2024

29

Draft



District Information

• 205 Homes as of June 1st

• 146 Single Family
• 59 Townhomes 

• Bi-weekly inspections beginning March 1st

• Fine Structure: 
• 30, 60, 90 day letters

• QR Code added in June to increase fine 
remittance

• 105 Violations issued year-to-date
• 47 Weeds Violations
• 30 Trashcan Violations
• 14 Alley Parking Violations
• 14 Non-installed Landscaping Violations

30

Draft



Weeds
31

Draft



Weeds cont.
32

Draft



Weeds - Fine
33

Draft



Trashcans
34

Draft



Alley Parking
35

Draft



Non-installed 
Landscaping

36

Draft



Resources

Horizon Metropolitan District Website (Board of Directors, Governing Documents, O&M Plan, etc.)
• Horizonmds.org

Pinnacle Consulting Group (To contact the District)
• info@horizonmd.live
• 970-617-2470

37

Draft

mailto:info@horizonmd.live


Questions?
38

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-10 
2024 SCHEDULE OF FEES 

 
 

Operations and Maintenance Fee 
Trash and Recycling Services  $84 / Quarterly per residential unit 
Stormwater Maintenance  $75 / Quarterly per residential unit Filing 3 

Billed on the 1st day of the month preceding the quarter, due on the last day of the month preceding the quarter 
 

 
Development Fee 

Single Family $1200 / Unit 
Multi-Family $1000 / Unit 
Commercial $.50 / Square Foot 

Due and payable on or before issuance of building permit 
 

Late Fee 
Payment will become past due on the 11th day of the first month of each quarter.  If payment is not received prior to the 
11th day of the first month of the quarter, a $15 (fifteen dollar) late fee will be assessed, and a reminder letter will be 
mailed to those units which have not previously become past due.  The reminder letter will be sent as a one-time 
courtesy reminder 

The District shall undertake collection efforts for any amounts outstanding, including late fees, interest and 
attorney’s fees, in accordance with Federal and Colorado Law. 

 
Termination of Services 

Service to any Unit for which any Trash & Recycling Fee established hereunder remains unpaid six 
(6) months after its due date may be discontinued by the District.  The District will provide written 
notification to each Unit at least ten (10) days before the Services are terminated. 
 
 
Payments:   
Payments can be made online at http://www.horizonmds.org/online-payments/ or by check made 
payable to Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1-10, and sent to the District Manager at the following 
address for receipt by the due date: 
 
St. Vrain Lakes Metropolitan District No. 1-4 
c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc. 
550 West Eisenhower Boulevard  
Loveland, CO 80538 
 
 

39

Draft

http://www.horizonmds.org/online-payments/


HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023

ARAPAHOE COUNTY, COLORADO

DRAFT

40

Draft



i

Statement of net position 1
Statement of activities 2

Balance sheets - governmental funds 3
Statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 4

5

6
Notes to financial statements 7

16

17

Fund financial statements

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent auditor's report

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-wide financial statements

Special revenues fund - schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (budget
and actual)

Reconciliation of the statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances of
governmental funds to the statement of activities
General fund - statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (budget and
actual)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Capital projects fund - schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (budget and
actual)

DRAFT

41

Draft



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1
Board of Directors

Arapahoe County, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund
of Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1 ("District") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the District as of December 31, 2023,
the respective changes in financial position, and the budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of the report. We are required to be independent of the District
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes

              

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
BiggsKofford, P.C. • Member AICPA

630 Southpointe Court, Suite 200 • Colorado Springs, CO 80906 • (719) 579-9090 • www.biggskofford.com

DRAFT

42

Draft



•

•

•

•

•

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, we:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as identified in the table of
contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial

              

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our
opinions on the basic financial statements are not affected by this missing information.

Supplementary Information

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period
of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
BiggsKofford, P.C. • Member AICPA

630 Southpointe Court, Suite 200 • Colorado Springs, CO 80906 • (719) 579-9090 • www.biggskofford.com

DRAFT

43

Draft



DRAFT ONLY, NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION
Colorado Springs, Colorado

statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

[REPORT DATE PENDING]

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
BiggsKofford, P.C. • Member AICPA

630 Southpointe Court, Suite 200 • Colorado Springs, CO 80906 • (719) 579-9090 • www.biggskofford.com

DRAFT

44

Draft



Cash and investments 84,243$           
Cash and investments - restricted 22,908             
Prepaid expenses 43,288             
Accounts receivable 5,727               
Due from District No. 2 1,778               
Due from District No. 3 259                  
Capital assets:

Construction in progress 38,730,214      

Total assets 38,888,417      

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 126,974           
Due to District No. 2 5,454               
Due to District No. 3 38                    
Due to District No. 4 3,027               
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due in more than one year 24,064,960      

Total liabilities 24,200,453      

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 17,283,149      
Restricted for:

Emergency reserve 24,100             
Unrestricted (2,619,285)       

Total net position 14,687,964$    

ASSETS 

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Governmental 
Activities

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

1

DRAFT

45

Draft



FUNCTIONS / PROGRAMS
Primary government

Government activities:
General government 2,961,188$      47,534$           -$                 118,800$         (2,794,854)$     
Interest and related costs on long-term debt 801,809           -                   -                   -                   (801,809)          

Total government activities 3,762,997$      47,534$           -$                 118,800$         (3,596,663)       

GENERAL REVENUES
Transfer from District No. 2 128,938           
Transfer from District No. 3 2,139               

Total general revenues 131,077           

Change in net position (3,465,586)       

Net position, beginning of year 18,153,550      

Net position, end of year 14,687,964$    

Program Revenues

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Net 
(Expenses) 

Revenues and 
Changes in 
Net Position

Charges for 
Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
Governmental 

ActivitiesExpenses

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

2

DRAFT

46

Draft



ASSETS 
Cash and investments 84,243$           -$                 84,243$           
Cash and investments - restricted 1,330               21,578             22,908             
Prepaid expenses 43,288             -                   43,288             
Accounts receivable 5,727               -                   5,727               
Due from District No. 2 1,778               -                   1,778               
Due from District No. 3 259                  -                   259                  

Total assets 136,625$         21,578$           158,203$         

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 126,974$         -$                 126,974$         
Due to District No. 2 5,454               -                   5,454               
Due to District No. 3 38                    -                   38                    
Due to District No. 4 3,027               -                   3,027               

Total liabilities 135,493           -                   135,493           

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:

Prepaid expenses 43,288             -                   43,288             
Restricted for:

Emergency reserve 24,100             -                   24,100             
Assigned to:

Capital projects -                   21,578             21,578             
Unassigned:

Unrestricted (66,256)            -                   (66,256)            

Total fund balances 1,132               21,578             22,710             

Total liabilities and fund balances 136,625$         21,578$           

Amounts reported in governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

38,730,214      

(20,877,631)     
(3,187,329)       

14,687,964$    Net position of governmental activities

Construction in progress

Accrued interest on developer advances

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds:

Developer advances

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
BALANCE SHEETS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds:

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
Capital 

Projects Fund General Fund 

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

3

DRAFT

47

Draft



REVENUES
Facilities fees -$                 118,800$         118,800$         
Trash and recycling fees 47,534             -                   47,534             
Transfer from District No. 2 128,938           -                   128,938           
Transfer from District No. 3 2,139               -                   2,139               

Total revenues 178,611           118,800           297,411           

Current:
Accounting and audit 142,317           -                   142,317           
Billing 29,208             -                   29,208             
Board fees 4,488               -                   4,488               
Events 12,854             -                   12,854             
Engineering -                   23,963             23,963             
Election 9,561               -                   9,561               
Insurance 35,428             -                   35,428             
Landscaping and maintenance 153,904           -                   153,904           
Legal 42,258             -                   42,258             
Management fees 118,957           -                   118,957           
Dues and membership 14,984             -                   14,984             
Snow removal 27,123             -                   27,123             
Utilities 209,781           -                   209,781           

Capital projects: -                   
Capital outlay -                   13,820,156      13,820,156      

Total expenditures 800,863           13,844,119      14,644,982      

(622,252)          (13,725,319)     (14,347,571)     

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES
Proceeds from developer advances 691,216           13,832,311      14,523,527      

-                   (452,400)          (452,400)          

691,216           13,379,911      14,071,127      

Net change in fund balances 68,964             (345,408)          (276,444)          

Fund balances, beginning of year (67,832)            366,986           299,154           

Fund balances, end of year 1,132$             21,578$           22,710$           

Total other financing sources and uses

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

General Fund 
Capital 

Projects Fund 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL 

EXPENDITURES

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Interest payment on developer advance

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

4

DRAFT

48

Draft



(276,444)$        

Capital outlay 13,820,156      
Capital assets conveyed to the City of Aurora (1,553,790)       
Capital assets conveyed to Aurora Water (582,572)          

Developer advances (14,523,527)     
Repayment of developer advances 452,400           
Accrued interest on developer advances (801,809)          

(3,465,586)$     

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement of activities
capital outlay is not reported as an expenditure. However, the statement of activities will
report as depreciation expense the allocation of the cost of any depreciable assets over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. Capital outlay, the conveyance of capital assets to
other governments and depreciation expense in the current period are as follows:

Change in net position

Net change in fund balances

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Some items in the statement of activities do not provide or require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental
funds.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

5

DRAFT

49

Draft



Actual Variance
REVENUES
Stormwater maintenace fees -$                 500$                -$                 (500)$               
Trash and recycling fees 30,000             38,000             47,534             9,534               
Transfer from District No. 2 94,958             110,511           128,938           18,427             
Transfer from District No. 3 13,206             13,360             2,139               (11,221)            

Total revenues 138,164           162,371           178,611           16,240             

EXPENDITURES
Accounting and audit 50,000             88,300             142,317           (54,017)            
Bank charges -                   4,000               -                   4,000               
Billing 17,000             18,000             29,208             (11,208)            
Board fees -                   2,400               4,488               (2,088)              
Events 15,000             12,900             12,854             46                    
Election 5,000               9,425               9,561               (136)                 
Insurance 25,000             35,452             35,428             24                    
Landscaping and maintenance 183,000           135,000           153,904           (18,904)            
Legal 69,000             25,000             42,258             (17,258)            
Management fees 60,000             60,000             118,957           (58,957)            
Miscellaneous 500                  28,891             -                   28,891             
Dues and membership 2,500               2,848               14,984             (12,136)            
Payroll taxes -                   184                  -                   184                  
Repairs and maintenance 35,000             30,000             -                   30,000             
Snow removal 18,000             36,500             27,123             9,377               
Utilities 45,000             110,100           209,781           (99,681)            
Website 5,000               1,000               -                   1,000               

Total expenditures 530,000           600,000           800,863           (200,863)          

Excess of revenues over expenditures (391,836)          (437,629)          (622,252)          (184,623)          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES
Proceeds from developer advances 330,000           575,000           691,216           116,216           
Transfer between funds -                   (45,000)            -                   45,000             

Total other financing sources and uses 330,000           530,000           691,216           161,216           

Net change in fund balance (61,836)$          92,371$           68,964             (23,407)$          

Fund balance, beginning of year (67,832)            

Fund balance, end of year 1,132$             

Amended 
Budget

Original 
Budget

GENERAL FUND - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

6

DRAFT

50

Draft



1.

2. 

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

The District follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") accounting pronouncements which provide guidance for
determining which governmental activities, organizations, and functions should be included within the financial reporting entity.
GASB pronouncements set forth the financial accountability of a governmental organization's elected governing body as the basic
criterion for including a possible component governmental organization in a primary government's legal entity. Financial
accountability includes, but is not limited to, appointment of a voting majority of the organization's governing body, ability to
impose its will on the organization, and potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens and fiscal
dependency.

The District is not financially accountable for any other organization nor is the District a component unit of any other primary
governmental entity.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of activities. These financial
statements include all of the activities of the District. Material interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. 

The statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources of the District. The difference between the assets plus
deferred outflows of resources and the liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources is reported as net position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

DEFINITION OF REPORTING ENTITY

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1 ("District"), a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the state of Colorado, was
formed on March 6, 2006, and is governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act. The District was organized
for the acquisition and installation of streets and traffic signals, water, sewer, storm drainage, and park and recreation facilities.
The District’s service area is located entirely within the City of Aurora ("City"), in Arapahoe County, Colorado. The District was
organized in conjunction with other related districts, Horizon Metropolitan District No. 2 ("District No. 2"), Horizon Metropolitan
District No. 3 ("District No .3") and Horizon Metropolitan Districts Nos. 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10 (together with the District, District
No. 2, and District No. 3 the "Districts").

The District has no employees and all operational and administrative functions are contracted.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct and indirect expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment; and grants and contributions that are restricted to meet the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items are properly excluded from program revenues and are
reported as general revenues.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement position

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. All revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District. Expenditures,
other than interest on long-term obligations, are recorded when the liability is incurred or the long-term obligation is due.

See independent auditor's report.

7

DRAFT

51

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Net position

The District previously utilized a special revenues fund that was collapsed into the general fund effective January 1, 2023. The
district completed a budget for the the special revenues fund for the year ended December 31, 2023 before determining it would
be collapsed into the general fund. 

The District amended its annual budget for the year ended December 31, 2023.

The District follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of funds to maximize investment earnings. Except when required
by trust or other agreements, cash is deposited to and disbursed from a single bank account. Cash in excess of immediate
operating requirements is pooled for deposit and investment flexibility. Investment earnings are allocated periodically to the
participating funds based upon each fund's average balance.  

Interfund balances and transactions

The District reports interfund balances and transfers that are representative of lending and borrowing arrangements between
funds in the fund financial statements as due to other funds and due from other funds, respectively. The interfund balances have
been eliminated in the government-wide statements.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

In accordance with state budget law, the District holds public hearings in the fall each year to approve the budget and appropriate
funds for the ensuing year. Total fund expenditures are appropriated. The District's board of directors can modify the budget by
line item within the total appropriation without notification. The appropriation can only be modified upon completion of notification
and publication requirements. The budget includes each fund on its basis of accounting unless otherwise indicated.

Net position and fund balances

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, sidewalks, and similar items), are
reported in the applicable governmental activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the District as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and a useful life greater than one year. Such assets are
recorded at cost or estimated cost if purchased or constructed. Contributed capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition
value at the date of contribution. 

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. At the time of retirement or disposition of depreciable assets, the
related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is reflected in
revenues or expenses. 

Capital assets which are anticipated to be conveyed to other governmental entities are not depreciated or included in the
calculation of net investment in capital assets component of the District's net position. 

Budgets

For government-wide presentation purposes, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
District’s practice to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The general fund  accounts for all financial resources of the District except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The capital projects fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition and construction of capital equipment
and facilities.

Pooled cash and investments

See independent auditor's report.

8

DRAFT

52

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

3. 

84,243$           
22,908             

107,151$         

Fund balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based on the extent to which the
government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which spending can occur. Governmental funds report up
to five classifications of fund balance. Because circumstances differ among governments, not every government or every
governmental fund will present all of these components. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the
spending constraints:

Cash and investments - restricted

Cash and investments as of December 31, 2023, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

For fund presentation purposes, if more than one classification of fund balance is available for use when an expenditure is
incurred, it is the District's policy to use the most restrictive classification first.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Statement of net position:

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent events

The District's unrestricted general fund balance as of December 31, 2023, totaled a deficit of $66,256.

Cash and investments

The District has evaluated events subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2023 through the date of the attached
independent auditor's report, the date these financial statements were available to be issued.

The unassigned fund balance  is the residual portion of fund balance that does not meet any of the criteria described above.

The assigned fund balance is the portion of fund balance that is constrained by the government's intent to be used for specific
purposes, but is neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the board of directors to be used for a specific
purpose. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned amounts are more easily removed or modified than those imposed on
amounts that are classified as committed.

The committed fund balance is the portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority, the board of directors. The constraint
may be removed or changed only through formal action of the board of directors.

The restricted fund balance is the portion of fund balance that is constrained to being used for a specific purpose by external
parties (such as bondholders), constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

The nonspendable fund balance is the portion of fund balance that cannot be spent because it is either not in spendable form
(such as prepaid amounts or inventories) or is legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Fund balances

See independent auditor's report.

9

DRAFT

53

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

107,151$         

107,151$         

4. 

Balance Balance
01-01-23 Additions Dispositions Reclassifications 12-31-23

27,046,420$    13,820,156$    (2,136,362)$     -$                 38,730,214$    

27,046,420$    13,820,156$    (2,136,362)$     -$                 38,730,214$    

Deposits with financial institutions

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act ("PDPA") requires that all units of local government deposit cash in eligible public
depositories. Eligibility is determined by state regulators. Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be
collateralized. The eligible collateral is determined by the PDPA. The PDPA allows the institution to create a single collateral pool
for all public funds. The pool for all the uninsured public deposits as a group is to be maintained by another institution or held in
trust. The market value of the collateral must be 102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits.

Deposits with financial institutions

The carrying amounts of cash and investments, which equal estimated fair value, as of December 31, 2023, are as follows:

The state commissioners for banks and financial services are required by statute to monitor the naming of eligible depositories
and reporting of the uninsured deposits and assets maintained in the collateral pools.

As of December 31, 2023, the District's cash deposits had a bank balance of $107,151 and a carrying balance of $107,151.

Capital assets conveyed to the City of Aurora for the year ended December 31, 2023, totaled $1,553,790.

Capital assets conveyed to Aurora Water for the year ended December 31, 2023, totaled $582,572.

Governmental activities

Capital assets, not depreciable:
Construction in progress

Capital assets, not depreciable

As of December 31, 2023, the District had no investments.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2023, is as follows:

See independent auditor's report.

10

DRAFT

54

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

5.

Balance Repayments / Balance Due Within
01-01-23 Additions Amortization 12-31-23 One Year

1,126,447$      703,371$         -$                 1,829,818$      -$                 
5,227,657        13,820,156      -                   19,047,813      -                   

674,592           113,485           -                   788,077           -                   

2,163,328        688,324           (452,400)          2,399,252        -                   

9,192,024$      15,325,336$    (452,400)$        24,064,960$    -$                 

Governmental activities

On May 5, 2020, the District's voters authorized revenue for indebtedness totaling to $9,750,000,000, restating and replacing all
authorization for debt approved by the District's voters at prior elections. The District's service plan limits the District's authorized
indebtedness to $750,000,000 at an interest rate not to exceed 18%. The service plan set the maximum mill levy to 50 mills. As of
December 31, 2023, the District had not used any of the authorized indebtedness.

Developer advance - capital
Accrued interest on developer
advance - operational

 LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of long-term debt of the District during the year ended December 31, 2023:

Accrued interest on developer
advance - capital

Total long-term obligations

Debt authorization

Developer advance - operational
Other long-term obligations:

Developer advances

2022 Funding and Reimbursement Agreement (Operation Costs)

Facilities Funding and Acquisition Agreement

Effective January 1, 2021 and as amended November 4, 2021, the District and the developer entered into an Operations Funding
Agreement ("OFA"). Effective November 3, 2022 and as amended December 6, 2023, the OFA was terminated and superseded
by the 2022 Funding and Reimbursement Agreement ("FRA"). At the date of termination, a subordinate promissory note for the
outstanding principal and interest under the OFA was issued. Pursuant to the FRA, the District acknowledged the developer has
incurred operational and administrative expenses that are subject to reimbursement to the extent funds are available. The
developer has agreed to advance the District funds necessary to fund operational and administrative expenses on a periodic
basis through 2024 not to exceed $2,000,000. Advances made by the developer will accrue interest at 8.00% per annum.
Payments by the District to the developer will first be applied to unpaid interest and then to outstanding principal due. Any
obligation of the District to reimburse the developer will expire on December 31, 2060. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding
developer advance totaled $1,829,818 and accrued interest related to the developer advance totaled $788,077.

Effective January 1, 2021, the District and the developer entered into a Facilities Funding and Acquisition Agreement ("FFAA"),
that superseded a previous Second Amended and Restated Facilities Funding and Acquisition Agreement dated November 1,
2018. Pursuant to the FFAA, the District acknowledged the developer has incurred organization and construction related
expenses for funding of improvements to be constructed by the District through 2021 that are subject to reimbursement once the
District issues bonds. In addition, the developer has agreed to fund construction of improvements acquired and to be acquired by
the District. Estimated costs for funding of improvements to be constructed by the District are $17,000,000 and improvements
acquired and to be acquired by the District are in addition to this amount. Advances made by the developer will accrue interest at
8.00% per annum. Payments by the District to the developer will first be applied to unpaid interest and then to outstanding
principal due. Any outstanding principal or interest obligation of the District under the FFAA will be discharged and satisfied in full
on December 31, 2060. As of December 31, 2023, the outstanding developer advance totaled $19,047,813 and the accrued
interest related to the developer advance totaled $2,399,252.

See independent auditor's report.

11

DRAFT

55

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

6.

38,730,214$    
(21,447,065)     

17,283,149$    

24,100$           

7. 

Related long-term obligations

Net investment in capital assets

AGREEMENTS

Restricted net position:

The District has a deficit in unrestricted net position as of December 31, 2023. This deficit is the result of the District being
responsible for the construction and operation of public improvements, of which a significant portion of these improvements were
conveyed to other governmental entities and which costs were removed from the District’s financial records.

Effective January 18, 2016, and as amended and restated on August 23, 2010, the district entered into an intergovernmental
agreement with the City of Aurora in which the District agreed to dedicate public improvements to the City or other appropriate
jurisdiction or owners association and to maintain all public improvements which are not accepted for operation and maintenance
by the City or other public entity.

First Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement between the District and the City of Aurora

Facilities, Funding, Construction, and Operation Agreement

Effective November 30, 2017, and as amended August 6, 2020, the District, District No. 2, and District No. 3 entered into the
Facilities Funding, Construction, and Operation Agreement ("FFCO"). The FFCO establishes the District’s responsibility, as the
operating district, for constructing, designing, financing, and operating the public improvements that benefit the District, District
No. 2, and District No. 3, and establishes District No. 2's and District No. 3’s obligation, as the taxing districts, to pay for the
services and benefits of the public improvements received from the District. The FFCO further provides that the District will own,
operate, maintain, finance, and construct certain public improvements, and the District, District No. 2, and District No. 3 will
contribute to the costs of construction, operation, management, and maintenance of the public improvements. The District will
also provide for the operation, maintenance, and administrative services of the District, District No. 2, and District No. 3.

Capital assets

 NET POSITION

The District has net position consisting of: net investment in capital assets, restricted; and unrestricted.

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding
balance of debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Net investment in capital assets:

As of December 31, 2023, the District had net investment in capital assets as follows:

The intergovernmental revenues are transferred from District No. 2 and District No. 3. The District will coordinate the payment of
administrative expenditures for these Districts as well as the District’s own administrative expenditures.

Restricted net position includes balances with external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of other governments; or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District had a
restricted net position as of December 31, 2023, as follows:

Emergency reserve (Note 10)

See independent auditor's report.

12

DRAFT

56

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Trash and recycling fees

Effective May 17, 2022, the District and Horizon Metropolitan District No. 4 ("District No. 4") entered into an intergovernmental
cost sharing and recovery agreement in which District No. 4 agreed to implement an ad valorem mill levy tax within its boundaries
to assist in the repayment of public improvement operation and maintenance costs incurred by the District and administrative
costs incurred by the District.

All of the property within the boundaries of the Districts is subject to the Horizon Uptown Urban Renewal Plan ("Urban Renewal
Plan"). The Urban Renewal Plan specifies, for the purposes of the Urban Renewal Law, that the Horizon Uptown Urban Renewal
Area ("Urban Renewal Area") encompasses all of Horizon Uptown (a larger mixed-use development that includes the Districts).
Until the expiration of the tax increment financing ("TIF") authorization on March 8, 2010, granted pursuant to the Urban Renewal
Plan, all property taxes resulting from imposition of ad valorem property taxes on the assessed valuation of all taxable property in
the Urban Renewal Area (which includes all of property within the boundaries of the Districts) in excess of the base assessed
valuation (incremental assessed valuation) are payable to the Aurora Urban Renewal Authority ("AURA") pursuant to the Urban
Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law.

Facilities fees

Effective May 17, 2022, the District and Horizon Metropolitan District No. 5 ("District No. 5") entered into an intergovernmental
cost sharing and recovery agreement in which District No. 5 agreed to implement an ad valorem mill levy tax within its boundaries
to assist in the repayment of public improvement operation and maintenance costs incurred by the District and administrative
costs incurred by the District.

Effective September 7, 2022, and amended subsequent to December 31, 2023 on January 1, 2024, the Districts adopted a
stormwater system fee resolution. The stormwater system fee was imposed at a rate of $XX through December 31, 2023 and $75
effective January 1, 2024, per residential unit per quarter to defray the District's costs associated with the provision of stormwater
maintenance. 

Pursuant to the District Facilities Funding, Construction, and Operation Agreement (Note 7) and amended and restated service
plan, the District imposes a quarterly fee for trash and recycling services at $60 per residential unit.

The Urban Renewal Plan

Cooperation Agreement

Effective June 15, 2021, the District and Horizon Metropolitan Districts Nos. 2 – 6 entered into a Cooperation Agreement with the
Aurora Urban Renewal Authority ("AURA"). Per the Cooperation Agreement, in consideration of the Districts providing public
improvements and services to the property in the service plan and Urban Renewal Plan, AURA agreed that the portion of
revenues it receives as a result of tax increment reveneus attributable to the Districts' current and future levy of ad valorem taxes
within the Urban Renewal Plan will be paid to the Districts within 15 days of receipt.

Effective May 17, 2018, and as subsequently amended January 1, 2021 and June 14, 2021, the District and District No. 2 adopted
a facilities fee resolution imposing facilities fees which are due and payable on or before the date of issuance of a building permit.
Effective January 19, 2021, and as amended on on June 14, 2021, the District and District No. 3 adopted a similar resolution.
Effective May 17, 2022, the District adopted similar resolutions with District No. 4 and District No. 5. The fee, at the District’s
discretion, may be used for costs associated with the payment of bonds, capital infrastructure or any other indebtedness of the
District. The fees are $1,200 per single family detached or attached residential unit, $1,000 per multi-family residential unit, and
$0.50 per gross square foot of interior space intended for nonresidential use as defined. 

Stormwater maintenance fee

Intergovernmental cost sharing and recovery agreement with Horizon Metropolitan District No. 4

Intergovernmental cost sharing and recovery agreement with Horizon Metropolitan District No. 5

See independent auditor's report.

13

DRAFT

57

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

8. 

9.

10.

*  *  *  *  *  *  * 

TABOR requires local governments to establish emergency reserves. These reserves must be at least 3% of fiscal year spending
(excluding bonded debt service). Local governments are not allowed to use the emergency reserves to compensate for economic
conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or benefit increases.

District management believes the District is in compliance with the provisions of TABOR. However, TABOR is complex and
subject to interpretation. Many of the provisions, including the interpretation of how to calculate fiscal year spending limits, will
likely require judicial interpretation.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or omissions;
injuries to employees; or acts of God.

The District is a member of the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool ("Pool"). The Pool is an organization created
by intergovernmental agreement to provide property, liability, public officials' liability, boiler and machinery, and workers'
compensation coverage to its members. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The District pays annual premiums to the Pool for liability, property, and public officials' liability coverage. In the event aggregated
losses incurred by the Pool exceed amounts recoverable from reinsurance contracts and funds accumulated by the Pool, the Pool
may require additional contributions from the Pool members. Any excess funds which the Pool determines are not needed for
purposes of the Pool may be returned to the members pursuant to a distribution formula.

 TAX, SPENDING, AND DEBT LIMITATIONS

Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights ("TABOR"), contains tax,
spending, revenue, and debt limitations which apply to the state of Colorado and all local governments within the state of 

The developer of the property within the District is LendLease Horizon Holdings, LLC. The members of the board of directors are
officers, employees, or associated with the developer and may have conflicts of interest in dealing with the District.

RELATED PARTIES

Spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior fiscal year spending adjusted for allowable increases based upon
inflation and local growth. Fiscal year spending is generally defined as expenditures plus reserve increases with certain
exceptions. Revenues in excess of the fiscal year spending limit must be refunded unless the voters approve retention of such
revenues. On May 5, 2020, the District's voters approved a ballot issue allowing the District to retain all revenues.

See independent auditor's report.

14

DRAFT

58

Draft



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DRAFT

59

Draft



Actual Variance
REVENUES
Facilities fees 60,000$           133,200$         118,800$         (14,400)$          

Total revenues 60,000             133,200           118,800           (14,400)            

EXPENDITURES
Engineering 35,000             33,000             23,963             9,037               
Capital outlay -                   15,000,000      13,820,156      1,179,844        

Total expenditures 35,000             15,033,000      13,844,119      1,188,881        

Excess of revenues over expenditures 25,000             (14,899,800)     (13,725,319)     1,174,481        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES
Proceeds from developer advances -                   15,000,000      13,832,311      (1,167,689)       
Interest payment on developer advance (354,483)          (467,000)          (452,400)          14,600             

Total other financing sources and uses (354,483)          14,533,000      13,379,911      (1,153,089)       

Net change in fund balance (329,483)$        (366,800)$        (345,408)          21,392$           

Fund balance, beginning of year 366,986           

Fund balance, end of year 21,578$           

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCE (BUDGET AND ACTUAL)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Original 
Budget

Amended 
Budget

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

16

DRAFT

60

Draft



Actual Variance
REVENUES
Covenants and fines 8,000$             10,000$           -$                 (10,000)$          
Interest income 100                  -                   -                   -                   

Total revenues 8,100               10,000             -                   (10,000)            

EXPENDITURES
Management fees 8,000               55,000             -                   55,000             

Total expenditures 8,000               55,000             -                   55,000             

Excess of revenues over expenditures 100                  (45,000)            -                   45,000             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES
Transfer between funds -                   45,000             -                   (45,000)            

Total other financing sources and uses -                   45,000             -                   (45,000)            

Net change in fund balance 100$                -$                 -                   -$                 

Fund balance, beginning of year -                   

Fund balance, end of year -$                 

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
SPECIAL REVENUES FUND - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCE (BUDGET AND ACTUAL)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Original 
Budget

Amended 
Budget

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

17

DRAFT

61

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2023

ARAPAHOE COUNTY, COLORADO

DRAFT

62

Draft



i

Statement of net position 1
Statement of activities 2

Balance sheets - governmental funds 3
Statements of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds 4

5
Notes to financial statements 6

14

General fund - statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (budget and
actual)

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Debt service fund - schedule of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (budget and
actual)

Fund financial statements

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent auditor's report

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-wide financial statements

DRAFT

63

Draft



In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the District as of December 31, 2023,
the respective changes in financial position, and the budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of the report. We are required to be independent of the District
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore

              

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 3
Board of Directors

Arapahoe County, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund
of Horizon Metropolitan District No. 3 ("District") as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
BiggsKofford, P.C. • Member AICPA

630 Southpointe Court, Suite 200 • Colorado Springs, CO 80906 • (719) 579-9090 • www.biggskofford.com

DRAFT

64

Draft



•

•

•

•

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period
of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information, as identified in the table of
contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly

              

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our
opinions on the basic financial statements are not affected by this missing information.

Supplementary Information

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, we:

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
BiggsKofford, P.C. • Member AICPA

630 Southpointe Court, Suite 200 • Colorado Springs, CO 80906 • (719) 579-9090 • www.biggskofford.com

DRAFT

65

Draft



[REPORT DATE PENDING]

DRAFT ONLY, NOT FOR DISTRIBUTION
Colorado Springs, Colorado

to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________
BiggsKofford, P.C. • Member AICPA

630 Southpointe Court, Suite 200 • Colorado Springs, CO 80906 • (719) 579-9090 • www.biggskofford.com

DRAFT

66

Draft



Cash and investments 246$                
Receivable from County Treasurer 120                  
Property taxes receivable 395                  
Due from District No. 1 38                    

Total assets 799                  

LIABILITIES
Due to City of Aurora 43                    
Due to District No. 1 259                  
Due to District No. 2 102                  

Total liabilities 404                  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred property taxes 395                  

Total deferred inflows of resources 395                  

NET POSITION
Restricted for:

Emergency reserve 100                  
Unrestricted (100)                 

Total net position -$                 

ASSETS 

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Governmental 
Activities

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

1

DRAFT

67

Draft



FUNCTIONS / PROGRAMS
Primary government

Government activities:
General government 7,815$             -$                 -$                 -$                 (7,815)$            
Interest and related costs on long-term debt -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total government activities 7,815$             -$                 -$                 -$                 (7,815)              

GENERAL REVENUES
Property taxes 101                  
Property taxes - ARI 3                      
Property taxes - TIF 4,538               
Property taxes - TIF - ARI 127                  
Specific ownership taxes 2,952               
Specific ownership taxes - ARI 83                    
Investment income 11                    

Total general revenues 7,815               

Change in net position -                   

Net position, beginning of year -                   

Net position, end of year -$                 

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Net 
(Expenses) 

Revenues and 
Changes in 
Net Position

Charges for 
Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
Governmental 

ActivitiesExpenses

Program Revenues

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

2

DRAFT

68

Draft



ASSETS 
Cash and investments 246$                -$                 246$                
Receivable from County Treasurer 34                    86                    120                  
Property taxes receivable 141                  254                  395                  
Due from District No. 1 20                    18                    38                    
Due from other fund 2                      -                   2                      

Total assets 443$                358$                801$                

LIABILITIES
Due to City of Aurora 43$                  -$                 43$                  
Due to District No. 1 259                  -                   259                  
Due to District No. 2 -                   102                  102                  
Due to other fund -                   2                      2                      

Total liabilities 302                  104                  406                  

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred property taxes 141                  254                  395                  

Total deferred inflows of resources 141                  254                  395                  

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:

Emergency reserve 100                  -                      100                  
Unassigned:

Unrestricted (100)                 -                   (100)                 

Total fund balances -                   -                   -                   

443$                358$                

-$                 Net position of governmental activities

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund
balances

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
BALANCE SHEETS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
Debt Service 

Fund General Fund 

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

3

DRAFT

69

Draft



REVENUES
Property taxes 28$                  73$                  101$                
Property taxes - ARI 3                      -                   3                      
Property taxes - TIF 1,273               3,265               4,538               
Property taxes - TIF - ARI 127                  -                   127                  
Specific ownership taxes 828                  2,124               2,952               
Specific ownership taxes - ARI 83                    -                   83                    
Investment income 11                    -                   11                    

Total revenues 2,353               5,462               7,815               

Current:
County Treasurer fees 1                      1                      2                      
Transfers to District No. 1 2,139               -                   2,139               
Transfers to District No. 2 -                   5,461               5,461               
Transfers to City of Aurora 213                  -                   213                  

Total expenditures 2,353               5,462               7,815               

Fund balances, beginning of year -                   -                   -                   

Fund balances, end of year -$                 -$                 -$                 

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

General Fund 
Debt Service 

Fund 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
 - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

EXPENDITURES

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are the same as above.

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

4

DRAFT

70

Draft



Actual Variance
REVENUES
Property taxes 28$                  28$                  -$                 
Property taxes - ARI 3                      3                      -                   
Property taxes - TIF 12,421             1,273               (11,148)            
Property taxes - TIF - ARI 1,240               127                  (1,113)              
Specific ownership taxes 758                  828                  70                    
Specific ownership taxes - ARI 76                    83                    7                      
Investment income -                   11                    11                    
Other revenue 5,000               -                   (5,000)              

Total revenues 19,526             2,353               (17,173)            

EXPENDITURES
County Treasurer fees -                   1                      (1)                    
Transfers to District No. 1 13,206             2,139               11,067             
Transfers to City of Aurora 1,320               213                  1,107               
Contingency 5,000               -                   5,000               

Total expenditures 19,526             2,353               17,173             

Net change in fund balance -$                 -                   -$                 

Fund balance, beginning of year -                   

Fund balance, end of year -$                 

Original  and 
Final Budget

GENERAL FUND - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
(BUDGET AND ACTUAL)

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

5

DRAFT

71

Draft



1.

2. 

The District has no employees and all operational and administrative functions are contracted.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct and indirect expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment; and grants and contributions that are restricted to meet the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items are properly excluded from program revenues and are
reported as general revenues.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement position

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows.

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 3 ("District"), a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the state of Colorado, was
formed on December 29, 2005, and is governed pursuant to provisions of the Colorado Special District Act. The District was
organized for the acquisition and installation of streets and traffic signals, water, sewer, storm drainage, and park and recreation
facilities. The District’s service area is located entirely within the City of Aurora ("City"), in Arapahoe County, Colorado. The
District was organized in conjunction with other related districts, Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1 ("District No. 1"), Horizon
Metropolitan District No. 2 ("District No. 2"), and Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 10 (together with the
District, District No. 1, and District No. 2, the "Districts").

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

DEFINITION OF REPORTING ENTITY

The District follows Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") accounting pronouncements which provide guidance for
determining which governmental activities, organizations, and functions should be included within the financial reporting entity.
GASB pronouncements set forth the financial accountability of a governmental organization's elected governing body as the basic
criterion for including a possible component governmental organization in a primary government's legal entity. Financial
accountability includes, but is not limited to, appointment of a voting majority of the organization's governing body, ability to
impose its will on the organization, and potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens and fiscal
dependency.

The District is not financially accountable for any other organization nor is the District a component unit of any other primary
governmental entity.

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of activities. These financial
statements include all of the activities of the District. Material interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. 

The statement of net position reports all financial and capital resources of the District. The difference between the assets plus
deferred outflows of resources and the liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources is reported as net position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Government-wide and fund financial statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. The major sources of revenue susceptible to accrual are property taxes. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the District. Expenditures, other than interest on long-term obligations,
are recorded when the liability is incurred or the long-term obligation is due.

See independent auditor's report.

6

DRAFT

72

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Net position

Net position and fund balances

Property taxes, net of estimated uncollectable amounts, are recorded initially as deferred revenues in the year they are levied and
measurable. The deferred property tax revenues are recorded as revenues in the year they are available or collected.

Deferred inflows of resources

The general fund  accounts for all financial resources of the District except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The debt service fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt and revenues generated and received by the
District that are required to be used for repayment of debt.

Budgets

The District follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of funds to maximize investment earnings. Except when required
by trust or other agreements, cash is deposited to and disbursed from a single bank account. Cash in excess of immediate
operating requirements is pooled for deposit and investment flexibility. Investment earnings are allocated periodically to the
participating funds based upon each fund's average balance.  

Property taxes

Property taxes are levied by the District's board of directors. The levy is based on assessed valuations determined by the County
Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by December 15 and attaches as an enforceable lien as
of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the taxes during the ensuing calendar year. The taxes are
payable by April or, at the taxpayer's election, in February and June in equal installments. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in
August and sales of tax liens on delinquent properties are generally held in November or December. The County Treasurer remits
the taxes collected to the District monthly.

The District's unrestricted general fund balance as of December 31, 2023, totaled a deficit of $.

In accordance with state budget law, the District holds public hearings in the fall each year to approve the budget and appropriate
funds for the ensuing year. Total fund expenditures are appropriated. The District's board of directors can modify the budget by
line item within the total appropriation without notification. The appropriation can only be modified upon completion of notification
and publication requirements. The budget includes each fund on its basis of accounting unless otherwise indicated.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenues) until that time. Accordingly, property taxes are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period that the amounts become available.

For government-wide presentation purposes, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
District’s practice to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Pooled cash and investments

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

See independent auditor's report.

7

DRAFT

73

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

3. 

246$                

246$                

246$                

246$                

For fund presentation purposes, if more than one classification of fund balance is available for use when an expenditure is
incurred, it is the District's policy to use the most restrictive classification first.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Statement of net position:

The carrying amounts of cash and investments, which equal estimated fair value, as of December 31, 2023, are as follows:

Investments

The unassigned fund balance  is the residual portion of fund balance that does not meet any of the criteria described above.

The assigned fund balance is the portion of fund balance that is constrained by the government's intent to be used for specific
purposes, but is neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the board of directors to be used for a specific
purpose. Constraints imposed on the use of assigned amounts are more easily removed or modified than those imposed on
amounts that are classified as committed.

The committed fund balance is the portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority, the board of directors. The constraint
may be removed or changed only through formal action of the board of directors.

The restricted fund balance is the portion of fund balance that is constrained to being used for a specific purpose by external
parties (such as bondholders), constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation.

The nonspendable fund balance is the portion of fund balance that cannot be spent because it is either not in spendable form
(such as prepaid amounts or inventories) or is legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Cash and investments as of December 31, 2023, are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Fund balances

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and investments

Subsequent events

The District has evaluated events subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2023 through the date of the attached
independent auditor's report, the date these financial statements were available to be issued.

Fund balances for governmental funds are reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based on the extent to which the
government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which spending can occur. Governmental funds report up
to five classifications of fund balance. Because circumstances differ among governments, not every government or every
governmental fund will present all of these components. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the
spending constraints:

See independent auditor's report.

8

DRAFT

74

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

Amount

246$                

The state commissioners for banks and financial services are required by statute to monitor the naming of eligible depositories
and reporting of the uninsured deposits and assets maintained in the collateral pools.

As of December 31, 2023, the District had no cash deposits with financial institutions.

Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST) Weighted average under 60 days

COLOTRUST

The District invested in the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust ("COLOTRUST" or "Trust"), an investment vehicle
established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds. The State Securities Commissioner administers and
enforces all state statutes governing the Trust. The Trust offers three portfolios: COLOTRUST PRIME, COLOTRUST PLUS+,
and COLOTRUST EDGE.

Deposits with financial institutions

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act ("PDPA") requires that all units of local government deposit cash in eligible public
depositories. Eligibility is determined by state regulators. Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be
collateralized. The eligible collateral is determined by the PDPA. The PDPA allows the institution to create a single collateral pool
for all public funds. The pool for all the uninsured public deposits as a group is to be maintained by another institution or held in
trust. The market value of the collateral must be 102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits.

•  Guaranteed investment contracts
•  Local government investment pools

Investment Maturity

Investments

The District has not adopted a formal investment policy; however, the District follows state statutes regarding investments.

Colorado revised statutes limit investment maturities to five years or less unless otherwise formally approved by the board of
directors. Such actions are generally associated with a debt service reserve or sinking fund requirements.

Colorado statutes specify investment instruments meeting defined rating and risk criteria in which local governments may invest
which include: 

As of December 31, 2023, the District had the following in investments:

The District generally limits its concentration of investments to those below which are believed to have minimal credit risk, minimal
interest rate risk, and no foreign currency risk. The District is not subject to concentration risk disclosure requirements or subject
to investment custodial credit risk for investments that are in the possession of another party.

•  Certain money market funds

•  General obligation and revenue bonds of US local government entities

•  Certificates of deposit in Colorado PDPA approved banks or savings banks

•  Bankers' acceptances of certain banks
•  Commercial paper
•  Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities

•  Obligations of the US and certain US government agency securities
•  Certain international agency securities

See independent auditor's report.

9

DRAFT

75

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

4.

2010 Amended
Electoral Service Plan

Authorization Authorization

Amount authorized $9.75 billion  $750 million 

Authorization used: 
Horizon Metropolitan District No. 1 Series 2021A(3) Bonds $25.25 million $25.25 million

Authorized but unissued indebtedness $9.28 billion  $724.75 million 

5.

100$                

 $                100 

The District has net position consisting of restricted and unrestricted.

Restricted net position includes balances with external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of other governments; or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The District had a
restricted net position as of December 31, 2023 as follows:

COLOTRUST PRIME and COLOTRUST PLUS+, which operate similarly to a money market fund in which each share is equal in
value to $1, offer daily liquidity. Both portfolios may invest in US Treasury securities and repurchase agreements collateralized by
US Treasury securities. COLOTRUST PLUS+ may also invest in certain obligations of US government agencies, highest rated
commercial paper, and any security allowed under CRS 24-75-601.

COLOTRUST EDGE, a variable net asset value ("NAV") local government investment pool, offers weekly liquidity and is
managed to approximate a $10 transactional share price. COLOTRUST EDGE may invest in US Treasury securities, repurchase
agreement collateralized by US Treasury securities, certain obligations of US government agencies, highest rated commercial
paper, and any security allowed under CRS 24-75-601.

A designated custodial bank serves as custodian for the Trust's portfolios pursuant to a custodian agreement. The custodian acts
as safekeeping agent for the Trust's investment portfolios and provides services as the depository in connection with direct
investments and withdrawals. The custodian's internal records segregate investments owned by the Trust. COLOTRUST PRIME
and COLOTRUST PLUS+ are rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. COLOTRUST EDGE is rated AAAf/S1 by FitchRatings.
COLOTRUST records its investment at fair value and the District records its investment in COLOTRUST at NAV as determined
by fair value. There are no unfunded commitments, the redemption frequency is daily or weekly, and there is no redemption notice
period.

AUTHORIZED DEBT

As of December 31, 2023, the District's debt authorized, authorization used, and amounts authorized but unissued are as follows:

Restricted net position:
Emergency reserve (Note 9)

The District has a deficit in unrestricted net position as of December 31, 2023. This deficit is the result of the District being
responsible for the repayment of bonds issued for public improvements, of which a significant portion of these improvements was
conveyed to other governmental entities and which costs were removed from the District’s financial records.

NET POSITION

On May 5, 2020, the District's voters authorized the issuance of indebtedness at an interest rate not to exceed 18%. The service
plan set the maximum debt mill levy at 50 mills less the number of mills to pay the unlimited mill levy debt, if any, for the portion of
any aggregate District debt that exceeds 50% of the District's assessed valuation, subject to adjustment. There is no mill levy cap
if the portion of any aggregate District's debt is equal to or less than 50% of the District's assessed valuation.

See independent auditor's report.

10

DRAFT

76

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

6.

Effective June 15, 2021, the District, District Nos. 1-2, and Horizon Metropolitan Districts Nos. 4 – 6 entered into a Cooperation
Agreement with the Aurora Urban Renewal Authority ("AURA"). Per the Cooperation Agreement, in consideration of the Districts
providing public improvements and services to the property in the service plan and Urban Renewal Plan, AURA agreed that the
portion of revenues it receives as a result of tax increment reveneus attributable to the Districts' current and future levy of ad
valorem taxes within the Urban Renewal Plan will be paid to the Districts within 15 days of receipt.

The intergovernmental revenues are transferred from the District and District No. 2 to District No. 1. District No. 1 will coordinate
the payment of administrative expenditures for these districts as well as the District No. 1's own administrative expenditures.

AGREEMENTS

Facilities, Funding, Construction, and Operation Agreement

Effective November 30, 2017, and as amended August 6, 2020, the District, District No. 1, and District No. 2 entered into the
Facilities Funding, Construction, and Operation Agreement ("FFCO"). The FFCO establishes the District No. 1's responsibility, as
the operating district, for constructing, designing, financing, and operating the public improvements that benefit the District, District
No. 1, and District No. 2, and establishes the District's and District No. 2’s obligations, as the taxing districts, to pay for the
services and benefits of the public improvements received from District No. 1. The FFCO further provides that District No. 1 will
own, operate, maintain, finance, and construct certain public improvements, and the District, District No. 1, and District No. 2 will
contribute to the costs of construction, operation, management, and maintenance of the public improvements. District No. 1 will
also provide for the operation, maintenance, and administrative services of the District, District No. 1 and District No. 2.

The Urban Renewal Plan

All of the property within the boundaries of the Districts is subject to the Horizon Uptown Urban Renewal Plan ("Urban Renewal
Plan"). The Urban Renewal Plan specifies, for the purposes of the Urban Renewal Law, that the Horizon Uptown Urban Renewal
Area encompasses all of Horizon Uptown (a larger mixed-use development that includes the Districts) ("Urban Renewal Area").
Until the expiration of the tax increment financing ("TIF") authorization on March 8, 2010, granted pursuant to the Urban Renewal
Plan, all property taxes resulting from imposition of ad valorem property taxes on the assessed valuation of all taxable property in
the Urban Renewal Area (which includes all of property within the boundaries of the Districts) in excess of the base assessed
valuation (incremental assessed valuation) are payable to the Aurora Urban Renewal Authority ("AURA") pursuant to the Urban
Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law.

Cooperation agreement

First Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement between the District and the City of Aurora

Effective January 18, 2006, and as amended and restated on August 23, 2010 the District entered into an intergovernmental
agreement with the City of Aurora in which the District agreed to dedicate public improvements to the City or other appropriate
jurisdiction or owners association and to maintain all public improvements which are not accepted for operation and maintenance
by the City or other public entity.

See independent auditor's report.

11

DRAFT

77

Draft



HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

7.

8.

9.

*  *  *  *  *  *  * 

TABOR requires local governments to establish emergency reserves. These reserves must be at least 3% of fiscal year spending
(excluding bonded debt service). Local governments are not allowed to use the emergency reserves to compensate for economic
conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or benefit increases.

District management believes the District is in compliance with the provisions of TABOR. However, TABOR is complex and
subject to interpretation. Many of the provisions, including the interpretation of how to calculate fiscal year spending limits, will
likely require judicial interpretation.

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or omissions;
injuries to employees; or acts of God.

The District is a member of the Colorado Special Districts Property and Liability Pool ("Pool"). The Pool is an organization created
by intergovernmental agreement to provide property, liability, public officials' liability, boiler and machinery, and workers'
compensation coverage to its members. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior fiscal year spending adjusted for allowable increases based upon
inflation and local growth. Fiscal year spending is generally defined as expenditures plus reserve increases with certain
exceptions. Revenues in excess of the fiscal year spending limit must be refunded unless the voters approve retention of such
revenues. On May 5, 2020, the District's voters approved a ballot issue allowing the District to retain all revenues.

Capital pledge agreement

To provide for the payment of the Series 2021A(3) Bonds, the District entered into a capital pledge agreement with District No. 2
and the trustee of the bonds dated August 11, 2021. Under this agreement, District No. 2 is to receive all of the District's senior
capital revenue and agrees to remit the senior capital revenue to the trustee of the bonds as soon as practicable upon receipt in
accordance with the terms of the Series 2021A(3) Bonds indenture of trust. District No. 2 should apply such revenue, together
with all other pledged revenue in its possession, to the payment of the principal, premium if any, and interest on the bonds due in
accordance with the terms of the Series 2021A(3) Bonds indenture. The capital pledge agreement defines senior capital revenue
as the sum of the following: (a) the ad valorem property taxes derived from imposition of the District's senior required mill levy,
net of any fees and collection costs of the County Treasurer and any tax refunds or abatements authorized by or on behalf of the
county, which revenues include: (i) the senior pass-through tax revenue received by or on behalf of the District from AURA
pursuant to the cooperation agreement, and (ii) the property tax revenue allocable to the District's base assessed valuation
received directly from the County Treasurer; and (b) the specific ownership tax revenue allocable to the District's senior required
mill levy.

 TAX, SPENDING, AND DEBT LIMITATIONS

The developer of the property within the District is LendLease Horizon Holdings, LLC. The members of the board of directors are
officers, employees, or associated with the developer and may have conflicts of interest in dealing with the District.

The District pays annual premiums to the Pool for liability, property, and public officials' liability coverage. In the event aggregated
losses incurred by the Pool exceed amounts recoverable from reinsurance contracts and funds accumulated by the Pool, the Pool
may require additional contributions from the Pool members. Any excess funds which the Pool determines are not needed for
purposes of the Pool may be returned to the members pursuant to a distribution formula.

RISK MANAGEMENT

RELATED PARTIES

Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights ("TABOR"), contains tax,
spending, revenue, and debt limitations which apply to the state of Colorado and all local governments within the state of
Colorado.

See independent auditor's report.

12

DRAFT

78

Draft



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DRAFT

79

Draft



Actual Variance
REVENUES
Property taxes 73$                  73$                  -$                 
Property taxes - TIF 31,860             3,265               (28,595)            
Specific ownership taxes 1,945               2,124               179                  
Other revenue 5,000               -                   (5,000)              

Total revenues 38,878             5,462               (33,416)            

EXPENDITURES
County Treasurer fees 1                      1                      -                   
Transfers to District No. 2 33,877             5,461               28,416             
Contingency 5,000               -                   5,000               

Total expenditures 38,878             5,462               33,416             

Net change in fund balance -$                 -                   -$                 

Fund balance, beginning of year -                   

Fund balance, end of year -$                 

HORIZON METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
DEBT SERVICE FUND - SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND 

BALANCE (BUDGET AND ACTUAL)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Original and 
Final Budget

The accompanying notes and independent auditor's report
should be read with these financial statements.

14

DRAFT

80

Draft



Click Here

--or--

Under the Local Government Audit Law (Section 29-1-601, et seq., C.R.S.) any local government may apply for an exemption from 
audit if neither revenues nor expenditures exceed $750,000 in the year.

READ ALL INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING AND SUBMITTING THIS FORM
ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BE FILED WITH THE OSA WITHIN 3 MONTHS AFTER THE ACCOUNTING YEAR-END.

FOR EXAMPLE, APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE OSA ON OR BEFORE MARCH 31 FOR GOVERNMENTS WITH A 
DECEMBER 31 YEAR-END. APPLICATIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME

POSTMARK DATES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AS PROOF OF SUBMISSION ON OR BEFORE THE STATUATORY DEADLINE

CHECKLIST

EXEMPTIONS FROM AUDIT ARE NOT AUTOMATIC

Any preparer of an Application for Exemption from Audit-SHORT FORM must be a person skilled in governmental accounting.

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

If yes, have you included a resolution?

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON THE MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PROPRIETARY ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON A BUDGETARY BASIS

SHORT FORM

To qualify for exemption from audit, a local government must complete an Application for Exemption from Audit EACH YEAR and 
submit it to the Office of the State Auditor (OSA).

Approval for an exemption from audit is granted only upon the review by the OSA.

IF EITHER REVENUES OR EXPENDITURES EXCEED $100,000, USE THE LONG FORM.

Will this application be submitted via a mail service? (e.g. US Post Office, FedEx, UPS, 
courier.)

If yes, does the application include ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURES from the 
MAJORITY of the governing body?

Does the resolution state that the governing body PERSONALLY reviewed and 
approved the resolution in an open public meeting?

Has the resolution been signed by a MAJORITY of the governing body? (See 
sample resolution.)

Did you include any relevant explanations for unusual items in the appropriate spaces at 
the end of each section?

Has the application been PERSONALLY reviewed and approved by the governing body?

Has the entity corrected all Prior Year Deficiencies as communicated by the OSA? 

Checkout our web portal. Register your account 
and submit electronic Applications for Exemption 

From Audit, Extension of Time to File requests, 
Audited Financial Statements, and more! See the 

link below.

Has the preparer signed the application?

Will this application be submitted electronically? Click here to go to the portal
If yes, have you read and understand the 

new Electronic Signature Policy? See 
new policy  ->

PRIOR YEAR FORMS ARE OBSOLETE AND WILL NOT BE 
ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED ON FORMS OTHER THAN THOSE 
PRESCRIBED BY THE OSA WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS MUST BE FULLY AND ACCURATELY COMPLETED.

FOR YOUR REFERENCE, COLORADO REVISED STATUTES 
CAN BE FOUND AT:
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

81

Draft

http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/


Register and submit your Applications at our web portal! For faster processing the web portal is the preferred method for submission

Proprietary Activity should be reported on the Cash or Budgetary Basis

FILING METHODS

IMPORTANT!

Office of the State Auditor

QUESTIONS?

Governmental Activity should be reported on the Modified Accrual Basis

Local Government Audit Division

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lgWEB PORTAL:

1525 Sherman St., 7th Floor
Denver, CO  80203
Please Note:  The OSA's email addresses have changed as of December 1, 2023.  Please ensure you are using the email address 
noted below. 

Email: osa.lg@coleg.gov OR Phone: 303-869-3000

MAIL:

Failure to file an application or denial of the request could cause the local government to lose its exemption from audit for that year and the 
ensuing year. 

In that event, AN AUDIT SHALL BE REQUIRED.

All Applications for Exemption from Audit are subject to review and approval by the Office of the State Auditor.   

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

82

Draft

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista

PART 1 -  CERTIFICATION OF PREPARER

NAME:

I certify that I am skilled in governmental accounting and that the information in the application is complete and accurate, to the best of 
my knowledge. 

NAME OF GOVERNMENT
ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista
970-669-3611

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.
550 W Eisenhower Blvd

ireneb@pcgi.com

Loveland, CO 80537

SHORT FORM

CONTACT PERSON
PHONE
EMAIL

PREPARER (SIGNATURE REQUIRED) DATE PREPARED

FIRM NAME (if applicable) 

PHONE

TITLE
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

For the Year Ended
12/31/23

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

or fiscal year ended:

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 4

970-669-3611

District Accountant

550 W Eisenhower Blvd, Loveland, CO 80537

Please indicate whether the following financial information is recorded 
using Governmental or Proprietary fund types

GOVERNMENTAL 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS)

PROPRIETARY 
(CASH OR BUDGETARY BASIS)

3

3/7/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

83

Draft

mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com


Line#
2-1 Taxes: Property (report mills levied in Question 10-6)
2-2 Specific ownership
2-3 Sales and use
2-4 Other (specify):   Property Tax TIF
2-5
2-6 Grants
2-7 Conservation Trust Funds (Lottery)
2-8 Highway Users Tax Funds (HUTF)
2-9 Other (specify): 

2-10
2-11
2-12
2-13
2-14
2-15 Debt proceeds                              
2-16
2-17 Developer Advances received                                            (should agree with line 4-4)
2-18
2-19
2-20
2-21
2-22
2-23
2-24

Line#
3-1
3-2
3-3
3-4
3-5
3-6
3-7
3-8
3-9

3-10
3-11
3-12
3-13
3-14
3-15
3-16
3-17 Debt service principal                                                                 (should agree with Part 4)
3-18
3-19 Repayment of Developer Advance Principal                     (should agree with line 4-4)
3-20
3-21 Contribution to pension plan                                                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-22 Contribution to Fire & Police Pension Assoc.                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-23
3-24
3-25
3-26

Charges for services

Investment income
Special assessments

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Other (specify): 

-$                                        

-$                                        

Salaries
Payroll taxes
Contract services

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

Repair and maintenance
Supplies

Public health
Streets and highways -$                                        

-$                                        

Utilities and telephone
Fire/Police

-$                                        

-$                                        

Utility operations
Culture and recreation

-$                                        

Licenses and permits

-$                                        

Intergovernmental:

Fines and forfeits

Employee benefits

-$                                        

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

-$                                        

Description

(add lines 3-1 through 3-24)  TOTAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES                      

Debt service interest

Other (specify): 

Insurance
Accounting and legal fees

Repayment of Developer Advance Interest

If TOTAL REVENUE (Line 2-24) or TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Line 3-26) are GREATER than $100,000 - STOP.  You may not use this 
form. Please use the "Application for Exemption from Audit - LONG FORM".

Capital outlay  

  PART 2 - REVENUE

Description Round to nearest Dollar

REVENUE:  All revenues for all funds must be reflected in this section, including proceeds from the sale of the government's land, building, and 
equipment, and proceeds from debt or lease transactions.  Financial information will not include fund equity information.

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        

Round to nearest Dollar

-$                                        

Donations

County Treasurer's Fees

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

EXPENDITURES: All expenditures for all funds must be reflected in this section, including the purchase of capital assets and principal and 
interest payments on long-term debt. Financial information will not include fund equity information.

PART 3 - EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Fire and police pension

-$                                        
-$                                        

10$                                         
287$                                       
-$                                        

2,177$                                    
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

Charges for utility services
                  (should agree with line 4-4, column 2)

Lease proceeds

(add lines 2-1 through 2-23)        TOTAL REVENUE   

-$                                        

-$                                        

Administrative

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

2,474$                                                

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

84

Draft



Yes No
4-1

4-2

4-3

4-4

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

**Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements *Must agree to prior year-end balance
Yes No

4-5

4-6
If yes:

4-7
If yes:

4-8

Amount Total
5-1 -$                
5-2 -$                

-$               

-$                
-$                
-$                
-$                

-$               
-$               

Yes No N/A
5-4

5-5

Certificates of deposit
Total Cash Deposits

YEAR-END Total of ALL Checking and Savings Accounts

Total Investments
Total Cash and Investments

Outstanding at  
year-end

Outstanding at 
end of prior year*

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.

What is being leased?

Other (specify): 

Please provide the entity's cash deposit and investment balances.

-$                                         

What is the amount outstanding? -$                                         

Investments (if investment is a mutual fund, please list underlying investments):

  PART 5 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

5-3

If yes:

Are the entity's deposits in an eligible (Public Deposit Protection Act) public 
depository (Section 11-10.5-101, et seq. C.R.S.)?

If no, MUST use this space to provide any explanations:

If yes:

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.
Does the entity have any authorized, but unissued, debt?
How much?

                If Yes, please attach a copy of the entity's Debt Repayment Schedule. 

How much? -$                                         

124,753,000.00$                     

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Notes/Loans
Lease & SBITA** Liabilities [GASB 87 & 96]
Developer Advances

Date the debt was authorized:
Does the entity intend to issue debt within the next calendar year?

Issued during  
year

Does the entity have any lease agreements?                                                                                        

Does the entity have debt that has been refinanced that it is still responsible for?

Number of years of lease?

  PART 4 - DEBT OUTSTANDING, ISSUED, AND RETIRED

Retired during  
year

TOTAL

Are the entity's Investments legal in accordance with Section 24-75-601, et. 
seq., C.R.S.?

What is the original date of the lease?

8/22/2005

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes

Part 4 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach separate documentation, if needed

Please complete the following debt schedule, if applicable:
(please only include principal amounts)(enter all amount as positive 
numbers)

Is the debt repayment schedule attached? If no, MUST explain below: 

Does the entity have outstanding debt?

What are the annual lease payments?
Is the lease subject to annual appropriation?

Is the entity current in its debt service payments? If no, MUST explain below:

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

85

Draft



Yes No

6-1

6-2

6-3 Balance - 
beginning of the 

year*

Additions (Must 
be included in 

Part 3)
Deletions  Year-End 

Balance 

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

*must tie to prior year ending balance

Yes No
7-1
7-2

-$              
-$              
-$              
-$              

-$              

Yes No N/A
8-1

8-2

If yes:

Buildings

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

What is the monthly benefit paid for 20 years of service per retiree as of Jan 
1?

Does the entity have capital assets?

Who administers the plan?

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Infrastructure
Construction In Progress (CIP)

Indicate the contributions from:

Leased & SBITA Right-to-Use Assets

State contribution amount:
Other (gifts, donations, etc.):

Part 6 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach documentation, if needed:

Part 7 - Please use this space to provide any explanations or comments:

  PART 8 - BUDGET INFORMATION

If yes:

Other (explain):

TOTAL

Does the entity have an "old hire" firefighters' pension plan?

Total Appropriations By Fund
1$                                                       

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Complete the following capital & right-to-use assets table:

Land

Has the entity performed an annual inventory of capital assets in accordance with Section 
29-1-506, C.R.S.,? If no, MUST explain:

Does the entity have a volunteer firefighters' pension plan?

General Fund

Budgeted Expenditures

Did the entity file a budget with the Department of Local Affairs for the current year 
in accordance with Section 29-1-113 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain: 

  PART 6 - CAPITAL AND RIGHT-TO-USE ASSETS

  PART 7 - PENSION INFORMATION

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 
(Please enter a negative, or credit, balance)

Please indicate the amount budgeted for each fund for the year reported:

Did the entity pass an appropriations resolution, in accordance with Section 
29-1-108 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain:

Tax (property, SO, sales, etc.):

Fund Name
Governmental/Proprietary Fund Name

TOTAL

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

86

Draft



Yes No
9-1

Yes No

10-1
If yes: Date of formation:
10-2

10-3

10-4
If yes:

10-5
If yes:

10-6
If yes:

Yes No N/A

10-7

Has the entity changed its name in the past or current year?

Has the district filed a Title 32, Article 1 Special District Notice of Inactive Status  during 

If no, MUST explain:

Please use this space to provide any additional explanations or comments not previously included:

Streets, Safety Protection, Park and Recreation, Potable Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drainage, Transportation, Mosquito Control, General 
Operations and Maintenance, Fire Protection, District Debt, Capital Projects

  PART 9 - TAXPAYER'S BILL OF RIGHTS (TABOR)

Please indicate what services the entity provides: 

If yes:

See Below

Please list the NEW name & PRIOR name:

40.000                                     

Does the entity have an agreement with another government to provide services?

Is the entity a metropolitan district?

10-4: The District was organized in conjunction with other related districts.  Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 1-3, and 5-10.  The Districts, 
collectively, will undertake the financing and construction of the public improvements.

40.000                                     

Bond Redemption mills
General/Other mills
Total mills

Please provide the following mills levied for the year reported (do not report $ amounts):

  PART 10 - GENERAL INFORMATION

List the name of the other governmental entity and the services provided: 

Is this application for a newly formed governmental entity?

Date Filed:

Does the entity have a certified Mill Levy?

-                                           

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Is the entity in compliance with all the provisions of TABOR [State Constitution, Article X, Section 20(5)]? 
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

Note: An election to exempt the government from the spending limitations of TABOR does not exempt the government from the 3 percent 
emergency reserve requirement.  All governments should determine if they meet this requirement of TABOR. 

NEW 2023! If the entity is a Title 32 Special District formed on or after 7/1/2000, has 
the entity filed its preceding year annual report with the State Auditor as required 
under SB 21-262 [Section 32-1-207 C.R.S.]? If NO, please explain.

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

87

Draft



YES NO

12-1

Print the names of ALL members of current 
governing body below.

Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

If you plan to submit this form electronically, have you read the new Electronic Signature 
Policy?

A MAJORITY of the members of the governing body must sign below. 

  PART 11 - GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL

Office of the State Auditor — Local Government Division - Exemption 
Form Electronic Signatures Policy and Procedure

Policy - Requirements

The Office of the State Auditor Local Government Audit Division may accept an electronic submission of an application for 
exemption from audit that includes governing board signatures obtained through a program such as Docusign or Echosign. 
Required elements and safeguards are as follows:

• The preparer of the application is responsible for obtaining board signatures that comply with the requirement in Section 29-1-604 
(3), C.R.S., that states the application shall be personally reviewed, approved, and signed by a majority of the members of the 
governing body.
• The application must be accompanied by the signature history document created by the electronic signature software. The 
signature history document must show when the document was created and when the document was emailed to the various 
parties, and include the dates the individual board members signed the document. The signature history must also show the 
individuals' email addresses and IP address.
• Office of the State Auditor staff will not coordinate obtaining signatures.

The application for exemption from audit form created by our office includes a section for governing body approval.  
Local governing boards note their approval and submit the application through one of the following three methods:  
1) Submit the application in hard copy via the US Mail including original signatures.  
2) Submit the application electronically via email and either,
a. Include a copy of an adopted resolution that documents formal approval by the Board, or
b. Include electronic signatures obtained through a software program such as Docusign or Echosign in accordance with the 
requirements noted above.  

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

88

Draft



Jason Rutt
Board 

Member           
3

Board 
Member           

6

Print Board Member's Name

Print Board Member's Name I __________Jason Rutt________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______May 2025________________                        

Board 
Member           

4

Karen Voit

I __________Lisa Garcia________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______May 2025________________                        

Lisa Garcia

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

1

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

2

I _________Karen Voit_________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2025_______________                        

Print Board Member's Name

I ________David Crowder__________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2027_______________                        

David Crowder

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

7

Board 
Member           

5

Print Board Member's Name

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

3/8/2024 | 15:13:58 PST

3/8/2024 | 17:25:10 EST

3/8/2024 | 15:05:29 PST

3/11/2024 | 09:29:55 MDT

89

Draft



This sample resolution/ordinance for exemption from audit is provided as an example of the documentation that is required. The wording 
may be used as a basis for your own local government document, if needed; however you MUST draft your own ordinance or resolution 

making any changes where applicable. Legal counsel should be consulted regarding any questions.

EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT 
(Pursuant to Section 29-1-604, C.R.S.) 

 
A RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 20XX 
FOR THE (name of government), STATE OF COLORADO. 
 
WHEREAS, the (governing body) of (name of government) wishes to claim exemption from the audit 
requirements of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 29-1-604, C.R.S., states that any local government where neither revenues nor expenditures 
exceed seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars may, with the approval of the State Auditor, be exempt from the 
provision of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 

[Choose 1 or 2 below, whichever is applicable] 
 
(1)WHEREAS, neither revenue nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $100,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and  
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual), a person skilled in governmental accounting; and 
 

OR 
 
(2)WHEREAS, neither revenues nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $750,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and 
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual or firm), an independent accountant with knowledge of governmental accounting; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, said application for exemption from audit has been completed in accordance with regulations, issued by 
the State Auditor. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved/ordained by the (governing body) of the (name of government) that the 
application for exemption from audit for (name of government) for the Fiscal Year ended ____________, 20XX, 
has been personally reviewed and is hereby approved by a majority of the (governing body) of the (name of 
government); that those members of the (governing body) have signified their approval by signing below; and that 
this resolution shall be attached to, and shall become a part of, the application for exemption from audit of the (name 
of government) for the fiscal year ended ____________, 20XX. 
 
ADOPTED THIS ___ day of _____________, A.D. 20XX. 

10

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

90

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

 
________________________ 
Mayor/President/Chairman, etc. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Town Clerk, Secretary, etc. 
 
 
      Date 
Type or Print Names of   Term 
Members of Governing Body         Expires Signature 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

91

Draft



Click Here

--or--

PRIOR YEAR FORMS ARE OBSOLETE AND WILL NOT BE 
ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED ON FORMS OTHER THAN THOSE 
PRESCRIBED BY THE OSA WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS MUST BE FULLY AND ACCURATELY COMPLETED.

FOR YOUR REFERENCE, COLORADO REVISED STATUTES 
CAN BE FOUND AT:
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/

Has the entity corrected all Prior Year Deficiencies as communicated by the OSA? 

Checkout our web portal. Register your account 
and submit electronic Applications for Exemption 

From Audit, Extension of Time to File requests, 
Audited Financial Statements, and more! See the 

link below.

Has the preparer signed the application?

Will this application be submitted electronically? Click here to go to the portal
If yes, have you read and understand the 

new Electronic Signature Policy? See 
new policy  ->

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

If yes, have you included a resolution?

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON THE MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PROPRIETARY ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON A BUDGETARY BASIS

SHORT FORM

To qualify for exemption from audit, a local government must complete an Application for Exemption from Audit EACH YEAR and 
submit it to the Office of the State Auditor (OSA).

Approval for an exemption from audit is granted only upon the review by the OSA.

IF EITHER REVENUES OR EXPENDITURES EXCEED $100,000, USE THE LONG FORM.

Will this application be submitted via a mail service? (e.g. US Post Office, FedEx, UPS, 
courier.)

If yes, does the application include ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURES from the 
MAJORITY of the governing body?

Does the resolution state that the governing body PERSONALLY reviewed and 
approved the resolution in an open public meeting?

Has the resolution been signed by a MAJORITY of the governing body? (See 
sample resolution.)

Did you include any relevant explanations for unusual items in the appropriate spaces at 
the end of each section?

Has the application been PERSONALLY reviewed and approved by the governing body?

Under the Local Government Audit Law (Section 29-1-601, et seq., C.R.S.) any local government may apply for an exemption from 
audit if neither revenues nor expenditures exceed $750,000 in the year.

READ ALL INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING AND SUBMITTING THIS FORM
ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BE FILED WITH THE OSA WITHIN 3 MONTHS AFTER THE ACCOUNTING YEAR-END.

FOR EXAMPLE, APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE OSA ON OR BEFORE MARCH 31 FOR GOVERNMENTS WITH A 
DECEMBER 31 YEAR-END. APPLICATIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME

POSTMARK DATES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AS PROOF OF SUBMISSION ON OR BEFORE THE STATUATORY DEADLINE

CHECKLIST

EXEMPTIONS FROM AUDIT ARE NOT AUTOMATIC

Any preparer of an Application for Exemption from Audit-SHORT FORM must be a person skilled in governmental accounting.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

92

Draft

http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


Register and submit your Applications at our web portal! For faster processing the web portal is the preferred method for submission

MAIL:

Failure to file an application or denial of the request could cause the local government to lose its exemption from audit for that year and the 
ensuing year. 

In that event, AN AUDIT SHALL BE REQUIRED.

All Applications for Exemption from Audit are subject to review and approval by the Office of the State Auditor.   

1525 Sherman St., 7th Floor
Denver, CO  80203
Please Note:  The OSA's email addresses have changed as of December 1, 2023.  Please ensure you are using the email address 
noted below. 

Email: osa.lg@coleg.gov OR Phone: 303-869-3000

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lgWEB PORTAL:

Governmental Activity should be reported on the Modified Accrual Basis

Local Government Audit Division

Proprietary Activity should be reported on the Cash or Budgetary Basis

FILING METHODS

IMPORTANT!

Office of the State Auditor

QUESTIONS?

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

93

Draft

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


Please indicate whether the following financial information is recorded 
using Governmental or Proprietary fund types

GOVERNMENTAL 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS)

PROPRIETARY 
(CASH OR BUDGETARY BASIS)

PREPARER (SIGNATURE REQUIRED) DATE PREPARED

FIRM NAME (if applicable) 

PHONE

TITLE
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

For the Year Ended
12/31/23

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

or fiscal year ended:

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 5

970-669-3611

District Accountant

550 W Eisenhower Blvd, Loveland, CO 80537

550 W Eisenhower Blvd

ireneb@pcgi.com

Loveland, CO 80537

SHORT FORM

CONTACT PERSON
PHONE
EMAIL

Irene Buenavista

PART 1 -  CERTIFICATION OF PREPARER

NAME:

I certify that I am skilled in governmental accounting and that the information in the application is complete and accurate, to the best of 
my knowledge. 

NAME OF GOVERNMENT
ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista
970-669-3611

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

ADDRESS

3

3/7/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

94

Draft

mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com


Line#
2-1 Taxes: Property (report mills levied in Question 10-6)
2-2 Specific ownership
2-3 Sales and use
2-4 Other (specify):   Property Tax TIF
2-5
2-6 Grants
2-7 Conservation Trust Funds (Lottery)
2-8 Highway Users Tax Funds (HUTF)
2-9 Other (specify): 

2-10
2-11
2-12
2-13
2-14
2-15 Debt proceeds                              
2-16
2-17 Developer Advances received                                            (should agree with line 4-4)
2-18
2-19
2-20
2-21
2-22
2-23
2-24

Line#
3-1
3-2
3-3
3-4
3-5
3-6
3-7
3-8
3-9

3-10
3-11
3-12
3-13
3-14
3-15
3-16
3-17 Debt service principal                                                                 (should agree with Part 4)
3-18
3-19 Repayment of Developer Advance Principal                     (should agree with line 4-4)
3-20
3-21 Contribution to pension plan                                                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-22 Contribution to Fire & Police Pension Assoc.                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-23
3-24
3-25
3-26

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                                   

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

                  (should agree with line 4-4, column 2)
Lease proceeds

(add lines 2-1 through 2-23)        TOTAL REVENUE   

-$                                        

-$                                        

Administrative

-$                                        

Charges for utility services

EXPENDITURES: All expenditures for all funds must be reflected in this section, including the purchase of capital assets and principal and 
interest payments on long-term debt. Financial information will not include fund equity information.

PART 3 - EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Fire and police pension

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        

Round to nearest Dollar

-$                                        

Donations

County Treasurer's Fees

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

  PART 2 - REVENUE

Description Round to nearest Dollar

REVENUE:  All revenues for all funds must be reflected in this section, including proceeds from the sale of the government's land, building, and 
equipment, and proceeds from debt or lease transactions.  Financial information will not include fund equity information.

Licenses and permits

-$                                        

Intergovernmental:

Fines and forfeits

Employee benefits

-$                                        

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

-$                                        

Description

(add lines 3-1 through 3-24)  TOTAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES                      

Debt service interest

Other (specify): 

Insurance
Accounting and legal fees

Repayment of Developer Advance Interest

If TOTAL REVENUE (Line 2-24) or TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Line 3-26) are GREATER than $100,000 - STOP.  You may not use this 
form. Please use the "Application for Exemption from Audit - LONG FORM".

Capital outlay  

Repair and maintenance
Supplies

Public health
Streets and highways -$                                        

-$                                        

Utilities and telephone
Fire/Police

-$                                        

-$                                        

Utility operations
Culture and recreation

-$                                        

Charges for services

Investment income
Special assessments

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Other (specify): 

-$                                        

-$                                        

Salaries
Payroll taxes
Contract services

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

95

Draft



Yes No
4-1

4-2

4-3

4-4

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

**Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements *Must agree to prior year-end balance
Yes No

4-5

4-6
If yes:

4-7
If yes:

4-8

Amount Total
5-1 -$                
5-2 -$                

-$               

-$                
-$                
-$                
-$                

-$               
-$               

Yes No N/A
5-4

5-5

Is the entity current in its debt service payments? If no, MUST explain below:

Please complete the following debt schedule, if applicable:
(please only include principal amounts)(enter all amount as positive 
numbers)

Is the debt repayment schedule attached? If no, MUST explain below: 

Does the entity have outstanding debt?

What are the annual lease payments?
Is the lease subject to annual appropriation?

What is the original date of the lease?

8/22/2005

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes

Part 4 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach separate documentation, if needed

Number of years of lease?

  PART 4 - DEBT OUTSTANDING, ISSUED, AND RETIRED

Retired during  
year

TOTAL

Are the entity's Investments legal in accordance with Section 24-75-601, et. 
seq., C.R.S.?

Does the entity have any lease agreements?                                                                                        

Does the entity have debt that has been refinanced that it is still responsible for?
How much? -$                                         

124,753,000.00$                     

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Notes/Loans
Lease & SBITA** Liabilities [GASB 87 & 96]
Developer Advances

Date the debt was authorized:
Does the entity intend to issue debt within the next calendar year?

Issued during  
year

If yes:

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.
Does the entity have any authorized, but unissued, debt?
How much?

                If Yes, please attach a copy of the entity's Debt Repayment Schedule. 

Are the entity's deposits in an eligible (Public Deposit Protection Act) public 
depository (Section 11-10.5-101, et seq. C.R.S.)?

If no, MUST use this space to provide any explanations:

Investments (if investment is a mutual fund, please list underlying investments):

  PART 5 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

5-3

If yes:

Other (specify): 

Please provide the entity's cash deposit and investment balances.

-$                                         

What is the amount outstanding? -$                                         

Outstanding at  
year-end

Outstanding at 
end of prior year*

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.

What is being leased?

Certificates of deposit
Total Cash Deposits

YEAR-END Total of ALL Checking and Savings Accounts

Total Investments
Total Cash and Investments

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

96

Draft



Yes No

6-1

6-2

6-3 Balance - 
beginning of the 

year*

Additions (Must 
be included in 

Part 3)
Deletions  Year-End 

Balance 

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

*must tie to prior year ending balance

Yes No
7-1
7-2

-$              
-$              
-$              
-$              

-$              

Yes No N/A
8-1

8-2

If yes:
Fund Name

Governmental/Proprietary Fund Name

TOTAL

Has the entity performed an annual inventory of capital assets in accordance with Section 
29-1-506, C.R.S.,? If no, MUST explain:

Does the entity have a volunteer firefighters' pension plan?

General Fund

Budgeted Expenditures

Did the entity file a budget with the Department of Local Affairs for the current year 
in accordance with Section 29-1-113 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain: 

  PART 6 - CAPITAL AND RIGHT-TO-USE ASSETS

  PART 7 - PENSION INFORMATION

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 
(Please enter a negative, or credit, balance)

Please indicate the amount budgeted for each fund for the year reported:

Did the entity pass an appropriations resolution, in accordance with Section 
29-1-108 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain:

Tax (property, SO, sales, etc.):

Complete the following capital & right-to-use assets table:

Land

TOTAL

Does the entity have an "old hire" firefighters' pension plan?

Total Appropriations By Fund
-$                                                    

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Part 6 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach documentation, if needed:

Part 7 - Please use this space to provide any explanations or comments:

  PART 8 - BUDGET INFORMATION

If yes:

Other (explain):

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Infrastructure
Construction In Progress (CIP)

Indicate the contributions from:

Leased & SBITA Right-to-Use Assets

State contribution amount:
Other (gifts, donations, etc.):

Buildings

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

What is the monthly benefit paid for 20 years of service per retiree as of Jan 
1?

Does the entity have capital assets?

Who administers the plan?

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

97

Draft



Yes No
9-1

Yes No

10-1
If yes: Date of formation:
10-2

10-3

10-4
If yes:

10-5
If yes:

10-6
If yes:

Yes No N/A

10-7
NEW 2023! If the entity is a Title 32 Special District formed on or after 7/1/2000, has 
the entity filed its preceding year annual report with the State Auditor as required 
under SB 21-262 [Section 32-1-207 C.R.S.]? If NO, please explain.

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Is the entity in compliance with all the provisions of TABOR [State Constitution, Article X, Section 20(5)]? 
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

Note: An election to exempt the government from the spending limitations of TABOR does not exempt the government from the 3 percent 
emergency reserve requirement.  All governments should determine if they meet this requirement of TABOR. 

Does the entity have a certified Mill Levy?

-                                           

  PART 10 - GENERAL INFORMATION

List the name of the other governmental entity and the services provided: 

Is this application for a newly formed governmental entity?

Date Filed:

-                                           

Does the entity have an agreement with another government to provide services?

Is the entity a metropolitan district?

10-4: The District was organized in conjunction with other related districts.  Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 1-4, and 6-10.  The Districts, 
collectively, will undertake the financing and construction of the public improvements.

-                                           

Bond Redemption mills
General/Other mills
Total mills

Please provide the following mills levied for the year reported (do not report $ amounts):

If yes:

See Below

Please list the NEW name & PRIOR name:

Streets, Safety Protection, Park and Recreation, Potable Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drainage, Transportation, Mosquito Control, General 
Operations and Maintenance, Fire Protection, District Debt, Capital Projects

  PART 9 - TAXPAYER'S BILL OF RIGHTS (TABOR)

Please indicate what services the entity provides: 

Has the entity changed its name in the past or current year?

Has the district filed a Title 32, Article 1 Special District Notice of Inactive Status  during 

If no, MUST explain:

Please use this space to provide any additional explanations or comments not previously included:

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

98

Draft



YES NO

12-1

Office of the State Auditor — Local Government Division - Exemption 
Form Electronic Signatures Policy and Procedure

Policy - Requirements

The Office of the State Auditor Local Government Audit Division may accept an electronic submission of an application for 
exemption from audit that includes governing board signatures obtained through a program such as Docusign or Echosign. 
Required elements and safeguards are as follows:

• The preparer of the application is responsible for obtaining board signatures that comply with the requirement in Section 29-1-604 
(3), C.R.S., that states the application shall be personally reviewed, approved, and signed by a majority of the members of the 
governing body.
• The application must be accompanied by the signature history document created by the electronic signature software. The 
signature history document must show when the document was created and when the document was emailed to the various 
parties, and include the dates the individual board members signed the document. The signature history must also show the 
individuals' email addresses and IP address.
• Office of the State Auditor staff will not coordinate obtaining signatures.

The application for exemption from audit form created by our office includes a section for governing body approval.  
Local governing boards note their approval and submit the application through one of the following three methods:  
1) Submit the application in hard copy via the US Mail including original signatures.  
2) Submit the application electronically via email and either,
a. Include a copy of an adopted resolution that documents formal approval by the Board, or
b. Include electronic signatures obtained through a software program such as Docusign or Echosign in accordance with the 
requirements noted above.  

A MAJORITY of the members of the governing body must sign below. 

  PART 11 - GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

If you plan to submit this form electronically, have you read the new Electronic Signature 
Policy?

Print the names of ALL members of current 
governing body below.

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

99

Draft



Print Board Member's Name

I ________David Crowder__________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2027_______________                        

David Crowder

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

7

Board 
Member           

5

Print Board Member's Name

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Board 
Member           

1

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

2

I _________Karen Voit_________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2025_______________                        

Board 
Member           

6

Print Board Member's Name

Print Board Member's Name I __________Jason Rutt________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______May 2025________________                        

Board 
Member           

4

Karen Voit

I __________Lisa Garcia________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______May 2025________________                        

Lisa Garcia

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

3
Jason Rutt

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

3/8/2024 | 15:13:58 PST

3/8/2024 | 17:25:10 EST

3/8/2024 | 15:05:29 PST

3/11/2024 | 09:29:55 MDT

100

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

This sample resolution/ordinance for exemption from audit is provided as an example of the documentation that is required. The wording 
may be used as a basis for your own local government document, if needed; however you MUST draft your own ordinance or resolution 

making any changes where applicable. Legal counsel should be consulted regarding any questions.

RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT 
(Pursuant to Section 29-1-604, C.R.S.) 

 
A RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 20XX 
FOR THE (name of government), STATE OF COLORADO. 
 
WHEREAS, the (governing body) of (name of government) wishes to claim exemption from the audit 
requirements of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 29-1-604, C.R.S., states that any local government where neither revenues nor expenditures 
exceed seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars may, with the approval of the State Auditor, be exempt from the 
provision of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 

[Choose 1 or 2 below, whichever is applicable] 
 
(1)WHEREAS, neither revenue nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $100,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and  
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual), a person skilled in governmental accounting; and 
 

OR 
 
(2)WHEREAS, neither revenues nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $750,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and 
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual or firm), an independent accountant with knowledge of governmental accounting; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, said application for exemption from audit has been completed in accordance with regulations, issued by 
the State Auditor. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved/ordained by the (governing body) of the (name of government) that the 
application for exemption from audit for (name of government) for the Fiscal Year ended ____________, 20XX, 
has been personally reviewed and is hereby approved by a majority of the (governing body) of the (name of 
government); that those members of the (governing body) have signified their approval by signing below; and that 
this resolution shall be attached to, and shall become a part of, the application for exemption from audit of the (name 
of government) for the fiscal year ended ____________, 20XX. 
 
ADOPTED THIS ___ day of _____________, A.D. 20XX. 

10

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

101

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

 
________________________ 
Mayor/President/Chairman, etc. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Town Clerk, Secretary, etc. 
 
 
      Date 
Type or Print Names of   Term 
Members of Governing Body         Expires Signature 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

102

Draft



Click Here

--or--

Under the Local Government Audit Law (Section 29-1-601, et seq., C.R.S.) any local government may apply for an exemption from 
audit if neither revenues nor expenditures exceed $750,000 in the year.

READ ALL INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING AND SUBMITTING THIS FORM
ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BE FILED WITH THE OSA WITHIN 3 MONTHS AFTER THE ACCOUNTING YEAR-END.

FOR EXAMPLE, APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE OSA ON OR BEFORE MARCH 31 FOR GOVERNMENTS WITH A 
DECEMBER 31 YEAR-END. APPLICATIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME

POSTMARK DATES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AS PROOF OF SUBMISSION ON OR BEFORE THE STATUATORY DEADLINE

CHECKLIST

EXEMPTIONS FROM AUDIT ARE NOT AUTOMATIC

Any preparer of an Application for Exemption from Audit-SHORT FORM must be a person skilled in governmental accounting.

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

If yes, have you included a resolution?

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON THE MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PROPRIETARY ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON A BUDGETARY BASIS

SHORT FORM

To qualify for exemption from audit, a local government must complete an Application for Exemption from Audit EACH YEAR and 
submit it to the Office of the State Auditor (OSA).

Approval for an exemption from audit is granted only upon the review by the OSA.

IF EITHER REVENUES OR EXPENDITURES EXCEED $100,000, USE THE LONG FORM.

Will this application be submitted via a mail service? (e.g. US Post Office, FedEx, UPS, 
courier.)

If yes, does the application include ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURES from the 
MAJORITY of the governing body?

Does the resolution state that the governing body PERSONALLY reviewed and 
approved the resolution in an open public meeting?

Has the resolution been signed by a MAJORITY of the governing body? (See 
sample resolution.)

Did you include any relevant explanations for unusual items in the appropriate spaces at 
the end of each section?

Has the application been PERSONALLY reviewed and approved by the governing body?

Has the entity corrected all Prior Year Deficiencies as communicated by the OSA? 

Checkout our web portal. Register your account 
and submit electronic Applications for Exemption 

From Audit, Extension of Time to File requests, 
Audited Financial Statements, and more! See the 

link below.

Has the preparer signed the application?

Will this application be submitted electronically? Click here to go to the portal
If yes, have you read and understand the 

new Electronic Signature Policy? See 
new policy  ->

PRIOR YEAR FORMS ARE OBSOLETE AND WILL NOT BE 
ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED ON FORMS OTHER THAN THOSE 
PRESCRIBED BY THE OSA WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS MUST BE FULLY AND ACCURATELY COMPLETED.

FOR YOUR REFERENCE, COLORADO REVISED STATUTES 
CAN BE FOUND AT:
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

103

Draft

http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/


Register and submit your Applications at our web portal! For faster processing the web portal is the preferred method for submission

Proprietary Activity should be reported on the Cash or Budgetary Basis

FILING METHODS

IMPORTANT!

Office of the State Auditor

QUESTIONS?

Governmental Activity should be reported on the Modified Accrual Basis

Local Government Audit Division

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lgWEB PORTAL:

1525 Sherman St., 7th Floor
Denver, CO  80203
Please Note:  The OSA's email addresses have changed as of December 1, 2023.  Please ensure you are using the email address 
noted below. 

Email: osa.lg@coleg.gov OR Phone: 303-869-3000

MAIL:

Failure to file an application or denial of the request could cause the local government to lose its exemption from audit for that year and the 
ensuing year. 

In that event, AN AUDIT SHALL BE REQUIRED.

All Applications for Exemption from Audit are subject to review and approval by the Office of the State Auditor.   

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

104

Draft

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista

PART 1 -  CERTIFICATION OF PREPARER

NAME:

I certify that I am skilled in governmental accounting and that the information in the application is complete and accurate, to the best of 
my knowledge. 

NAME OF GOVERNMENT
ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista
970-669-3611

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.
550 W Eisenhower Blvd

ireneb@pcgi.com

Loveland, CO 80537

SHORT FORM

CONTACT PERSON
PHONE
EMAIL

PREPARER (SIGNATURE REQUIRED) DATE PREPARED

FIRM NAME (if applicable) 

PHONE

TITLE
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

For the Year Ended
12/31/23

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

or fiscal year ended:

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 6

970-669-3611

District Accountant

550 W Eisenhower Blvd, Loveland, CO 80537

Please indicate whether the following financial information is recorded 
using Governmental or Proprietary fund types

GOVERNMENTAL 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS)

PROPRIETARY 
(CASH OR BUDGETARY BASIS)

3

3/7/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

105

Draft

mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com


Line#
2-1 Taxes: Property (report mills levied in Question 10-6)
2-2 Specific ownership
2-3 Sales and use
2-4 Other (specify):   Property Tax TIF
2-5
2-6 Grants
2-7 Conservation Trust Funds (Lottery)
2-8 Highway Users Tax Funds (HUTF)
2-9 Other (specify): 

2-10
2-11
2-12
2-13
2-14
2-15 Debt proceeds                              
2-16
2-17 Developer Advances received                                            (should agree with line 4-4)
2-18
2-19
2-20
2-21
2-22
2-23
2-24

Line#
3-1
3-2
3-3
3-4
3-5
3-6
3-7
3-8
3-9

3-10
3-11
3-12
3-13
3-14
3-15
3-16
3-17 Debt service principal                                                                 (should agree with Part 4)
3-18
3-19 Repayment of Developer Advance Principal                     (should agree with line 4-4)
3-20
3-21 Contribution to pension plan                                                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-22 Contribution to Fire & Police Pension Assoc.                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-23
3-24
3-25
3-26

Charges for services

Investment income
Special assessments

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Other (specify): 

-$                                        

-$                                        

Salaries
Payroll taxes
Contract services

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

Repair and maintenance
Supplies

Public health
Streets and highways -$                                        

-$                                        

Utilities and telephone
Fire/Police

-$                                        

-$                                        

Utility operations
Culture and recreation

-$                                        

Licenses and permits

-$                                        

Intergovernmental:

Fines and forfeits

Employee benefits

-$                                        

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

-$                                        

Description

(add lines 3-1 through 3-24)  TOTAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES                      

Debt service interest

Other (specify): 

Insurance
Accounting and legal fees

Repayment of Developer Advance Interest

If TOTAL REVENUE (Line 2-24) or TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Line 3-26) are GREATER than $100,000 - STOP.  You may not use this 
form. Please use the "Application for Exemption from Audit - LONG FORM".

Capital outlay  

  PART 2 - REVENUE

Description Round to nearest Dollar

REVENUE:  All revenues for all funds must be reflected in this section, including proceeds from the sale of the government's land, building, and 
equipment, and proceeds from debt or lease transactions.  Financial information will not include fund equity information.

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        

Round to nearest Dollar

-$                                        

Donations

County Treasurer's Fees

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

EXPENDITURES: All expenditures for all funds must be reflected in this section, including the purchase of capital assets and principal and 
interest payments on long-term debt. Financial information will not include fund equity information.

PART 3 - EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Fire and police pension

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

Charges for utility services
                  (should agree with line 4-4, column 2)

Lease proceeds

(add lines 2-1 through 2-23)        TOTAL REVENUE   

-$                                        

-$                                        

Administrative

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                                   

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

106

Draft



Yes No
4-1

4-2

4-3

4-4

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

**Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements *Must agree to prior year-end balance
Yes No

4-5

4-6
If yes:

4-7
If yes:

4-8

Amount Total
5-1 -$                
5-2 -$                

-$               

-$                
-$                
-$                
-$                

-$               
-$               

Yes No N/A
5-4

5-5

Certificates of deposit
Total Cash Deposits

YEAR-END Total of ALL Checking and Savings Accounts

Total Investments
Total Cash and Investments

Outstanding at  
year-end

Outstanding at 
end of prior year*

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.

What is being leased?

Other (specify): 

Please provide the entity's cash deposit and investment balances.

-$                                         

What is the amount outstanding? -$                                         

Investments (if investment is a mutual fund, please list underlying investments):

  PART 5 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

5-3

If yes:

Are the entity's deposits in an eligible (Public Deposit Protection Act) public 
depository (Section 11-10.5-101, et seq. C.R.S.)?

If no, MUST use this space to provide any explanations:

If yes:

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.
Does the entity have any authorized, but unissued, debt?
How much?

                If Yes, please attach a copy of the entity's Debt Repayment Schedule. 

How much? -$                                         

124,753,000.00$                     

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Notes/Loans
Lease & SBITA** Liabilities [GASB 87 & 96]
Developer Advances

Date the debt was authorized:
Does the entity intend to issue debt within the next calendar year?

Issued during  
year

Does the entity have any lease agreements?                                                                                        

Does the entity have debt that has been refinanced that it is still responsible for?

Number of years of lease?

  PART 4 - DEBT OUTSTANDING, ISSUED, AND RETIRED

Retired during  
year

TOTAL

Are the entity's Investments legal in accordance with Section 24-75-601, et. 
seq., C.R.S.?

What is the original date of the lease?

8/22/2005

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes

Part 4 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach separate documentation, if needed

Please complete the following debt schedule, if applicable:
(please only include principal amounts)(enter all amount as positive 
numbers)

Is the debt repayment schedule attached? If no, MUST explain below: 

Does the entity have outstanding debt?

What are the annual lease payments?
Is the lease subject to annual appropriation?

Is the entity current in its debt service payments? If no, MUST explain below:

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

107

Draft



Yes No

6-1

6-2

6-3 Balance - 
beginning of the 

year*

Additions (Must 
be included in 

Part 3)
Deletions  Year-End 

Balance 

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

*must tie to prior year ending balance

Yes No
7-1
7-2

-$              
-$              
-$              
-$              

-$              

Yes No N/A
8-1

8-2

If yes:

Buildings

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

What is the monthly benefit paid for 20 years of service per retiree as of Jan 
1?

Does the entity have capital assets?

Who administers the plan?

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Infrastructure
Construction In Progress (CIP)

Indicate the contributions from:

Leased & SBITA Right-to-Use Assets

State contribution amount:
Other (gifts, donations, etc.):

Part 6 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach documentation, if needed:

Part 7 - Please use this space to provide any explanations or comments:

  PART 8 - BUDGET INFORMATION

If yes:

Other (explain):

TOTAL

Does the entity have an "old hire" firefighters' pension plan?

Total Appropriations By Fund
-$                                                    

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Complete the following capital & right-to-use assets table:

Land

Has the entity performed an annual inventory of capital assets in accordance with Section 
29-1-506, C.R.S.,? If no, MUST explain:

Does the entity have a volunteer firefighters' pension plan?

General Fund

Budgeted Expenditures

Did the entity file a budget with the Department of Local Affairs for the current year 
in accordance with Section 29-1-113 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain: 

  PART 6 - CAPITAL AND RIGHT-TO-USE ASSETS

  PART 7 - PENSION INFORMATION

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 
(Please enter a negative, or credit, balance)

Please indicate the amount budgeted for each fund for the year reported:

Did the entity pass an appropriations resolution, in accordance with Section 
29-1-108 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain:

Tax (property, SO, sales, etc.):

Fund Name
Governmental/Proprietary Fund Name

TOTAL

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

108

Draft



Yes No
9-1

Yes No

10-1
If yes: Date of formation:
10-2

10-3

10-4
If yes:

10-5
If yes:

10-6
If yes:

Yes No N/A

10-7

Has the entity changed its name in the past or current year?

Has the district filed a Title 32, Article 1 Special District Notice of Inactive Status  during 

If no, MUST explain:

Please use this space to provide any additional explanations or comments not previously included:

Streets, Safety Protection, Park and Recreation, Potable Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drainage, Transportation, Mosquito Control, General 
Operations and Maintenance, Fire Protection, District Debt, Capital Projects

  PART 9 - TAXPAYER'S BILL OF RIGHTS (TABOR)

Please indicate what services the entity provides: 

If yes:

See Below

Please list the NEW name & PRIOR name:

-                                           

Does the entity have an agreement with another government to provide services?

Is the entity a metropolitan district?

10-4: The District was organized in conjunction with other related districts.  Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2 ,3 ,4 ,5 ,7 ,8 ,9 and 10.  
The Districts, collectively, will undertake the financing and construction of the public improvements.

-                                           

Bond Redemption mills
General/Other mills
Total mills

Please provide the following mills levied for the year reported (do not report $ amounts):

  PART 10 - GENERAL INFORMATION

List the name of the other governmental entity and the services provided: 

Is this application for a newly formed governmental entity?

Date Filed:

Does the entity have a certified Mill Levy?

-                                           

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Is the entity in compliance with all the provisions of TABOR [State Constitution, Article X, Section 20(5)]? 
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

Note: An election to exempt the government from the spending limitations of TABOR does not exempt the government from the 3 percent 
emergency reserve requirement.  All governments should determine if they meet this requirement of TABOR. 

NEW 2023! If the entity is a Title 32 Special District formed on or after 7/1/2000, has 
the entity filed its preceding year annual report with the State Auditor as required 
under SB 21-262 [Section 32-1-207 C.R.S.]? If NO, please explain.

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

109

Draft



YES NO

12-1

Print the names of ALL members of current 
governing body below.

Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

If you plan to submit this form electronically, have you read the new Electronic Signature 
Policy?

A MAJORITY of the members of the governing body must sign below. 

  PART 11 - GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL

Office of the State Auditor — Local Government Division - Exemption 
Form Electronic Signatures Policy and Procedure

Policy - Requirements

The Office of the State Auditor Local Government Audit Division may accept an electronic submission of an application for 
exemption from audit that includes governing board signatures obtained through a program such as Docusign or Echosign. 
Required elements and safeguards are as follows:

• The preparer of the application is responsible for obtaining board signatures that comply with the requirement in Section 29-1-604 
(3), C.R.S., that states the application shall be personally reviewed, approved, and signed by a majority of the members of the 
governing body.
• The application must be accompanied by the signature history document created by the electronic signature software. The 
signature history document must show when the document was created and when the document was emailed to the various 
parties, and include the dates the individual board members signed the document. The signature history must also show the 
individuals' email addresses and IP address.
• Office of the State Auditor staff will not coordinate obtaining signatures.

The application for exemption from audit form created by our office includes a section for governing body approval.  
Local governing boards note their approval and submit the application through one of the following three methods:  
1) Submit the application in hard copy via the US Mail including original signatures.  
2) Submit the application electronically via email and either,
a. Include a copy of an adopted resolution that documents formal approval by the Board, or
b. Include electronic signatures obtained through a software program such as Docusign or Echosign in accordance with the 
requirements noted above.  

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

110

Draft



Jason Rutt
Board 

Member           
3

Board 
Member           

6

Print Board Member's Name

Print Board Member's Name I __________Jason Rutt________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Board 
Member           

4

Karen Voit

I __________Lisa Garcia________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Lisa Garcia

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

1

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

2

I _________Karen Voit_________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2025_______________                        

Print Board Member's Name

I ________David Crowder__________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2027_______________                        

David Crowder

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

7

Board 
Member           

5

Print Board Member's Name

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

3/8/2024 | 15:13:58 PST

3/8/2024 | 17:25:10 EST

3/8/2024 | 15:05:29 PST

3/11/2024 | 09:29:55 MDT

111

Draft



This sample resolution/ordinance for exemption from audit is provided as an example of the documentation that is required. The wording 
may be used as a basis for your own local government document, if needed; however you MUST draft your own ordinance or resolution 

making any changes where applicable. Legal counsel should be consulted regarding any questions.

EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT 
(Pursuant to Section 29-1-604, C.R.S.) 

 
A RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 20XX 
FOR THE (name of government), STATE OF COLORADO. 
 
WHEREAS, the (governing body) of (name of government) wishes to claim exemption from the audit 
requirements of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 29-1-604, C.R.S., states that any local government where neither revenues nor expenditures 
exceed seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars may, with the approval of the State Auditor, be exempt from the 
provision of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 

[Choose 1 or 2 below, whichever is applicable] 
 
(1)WHEREAS, neither revenue nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $100,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and  
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual), a person skilled in governmental accounting; and 
 

OR 
 
(2)WHEREAS, neither revenues nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $750,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and 
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual or firm), an independent accountant with knowledge of governmental accounting; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, said application for exemption from audit has been completed in accordance with regulations, issued by 
the State Auditor. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved/ordained by the (governing body) of the (name of government) that the 
application for exemption from audit for (name of government) for the Fiscal Year ended ____________, 20XX, 
has been personally reviewed and is hereby approved by a majority of the (governing body) of the (name of 
government); that those members of the (governing body) have signified their approval by signing below; and that 
this resolution shall be attached to, and shall become a part of, the application for exemption from audit of the (name 
of government) for the fiscal year ended ____________, 20XX. 
 
ADOPTED THIS ___ day of _____________, A.D. 20XX. 

10

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

112

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

 
________________________ 
Mayor/President/Chairman, etc. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Town Clerk, Secretary, etc. 
 
 
      Date 
Type or Print Names of   Term 
Members of Governing Body         Expires Signature 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

113

Draft



Click Here

--or--

PRIOR YEAR FORMS ARE OBSOLETE AND WILL NOT BE 
ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED ON FORMS OTHER THAN THOSE 
PRESCRIBED BY THE OSA WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS MUST BE FULLY AND ACCURATELY COMPLETED.

FOR YOUR REFERENCE, COLORADO REVISED STATUTES 
CAN BE FOUND AT:
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/

Has the entity corrected all Prior Year Deficiencies as communicated by the OSA? 

Checkout our web portal. Register your account 
and submit electronic Applications for Exemption 

From Audit, Extension of Time to File requests, 
Audited Financial Statements, and more! See the 

link below.

Has the preparer signed the application?

Will this application be submitted electronically? Click here to go to the portal
If yes, have you read and understand the 

new Electronic Signature Policy? See 
new policy  ->

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

If yes, have you included a resolution?

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON THE MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PROPRIETARY ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON A BUDGETARY BASIS

SHORT FORM

To qualify for exemption from audit, a local government must complete an Application for Exemption from Audit EACH YEAR and 
submit it to the Office of the State Auditor (OSA).

Approval for an exemption from audit is granted only upon the review by the OSA.

IF EITHER REVENUES OR EXPENDITURES EXCEED $100,000, USE THE LONG FORM.

Will this application be submitted via a mail service? (e.g. US Post Office, FedEx, UPS, 
courier.)

If yes, does the application include ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURES from the 
MAJORITY of the governing body?

Does the resolution state that the governing body PERSONALLY reviewed and 
approved the resolution in an open public meeting?

Has the resolution been signed by a MAJORITY of the governing body? (See 
sample resolution.)

Did you include any relevant explanations for unusual items in the appropriate spaces at 
the end of each section?

Has the application been PERSONALLY reviewed and approved by the governing body?

Under the Local Government Audit Law (Section 29-1-601, et seq., C.R.S.) any local government may apply for an exemption from 
audit if neither revenues nor expenditures exceed $750,000 in the year.

READ ALL INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING AND SUBMITTING THIS FORM
ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BE FILED WITH THE OSA WITHIN 3 MONTHS AFTER THE ACCOUNTING YEAR-END.

FOR EXAMPLE, APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE OSA ON OR BEFORE MARCH 31 FOR GOVERNMENTS WITH A 
DECEMBER 31 YEAR-END. APPLICATIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME

POSTMARK DATES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AS PROOF OF SUBMISSION ON OR BEFORE THE STATUATORY DEADLINE

CHECKLIST

EXEMPTIONS FROM AUDIT ARE NOT AUTOMATIC

Any preparer of an Application for Exemption from Audit-SHORT FORM must be a person skilled in governmental accounting.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

114

Draft

http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


Register and submit your Applications at our web portal! For faster processing the web portal is the preferred method for submission

MAIL:

Failure to file an application or denial of the request could cause the local government to lose its exemption from audit for that year and the 
ensuing year. 

In that event, AN AUDIT SHALL BE REQUIRED.

All Applications for Exemption from Audit are subject to review and approval by the Office of the State Auditor.   

1525 Sherman St., 7th Floor
Denver, CO  80203
Please Note:  The OSA's email addresses have changed as of December 1, 2023.  Please ensure you are using the email address 
noted below. 

Email: osa.lg@coleg.gov OR Phone: 303-869-3000

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lgWEB PORTAL:

Governmental Activity should be reported on the Modified Accrual Basis

Local Government Audit Division

Proprietary Activity should be reported on the Cash or Budgetary Basis

FILING METHODS

IMPORTANT!

Office of the State Auditor

QUESTIONS?

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

115

Draft

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


Please indicate whether the following financial information is recorded 
using Governmental or Proprietary fund types

GOVERNMENTAL 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS)

PROPRIETARY 
(CASH OR BUDGETARY BASIS)

PREPARER (SIGNATURE REQUIRED) DATE PREPARED

FIRM NAME (if applicable) 

PHONE

TITLE
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

For the Year Ended
12/31/23

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

or fiscal year ended:

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 7

970-669-3611

District Accountant

550 W Eisenhower Blvd, Loveland, CO 80537

550 W Eisenhower Blvd

ireneb@pcgi.com

Loveland, CO 80537

SHORT FORM

CONTACT PERSON
PHONE
EMAIL

Irene Buenavista

PART 1 -  CERTIFICATION OF PREPARER

NAME:

I certify that I am skilled in governmental accounting and that the information in the application is complete and accurate, to the best of 
my knowledge. 

NAME OF GOVERNMENT
ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista
970-669-3611

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

ADDRESS

3

3/7/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

116

Draft

mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com


Line#
2-1 Taxes: Property (report mills levied in Question 10-6)
2-2 Specific ownership
2-3 Sales and use
2-4 Other (specify):   Property Tax TIF
2-5
2-6 Grants
2-7 Conservation Trust Funds (Lottery)
2-8 Highway Users Tax Funds (HUTF)
2-9 Other (specify): 

2-10
2-11
2-12
2-13
2-14
2-15 Debt proceeds                              
2-16
2-17 Developer Advances received                                            (should agree with line 4-4)
2-18
2-19
2-20
2-21
2-22
2-23
2-24

Line#
3-1
3-2
3-3
3-4
3-5
3-6
3-7
3-8
3-9

3-10
3-11
3-12
3-13
3-14
3-15
3-16
3-17 Debt service principal                                                                 (should agree with Part 4)
3-18
3-19 Repayment of Developer Advance Principal                     (should agree with line 4-4)
3-20
3-21 Contribution to pension plan                                                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-22 Contribution to Fire & Police Pension Assoc.                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-23
3-24
3-25
3-26

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                                   

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

                  (should agree with line 4-4, column 2)
Lease proceeds

(add lines 2-1 through 2-23)        TOTAL REVENUE   

-$                                        

-$                                        

Administrative

-$                                        

Charges for utility services

EXPENDITURES: All expenditures for all funds must be reflected in this section, including the purchase of capital assets and principal and 
interest payments on long-term debt. Financial information will not include fund equity information.

PART 3 - EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Fire and police pension

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        

Round to nearest Dollar

-$                                        

Donations

County Treasurer's Fees

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

  PART 2 - REVENUE

Description Round to nearest Dollar

REVENUE:  All revenues for all funds must be reflected in this section, including proceeds from the sale of the government's land, building, and 
equipment, and proceeds from debt or lease transactions.  Financial information will not include fund equity information.

Licenses and permits

-$                                        

Intergovernmental:

Fines and forfeits

Employee benefits

-$                                        

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

-$                                        

Description

(add lines 3-1 through 3-24)  TOTAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES                      

Debt service interest

Other (specify): 

Insurance
Accounting and legal fees

Repayment of Developer Advance Interest

If TOTAL REVENUE (Line 2-24) or TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Line 3-26) are GREATER than $100,000 - STOP.  You may not use this 
form. Please use the "Application for Exemption from Audit - LONG FORM".

Capital outlay  

Repair and maintenance
Supplies

Public health
Streets and highways -$                                        

-$                                        

Utilities and telephone
Fire/Police

-$                                        

-$                                        

Utility operations
Culture and recreation

-$                                        

Charges for services

Investment income
Special assessments

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Other (specify): 

-$                                        

-$                                        

Salaries
Payroll taxes
Contract services

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

117

Draft



Yes No
4-1

4-2

4-3

4-4

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

**Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements *Must agree to prior year-end balance
Yes No

4-5

4-6
If yes:

4-7
If yes:

4-8

Amount Total
5-1 -$                
5-2 -$                

-$               

-$                
-$                
-$                
-$                

-$               
-$               

Yes No N/A
5-4

5-5

Is the entity current in its debt service payments? If no, MUST explain below:

Please complete the following debt schedule, if applicable:
(please only include principal amounts)(enter all amount as positive 
numbers)

Is the debt repayment schedule attached? If no, MUST explain below: 

Does the entity have outstanding debt?

What are the annual lease payments?
Is the lease subject to annual appropriation?

What is the original date of the lease?

8/22/2005

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes

Part 4 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach separate documentation, if needed

Number of years of lease?

  PART 4 - DEBT OUTSTANDING, ISSUED, AND RETIRED

Retired during  
year

TOTAL

Are the entity's Investments legal in accordance with Section 24-75-601, et. 
seq., C.R.S.?

Does the entity have any lease agreements?                                                                                        

Does the entity have debt that has been refinanced that it is still responsible for?
How much? -$                                         

124,753,000.00$                     

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Notes/Loans
Lease & SBITA** Liabilities [GASB 87 & 96]
Developer Advances

Date the debt was authorized:
Does the entity intend to issue debt within the next calendar year?

Issued during  
year

If yes:

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.
Does the entity have any authorized, but unissued, debt?
How much?

                If Yes, please attach a copy of the entity's Debt Repayment Schedule. 

Are the entity's deposits in an eligible (Public Deposit Protection Act) public 
depository (Section 11-10.5-101, et seq. C.R.S.)?

If no, MUST use this space to provide any explanations:

Investments (if investment is a mutual fund, please list underlying investments):

  PART 5 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

5-3

If yes:

Other (specify): 

Please provide the entity's cash deposit and investment balances.

-$                                         

What is the amount outstanding? -$                                         

Outstanding at  
year-end

Outstanding at 
end of prior year*

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.

What is being leased?

Certificates of deposit
Total Cash Deposits

YEAR-END Total of ALL Checking and Savings Accounts

Total Investments
Total Cash and Investments

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

118

Draft



Yes No

6-1

6-2

6-3 Balance - 
beginning of the 

year*

Additions (Must 
be included in 

Part 3)
Deletions  Year-End 

Balance 

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

*must tie to prior year ending balance

Yes No
7-1
7-2

-$              
-$              
-$              
-$              

-$              

Yes No N/A
8-1

8-2

If yes:
Fund Name

Governmental/Proprietary Fund Name

TOTAL

Has the entity performed an annual inventory of capital assets in accordance with Section 
29-1-506, C.R.S.,? If no, MUST explain:

Does the entity have a volunteer firefighters' pension plan?

General Fund

Budgeted Expenditures

Did the entity file a budget with the Department of Local Affairs for the current year 
in accordance with Section 29-1-113 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain: 

  PART 6 - CAPITAL AND RIGHT-TO-USE ASSETS

  PART 7 - PENSION INFORMATION

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 
(Please enter a negative, or credit, balance)

Please indicate the amount budgeted for each fund for the year reported:

Did the entity pass an appropriations resolution, in accordance with Section 
29-1-108 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain:

Tax (property, SO, sales, etc.):

Complete the following capital & right-to-use assets table:

Land

TOTAL

Does the entity have an "old hire" firefighters' pension plan?

Total Appropriations By Fund
-$                                                    

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Part 6 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach documentation, if needed:

Part 7 - Please use this space to provide any explanations or comments:

  PART 8 - BUDGET INFORMATION

If yes:

Other (explain):

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Infrastructure
Construction In Progress (CIP)

Indicate the contributions from:

Leased & SBITA Right-to-Use Assets

State contribution amount:
Other (gifts, donations, etc.):

Buildings

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

What is the monthly benefit paid for 20 years of service per retiree as of Jan 
1?

Does the entity have capital assets?

Who administers the plan?

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

119

Draft



Yes No
9-1

Yes No

10-1
If yes: Date of formation:
10-2

10-3

10-4
If yes:

10-5
If yes:

10-6
If yes:

Yes No N/A

10-7
NEW 2023! If the entity is a Title 32 Special District formed on or after 7/1/2000, has 
the entity filed its preceding year annual report with the State Auditor as required 
under SB 21-262 [Section 32-1-207 C.R.S.]? If NO, please explain.

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Is the entity in compliance with all the provisions of TABOR [State Constitution, Article X, Section 20(5)]? 
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

Note: An election to exempt the government from the spending limitations of TABOR does not exempt the government from the 3 percent 
emergency reserve requirement.  All governments should determine if they meet this requirement of TABOR. 

Does the entity have a certified Mill Levy?

-                                           

  PART 10 - GENERAL INFORMATION

List the name of the other governmental entity and the services provided: 

Is this application for a newly formed governmental entity?

Date Filed:

-                                           

Does the entity have an agreement with another government to provide services?

Is the entity a metropolitan district?

10-4: The District was organized in conjunction with other related districts.  Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2 ,3 ,4 ,5 ,6 ,8 ,9 and 10.  
The Districts, collectively, will undertake the financing and construction of the public improvements.

-                                           

Bond Redemption mills
General/Other mills
Total mills

Please provide the following mills levied for the year reported (do not report $ amounts):

If yes:

See Below

Please list the NEW name & PRIOR name:

Streets, Safety Protection, Park and Recreation, Potable Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drainage, Transportation, Mosquito Control, General 
Operations and Maintenance, Fire Protection, District Debt, Capital Projects

  PART 9 - TAXPAYER'S BILL OF RIGHTS (TABOR)

Please indicate what services the entity provides: 

Has the entity changed its name in the past or current year?

Has the district filed a Title 32, Article 1 Special District Notice of Inactive Status  during 

If no, MUST explain:

Please use this space to provide any additional explanations or comments not previously included:

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

120

Draft



YES NO

12-1

Office of the State Auditor — Local Government Division - Exemption 
Form Electronic Signatures Policy and Procedure

Policy - Requirements

The Office of the State Auditor Local Government Audit Division may accept an electronic submission of an application for 
exemption from audit that includes governing board signatures obtained through a program such as Docusign or Echosign. 
Required elements and safeguards are as follows:

• The preparer of the application is responsible for obtaining board signatures that comply with the requirement in Section 29-1-604 
(3), C.R.S., that states the application shall be personally reviewed, approved, and signed by a majority of the members of the 
governing body.
• The application must be accompanied by the signature history document created by the electronic signature software. The 
signature history document must show when the document was created and when the document was emailed to the various 
parties, and include the dates the individual board members signed the document. The signature history must also show the 
individuals' email addresses and IP address.
• Office of the State Auditor staff will not coordinate obtaining signatures.

The application for exemption from audit form created by our office includes a section for governing body approval.  
Local governing boards note their approval and submit the application through one of the following three methods:  
1) Submit the application in hard copy via the US Mail including original signatures.  
2) Submit the application electronically via email and either,
a. Include a copy of an adopted resolution that documents formal approval by the Board, or
b. Include electronic signatures obtained through a software program such as Docusign or Echosign in accordance with the 
requirements noted above.  

A MAJORITY of the members of the governing body must sign below. 

  PART 11 - GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

If you plan to submit this form electronically, have you read the new Electronic Signature 
Policy?

Print the names of ALL members of current 
governing body below.

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

121

Draft



Print Board Member's Name

I ________David Crowder__________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2027_______________                        

David Crowder

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

7

Board 
Member           

5

Print Board Member's Name

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Board 
Member           

1

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

2

I _________Karen Voit_________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2025_______________                        

Board 
Member           

6

Print Board Member's Name

Print Board Member's Name I __________Jason Rutt________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Board 
Member           

4

Karen Voit

I __________Lisa Garcia________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Lisa Garcia

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

3
Jason Rutt

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

3/8/2024 | 15:13:58 PST

3/8/2024 | 17:25:10 EST

3/8/2024 | 15:05:29 PST

3/11/2024 | 09:29:55 MDT

122

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

This sample resolution/ordinance for exemption from audit is provided as an example of the documentation that is required. The wording 
may be used as a basis for your own local government document, if needed; however you MUST draft your own ordinance or resolution 

making any changes where applicable. Legal counsel should be consulted regarding any questions.

RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT 
(Pursuant to Section 29-1-604, C.R.S.) 

 
A RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 20XX 
FOR THE (name of government), STATE OF COLORADO. 
 
WHEREAS, the (governing body) of (name of government) wishes to claim exemption from the audit 
requirements of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 29-1-604, C.R.S., states that any local government where neither revenues nor expenditures 
exceed seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars may, with the approval of the State Auditor, be exempt from the 
provision of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 

[Choose 1 or 2 below, whichever is applicable] 
 
(1)WHEREAS, neither revenue nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $100,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and  
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual), a person skilled in governmental accounting; and 
 

OR 
 
(2)WHEREAS, neither revenues nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $750,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and 
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual or firm), an independent accountant with knowledge of governmental accounting; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, said application for exemption from audit has been completed in accordance with regulations, issued by 
the State Auditor. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved/ordained by the (governing body) of the (name of government) that the 
application for exemption from audit for (name of government) for the Fiscal Year ended ____________, 20XX, 
has been personally reviewed and is hereby approved by a majority of the (governing body) of the (name of 
government); that those members of the (governing body) have signified their approval by signing below; and that 
this resolution shall be attached to, and shall become a part of, the application for exemption from audit of the (name 
of government) for the fiscal year ended ____________, 20XX. 
 
ADOPTED THIS ___ day of _____________, A.D. 20XX. 

10

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

123

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

 
________________________ 
Mayor/President/Chairman, etc. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Town Clerk, Secretary, etc. 
 
 
      Date 
Type or Print Names of   Term 
Members of Governing Body         Expires Signature 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

124

Draft



Click Here

--or--

PRIOR YEAR FORMS ARE OBSOLETE AND WILL NOT BE 
ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED ON FORMS OTHER THAN THOSE 
PRESCRIBED BY THE OSA WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS MUST BE FULLY AND ACCURATELY COMPLETED.

FOR YOUR REFERENCE, COLORADO REVISED STATUTES 
CAN BE FOUND AT:
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/

Has the entity corrected all Prior Year Deficiencies as communicated by the OSA? 

Checkout our web portal. Register your account 
and submit electronic Applications for Exemption 

From Audit, Extension of Time to File requests, 
Audited Financial Statements, and more! See the 

link below.

Has the preparer signed the application?

Will this application be submitted electronically? Click here to go to the portal
If yes, have you read and understand the 

new Electronic Signature Policy? See 
new policy  ->

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

If yes, have you included a resolution?

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON THE MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PROPRIETARY ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON A BUDGETARY BASIS

SHORT FORM

To qualify for exemption from audit, a local government must complete an Application for Exemption from Audit EACH YEAR and 
submit it to the Office of the State Auditor (OSA).

Approval for an exemption from audit is granted only upon the review by the OSA.

IF EITHER REVENUES OR EXPENDITURES EXCEED $100,000, USE THE LONG FORM.

Will this application be submitted via a mail service? (e.g. US Post Office, FedEx, UPS, 
courier.)

If yes, does the application include ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURES from the 
MAJORITY of the governing body?

Does the resolution state that the governing body PERSONALLY reviewed and 
approved the resolution in an open public meeting?

Has the resolution been signed by a MAJORITY of the governing body? (See 
sample resolution.)

Did you include any relevant explanations for unusual items in the appropriate spaces at 
the end of each section?

Has the application been PERSONALLY reviewed and approved by the governing body?

Under the Local Government Audit Law (Section 29-1-601, et seq., C.R.S.) any local government may apply for an exemption from 
audit if neither revenues nor expenditures exceed $750,000 in the year.

READ ALL INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING AND SUBMITTING THIS FORM
ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BE FILED WITH THE OSA WITHIN 3 MONTHS AFTER THE ACCOUNTING YEAR-END.

FOR EXAMPLE, APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE OSA ON OR BEFORE MARCH 31 FOR GOVERNMENTS WITH A 
DECEMBER 31 YEAR-END. APPLICATIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME

POSTMARK DATES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AS PROOF OF SUBMISSION ON OR BEFORE THE STATUATORY DEADLINE

CHECKLIST

EXEMPTIONS FROM AUDIT ARE NOT AUTOMATIC

Any preparer of an Application for Exemption from Audit-SHORT FORM must be a person skilled in governmental accounting.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

125

Draft

http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


Register and submit your Applications at our web portal! For faster processing the web portal is the preferred method for submission

MAIL:

Failure to file an application or denial of the request could cause the local government to lose its exemption from audit for that year and the 
ensuing year. 

In that event, AN AUDIT SHALL BE REQUIRED.

All Applications for Exemption from Audit are subject to review and approval by the Office of the State Auditor.   

1525 Sherman St., 7th Floor
Denver, CO  80203
Please Note:  The OSA's email addresses have changed as of December 1, 2023.  Please ensure you are using the email address 
noted below. 

Email: osa.lg@coleg.gov OR Phone: 303-869-3000

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lgWEB PORTAL:

Governmental Activity should be reported on the Modified Accrual Basis

Local Government Audit Division

Proprietary Activity should be reported on the Cash or Budgetary Basis

FILING METHODS

IMPORTANT!

Office of the State Auditor

QUESTIONS?

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

126

Draft

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


Please indicate whether the following financial information is recorded 
using Governmental or Proprietary fund types

GOVERNMENTAL 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS)

PROPRIETARY 
(CASH OR BUDGETARY BASIS)

PREPARER (SIGNATURE REQUIRED) DATE PREPARED

FIRM NAME (if applicable) 

PHONE

TITLE
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

For the Year Ended
12/31/23

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

or fiscal year ended:

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 8

970-669-3611

District Accountant

550 W Eisenhower Blvd, Loveland, CO 80537

550 W Eisenhower Blvd

ireneb@pcgi.com

Loveland, CO 80537

SHORT FORM

CONTACT PERSON
PHONE
EMAIL

Irene Buenavista

PART 1 -  CERTIFICATION OF PREPARER

NAME:

I certify that I am skilled in governmental accounting and that the information in the application is complete and accurate, to the best of 
my knowledge. 

NAME OF GOVERNMENT
ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista
970-669-3611

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

ADDRESS

3

3/7/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

127

Draft

mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com


Line#
2-1 Taxes: Property (report mills levied in Question 10-6)
2-2 Specific ownership
2-3 Sales and use
2-4 Other (specify):   Property Tax TIF
2-5
2-6 Grants
2-7 Conservation Trust Funds (Lottery)
2-8 Highway Users Tax Funds (HUTF)
2-9 Other (specify): 

2-10
2-11
2-12
2-13
2-14
2-15 Debt proceeds                              
2-16
2-17 Developer Advances received                                            (should agree with line 4-4)
2-18
2-19
2-20
2-21
2-22
2-23
2-24

Line#
3-1
3-2
3-3
3-4
3-5
3-6
3-7
3-8
3-9

3-10
3-11
3-12
3-13
3-14
3-15
3-16
3-17 Debt service principal                                                                 (should agree with Part 4)
3-18
3-19 Repayment of Developer Advance Principal                     (should agree with line 4-4)
3-20
3-21 Contribution to pension plan                                                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-22 Contribution to Fire & Police Pension Assoc.                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-23
3-24
3-25
3-26

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                                   

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

                  (should agree with line 4-4, column 2)
Lease proceeds

(add lines 2-1 through 2-23)        TOTAL REVENUE   

-$                                        

-$                                        

Administrative

-$                                        

Charges for utility services

EXPENDITURES: All expenditures for all funds must be reflected in this section, including the purchase of capital assets and principal and 
interest payments on long-term debt. Financial information will not include fund equity information.

PART 3 - EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Fire and police pension

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        

Round to nearest Dollar

-$                                        

Donations

County Treasurer's Fees

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

  PART 2 - REVENUE

Description Round to nearest Dollar

REVENUE:  All revenues for all funds must be reflected in this section, including proceeds from the sale of the government's land, building, and 
equipment, and proceeds from debt or lease transactions.  Financial information will not include fund equity information.

Licenses and permits

-$                                        

Intergovernmental:

Fines and forfeits

Employee benefits

-$                                        

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

-$                                        

Description

(add lines 3-1 through 3-24)  TOTAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES                      

Debt service interest

Other (specify): 

Insurance
Accounting and legal fees

Repayment of Developer Advance Interest

If TOTAL REVENUE (Line 2-24) or TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Line 3-26) are GREATER than $100,000 - STOP.  You may not use this 
form. Please use the "Application for Exemption from Audit - LONG FORM".

Capital outlay  

Repair and maintenance
Supplies

Public health
Streets and highways -$                                        

-$                                        

Utilities and telephone
Fire/Police

-$                                        

-$                                        

Utility operations
Culture and recreation

-$                                        

Charges for services

Investment income
Special assessments

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Other (specify): 

-$                                        

-$                                        

Salaries
Payroll taxes
Contract services

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

128

Draft



Yes No
4-1

4-2

4-3

4-4

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

**Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements *Must agree to prior year-end balance
Yes No

4-5

4-6
If yes:

4-7
If yes:

4-8

Amount Total
5-1 -$                
5-2 -$                

-$               

-$                
-$                
-$                
-$                

-$               
-$               

Yes No N/A
5-4

5-5

Is the entity current in its debt service payments? If no, MUST explain below:

Please complete the following debt schedule, if applicable:
(please only include principal amounts)(enter all amount as positive 
numbers)

Is the debt repayment schedule attached? If no, MUST explain below: 

Does the entity have outstanding debt?

What are the annual lease payments?
Is the lease subject to annual appropriation?

What is the original date of the lease?

8/22/2005

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes

Part 4 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach separate documentation, if needed

Number of years of lease?

  PART 4 - DEBT OUTSTANDING, ISSUED, AND RETIRED

Retired during  
year

TOTAL

Are the entity's Investments legal in accordance with Section 24-75-601, et. 
seq., C.R.S.?

Does the entity have any lease agreements?                                                                                        

Does the entity have debt that has been refinanced that it is still responsible for?
How much? -$                                         

124,753,000.00$                     

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Notes/Loans
Lease & SBITA** Liabilities [GASB 87 & 96]
Developer Advances

Date the debt was authorized:
Does the entity intend to issue debt within the next calendar year?

Issued during  
year

If yes:

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.
Does the entity have any authorized, but unissued, debt?
How much?

                If Yes, please attach a copy of the entity's Debt Repayment Schedule. 

Are the entity's deposits in an eligible (Public Deposit Protection Act) public 
depository (Section 11-10.5-101, et seq. C.R.S.)?

If no, MUST use this space to provide any explanations:

Investments (if investment is a mutual fund, please list underlying investments):

  PART 5 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

5-3

If yes:

Other (specify): 

Please provide the entity's cash deposit and investment balances.

-$                                         

What is the amount outstanding? -$                                         

Outstanding at  
year-end

Outstanding at 
end of prior year*

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.

What is being leased?

Certificates of deposit
Total Cash Deposits

YEAR-END Total of ALL Checking and Savings Accounts

Total Investments
Total Cash and Investments

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

129

Draft



Yes No

6-1

6-2

6-3 Balance - 
beginning of the 

year*

Additions (Must 
be included in 

Part 3)
Deletions  Year-End 

Balance 

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

*must tie to prior year ending balance

Yes No
7-1
7-2

-$              
-$              
-$              
-$              

-$              

Yes No N/A
8-1

8-2

If yes:
Fund Name

Governmental/Proprietary Fund Name

TOTAL

Has the entity performed an annual inventory of capital assets in accordance with Section 
29-1-506, C.R.S.,? If no, MUST explain:

Does the entity have a volunteer firefighters' pension plan?

General Fund

Budgeted Expenditures

Did the entity file a budget with the Department of Local Affairs for the current year 
in accordance with Section 29-1-113 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain: 

  PART 6 - CAPITAL AND RIGHT-TO-USE ASSETS

  PART 7 - PENSION INFORMATION

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 
(Please enter a negative, or credit, balance)

Please indicate the amount budgeted for each fund for the year reported:

Did the entity pass an appropriations resolution, in accordance with Section 
29-1-108 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain:

Tax (property, SO, sales, etc.):

Complete the following capital & right-to-use assets table:

Land

TOTAL

Does the entity have an "old hire" firefighters' pension plan?

Total Appropriations By Fund
-$                                                    

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Part 6 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach documentation, if needed:

Part 7 - Please use this space to provide any explanations or comments:

  PART 8 - BUDGET INFORMATION

If yes:

Other (explain):

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Infrastructure
Construction In Progress (CIP)

Indicate the contributions from:

Leased & SBITA Right-to-Use Assets

State contribution amount:
Other (gifts, donations, etc.):

Buildings

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

What is the monthly benefit paid for 20 years of service per retiree as of Jan 
1?

Does the entity have capital assets?

Who administers the plan?

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

130

Draft



Yes No
9-1

Yes No

10-1
If yes: Date of formation:
10-2

10-3

10-4
If yes:

10-5
If yes:

10-6
If yes:

Yes No N/A

10-7
NEW 2023! If the entity is a Title 32 Special District formed on or after 7/1/2000, has 
the entity filed its preceding year annual report with the State Auditor as required 
under SB 21-262 [Section 32-1-207 C.R.S.]? If NO, please explain.

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Is the entity in compliance with all the provisions of TABOR [State Constitution, Article X, Section 20(5)]? 
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

Note: An election to exempt the government from the spending limitations of TABOR does not exempt the government from the 3 percent 
emergency reserve requirement.  All governments should determine if they meet this requirement of TABOR. 

Does the entity have a certified Mill Levy?

-                                           

  PART 10 - GENERAL INFORMATION

List the name of the other governmental entity and the services provided: 

Is this application for a newly formed governmental entity?

Date Filed:

-                                           

Does the entity have an agreement with another government to provide services?

Is the entity a metropolitan district?

10-4: The District was organized in conjunction with other related districts.  Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2 ,3 ,4 ,5 ,6, 7, 9 and 10.  
The Districts, collectively, will undertake the financing and construction of the public improvements.

-                                           

Bond Redemption mills
General/Other mills
Total mills

Please provide the following mills levied for the year reported (do not report $ amounts):

If yes:

See Below

Please list the NEW name & PRIOR name:

Streets, Safety Protection, Park and Recreation, Potable Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drainage, Transportation, Mosquito Control, General 
Operations and Maintenance, Fire Protection, District Debt, Capital Projects

  PART 9 - TAXPAYER'S BILL OF RIGHTS (TABOR)

Please indicate what services the entity provides: 

Has the entity changed its name in the past or current year?

Has the district filed a Title 32, Article 1 Special District Notice of Inactive Status  during 

If no, MUST explain:

Please use this space to provide any additional explanations or comments not previously included:

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

131

Draft



YES NO

12-1

Office of the State Auditor — Local Government Division - Exemption 
Form Electronic Signatures Policy and Procedure

Policy - Requirements

The Office of the State Auditor Local Government Audit Division may accept an electronic submission of an application for 
exemption from audit that includes governing board signatures obtained through a program such as Docusign or Echosign. 
Required elements and safeguards are as follows:

• The preparer of the application is responsible for obtaining board signatures that comply with the requirement in Section 29-1-604 
(3), C.R.S., that states the application shall be personally reviewed, approved, and signed by a majority of the members of the 
governing body.
• The application must be accompanied by the signature history document created by the electronic signature software. The 
signature history document must show when the document was created and when the document was emailed to the various 
parties, and include the dates the individual board members signed the document. The signature history must also show the 
individuals' email addresses and IP address.
• Office of the State Auditor staff will not coordinate obtaining signatures.

The application for exemption from audit form created by our office includes a section for governing body approval.  
Local governing boards note their approval and submit the application through one of the following three methods:  
1) Submit the application in hard copy via the US Mail including original signatures.  
2) Submit the application electronically via email and either,
a. Include a copy of an adopted resolution that documents formal approval by the Board, or
b. Include electronic signatures obtained through a software program such as Docusign or Echosign in accordance with the 
requirements noted above.  

A MAJORITY of the members of the governing body must sign below. 

  PART 11 - GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

If you plan to submit this form electronically, have you read the new Electronic Signature 
Policy?

Print the names of ALL members of current 
governing body below.

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

132

Draft



Print Board Member's Name

I ________David Crowder__________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2027_______________                        

David Crowder

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

7

Board 
Member           

5

Print Board Member's Name

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Board 
Member           

1

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

2

I _________Karen Voit_________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2025_______________                        

Board 
Member           

6

Print Board Member's Name

Print Board Member's Name I __________Jason Rutt________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Board 
Member           

4

Karen Voit

I __________Lisa Garcia________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Lisa Garcia

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

3
Jason Rutt

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

3/8/2024 | 15:13:58 PST

3/8/2024 | 17:25:10 EST

3/8/2024 | 15:05:29 PST

3/11/2024 | 09:29:55 MDT

133

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

This sample resolution/ordinance for exemption from audit is provided as an example of the documentation that is required. The wording 
may be used as a basis for your own local government document, if needed; however you MUST draft your own ordinance or resolution 

making any changes where applicable. Legal counsel should be consulted regarding any questions.

RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT 
(Pursuant to Section 29-1-604, C.R.S.) 

 
A RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 20XX 
FOR THE (name of government), STATE OF COLORADO. 
 
WHEREAS, the (governing body) of (name of government) wishes to claim exemption from the audit 
requirements of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 29-1-604, C.R.S., states that any local government where neither revenues nor expenditures 
exceed seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars may, with the approval of the State Auditor, be exempt from the 
provision of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 

[Choose 1 or 2 below, whichever is applicable] 
 
(1)WHEREAS, neither revenue nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $100,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and  
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual), a person skilled in governmental accounting; and 
 

OR 
 
(2)WHEREAS, neither revenues nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $750,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and 
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual or firm), an independent accountant with knowledge of governmental accounting; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, said application for exemption from audit has been completed in accordance with regulations, issued by 
the State Auditor. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved/ordained by the (governing body) of the (name of government) that the 
application for exemption from audit for (name of government) for the Fiscal Year ended ____________, 20XX, 
has been personally reviewed and is hereby approved by a majority of the (governing body) of the (name of 
government); that those members of the (governing body) have signified their approval by signing below; and that 
this resolution shall be attached to, and shall become a part of, the application for exemption from audit of the (name 
of government) for the fiscal year ended ____________, 20XX. 
 
ADOPTED THIS ___ day of _____________, A.D. 20XX. 

10

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

134

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

 
________________________ 
Mayor/President/Chairman, etc. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Town Clerk, Secretary, etc. 
 
 
      Date 
Type or Print Names of   Term 
Members of Governing Body         Expires Signature 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

135

Draft



Click Here

--or--

Under the Local Government Audit Law (Section 29-1-601, et seq., C.R.S.) any local government may apply for an exemption from 
audit if neither revenues nor expenditures exceed $750,000 in the year.

READ ALL INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING AND SUBMITTING THIS FORM
ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BE FILED WITH THE OSA WITHIN 3 MONTHS AFTER THE ACCOUNTING YEAR-END.

FOR EXAMPLE, APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE OSA ON OR BEFORE MARCH 31 FOR GOVERNMENTS WITH A 
DECEMBER 31 YEAR-END. APPLICATIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME

POSTMARK DATES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AS PROOF OF SUBMISSION ON OR BEFORE THE STATUATORY DEADLINE

CHECKLIST

EXEMPTIONS FROM AUDIT ARE NOT AUTOMATIC

Any preparer of an Application for Exemption from Audit-SHORT FORM must be a person skilled in governmental accounting.

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

If yes, have you included a resolution?

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON THE MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PROPRIETARY ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON A BUDGETARY BASIS

SHORT FORM

To qualify for exemption from audit, a local government must complete an Application for Exemption from Audit EACH YEAR and 
submit it to the Office of the State Auditor (OSA).

Approval for an exemption from audit is granted only upon the review by the OSA.

IF EITHER REVENUES OR EXPENDITURES EXCEED $100,000, USE THE LONG FORM.

Will this application be submitted via a mail service? (e.g. US Post Office, FedEx, UPS, 
courier.)

If yes, does the application include ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURES from the 
MAJORITY of the governing body?

Does the resolution state that the governing body PERSONALLY reviewed and 
approved the resolution in an open public meeting?

Has the resolution been signed by a MAJORITY of the governing body? (See 
sample resolution.)

Did you include any relevant explanations for unusual items in the appropriate spaces at 
the end of each section?

Has the application been PERSONALLY reviewed and approved by the governing body?

Has the entity corrected all Prior Year Deficiencies as communicated by the OSA? 

Checkout our web portal. Register your account 
and submit electronic Applications for Exemption 

From Audit, Extension of Time to File requests, 
Audited Financial Statements, and more! See the 

link below.

Has the preparer signed the application?

Will this application be submitted electronically? Click here to go to the portal
If yes, have you read and understand the 

new Electronic Signature Policy? See 
new policy  ->

PRIOR YEAR FORMS ARE OBSOLETE AND WILL NOT BE 
ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED ON FORMS OTHER THAN THOSE 
PRESCRIBED BY THE OSA WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS MUST BE FULLY AND ACCURATELY COMPLETED.

FOR YOUR REFERENCE, COLORADO REVISED STATUTES 
CAN BE FOUND AT:
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

136

Draft

http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/


Register and submit your Applications at our web portal! For faster processing the web portal is the preferred method for submission

Proprietary Activity should be reported on the Cash or Budgetary Basis

FILING METHODS

IMPORTANT!

Office of the State Auditor

QUESTIONS?

Governmental Activity should be reported on the Modified Accrual Basis

Local Government Audit Division

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lgWEB PORTAL:

1525 Sherman St., 7th Floor
Denver, CO  80203
Please Note:  The OSA's email addresses have changed as of December 1, 2023.  Please ensure you are using the email address 
noted below. 

Email: osa.lg@coleg.gov OR Phone: 303-869-3000

MAIL:

Failure to file an application or denial of the request could cause the local government to lose its exemption from audit for that year and the 
ensuing year. 

In that event, AN AUDIT SHALL BE REQUIRED.

All Applications for Exemption from Audit are subject to review and approval by the Office of the State Auditor.   

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

137

Draft

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista

PART 1 -  CERTIFICATION OF PREPARER

NAME:

I certify that I am skilled in governmental accounting and that the information in the application is complete and accurate, to the best of 
my knowledge. 

NAME OF GOVERNMENT
ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista
970-669-3611

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.
550 W Eisenhower Blvd

ireneb@pcgi.com

Loveland, CO 80537

SHORT FORM

CONTACT PERSON
PHONE
EMAIL

PREPARER (SIGNATURE REQUIRED) DATE PREPARED

FIRM NAME (if applicable) 

PHONE

TITLE
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

For the Year Ended
12/31/23

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

or fiscal year ended:

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 9

970-669-3611

District Accountant

550 W Eisenhower Blvd, Loveland, CO 80537

Please indicate whether the following financial information is recorded 
using Governmental or Proprietary fund types

GOVERNMENTAL 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS)

PROPRIETARY 
(CASH OR BUDGETARY BASIS)

3

3/7/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

138

Draft

mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com


Line#
2-1 Taxes: Property (report mills levied in Question 10-6)
2-2 Specific ownership
2-3 Sales and use
2-4 Other (specify):   Property Tax TIF
2-5
2-6 Grants
2-7 Conservation Trust Funds (Lottery)
2-8 Highway Users Tax Funds (HUTF)
2-9 Other (specify): 

2-10
2-11
2-12
2-13
2-14
2-15 Debt proceeds                              
2-16
2-17 Developer Advances received                                            (should agree with line 4-4)
2-18
2-19
2-20
2-21
2-22
2-23
2-24

Line#
3-1
3-2
3-3
3-4
3-5
3-6
3-7
3-8
3-9

3-10
3-11
3-12
3-13
3-14
3-15
3-16
3-17 Debt service principal                                                                 (should agree with Part 4)
3-18
3-19 Repayment of Developer Advance Principal                     (should agree with line 4-4)
3-20
3-21 Contribution to pension plan                                                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-22 Contribution to Fire & Police Pension Assoc.                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-23
3-24
3-25
3-26

Charges for services

Investment income
Special assessments

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Other (specify): 

-$                                        

-$                                        

Salaries
Payroll taxes
Contract services

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

Repair and maintenance
Supplies

Public health
Streets and highways -$                                        

-$                                        

Utilities and telephone
Fire/Police

-$                                        

-$                                        

Utility operations
Culture and recreation

-$                                        

Licenses and permits

-$                                        

Intergovernmental:

Fines and forfeits

Employee benefits

-$                                        

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

-$                                        

Description

(add lines 3-1 through 3-24)  TOTAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES                      

Debt service interest

Other (specify): 

Insurance
Accounting and legal fees

Repayment of Developer Advance Interest

If TOTAL REVENUE (Line 2-24) or TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Line 3-26) are GREATER than $100,000 - STOP.  You may not use this 
form. Please use the "Application for Exemption from Audit - LONG FORM".

Capital outlay  

  PART 2 - REVENUE

Description Round to nearest Dollar

REVENUE:  All revenues for all funds must be reflected in this section, including proceeds from the sale of the government's land, building, and 
equipment, and proceeds from debt or lease transactions.  Financial information will not include fund equity information.

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        

Round to nearest Dollar

-$                                        

Donations

County Treasurer's Fees

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

EXPENDITURES: All expenditures for all funds must be reflected in this section, including the purchase of capital assets and principal and 
interest payments on long-term debt. Financial information will not include fund equity information.

PART 3 - EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Fire and police pension

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

Charges for utility services
                  (should agree with line 4-4, column 2)

Lease proceeds

(add lines 2-1 through 2-23)        TOTAL REVENUE   

-$                                        

-$                                        

Administrative

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                                   

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

139

Draft



Yes No
4-1

4-2

4-3

4-4

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

**Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements *Must agree to prior year-end balance
Yes No

4-5

4-6
If yes:

4-7
If yes:

4-8

Amount Total
5-1 -$                
5-2 -$                

-$               

-$                
-$                
-$                
-$                

-$               
-$               

Yes No N/A
5-4

5-5

Certificates of deposit
Total Cash Deposits

YEAR-END Total of ALL Checking and Savings Accounts

Total Investments
Total Cash and Investments

Outstanding at  
year-end

Outstanding at 
end of prior year*

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.

What is being leased?

Other (specify): 

Please provide the entity's cash deposit and investment balances.

-$                                         

What is the amount outstanding? -$                                         

Investments (if investment is a mutual fund, please list underlying investments):

  PART 5 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

5-3

If yes:

Are the entity's deposits in an eligible (Public Deposit Protection Act) public 
depository (Section 11-10.5-101, et seq. C.R.S.)?

If no, MUST use this space to provide any explanations:

If yes:

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.
Does the entity have any authorized, but unissued, debt?
How much?

                If Yes, please attach a copy of the entity's Debt Repayment Schedule. 

How much? -$                                         

124,753,000.00$                     

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Notes/Loans
Lease & SBITA** Liabilities [GASB 87 & 96]
Developer Advances

Date the debt was authorized:
Does the entity intend to issue debt within the next calendar year?

Issued during  
year

Does the entity have any lease agreements?                                                                                        

Does the entity have debt that has been refinanced that it is still responsible for?

Number of years of lease?

  PART 4 - DEBT OUTSTANDING, ISSUED, AND RETIRED

Retired during  
year

TOTAL

Are the entity's Investments legal in accordance with Section 24-75-601, et. 
seq., C.R.S.?

What is the original date of the lease?

8/22/2005

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes

Part 4 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach separate documentation, if needed

Please complete the following debt schedule, if applicable:
(please only include principal amounts)(enter all amount as positive 
numbers)

Is the debt repayment schedule attached? If no, MUST explain below: 

Does the entity have outstanding debt?

What are the annual lease payments?
Is the lease subject to annual appropriation?

Is the entity current in its debt service payments? If no, MUST explain below:

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

140

Draft



Yes No

6-1

6-2

6-3 Balance - 
beginning of the 

year*

Additions (Must 
be included in 

Part 3)
Deletions  Year-End 

Balance 

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

*must tie to prior year ending balance

Yes No
7-1
7-2

-$              
-$              
-$              
-$              

-$              

Yes No N/A
8-1

8-2

If yes:

Buildings

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

What is the monthly benefit paid for 20 years of service per retiree as of Jan 
1?

Does the entity have capital assets?

Who administers the plan?

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Infrastructure
Construction In Progress (CIP)

Indicate the contributions from:

Leased & SBITA Right-to-Use Assets

State contribution amount:
Other (gifts, donations, etc.):

Part 6 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach documentation, if needed:

Part 7 - Please use this space to provide any explanations or comments:

  PART 8 - BUDGET INFORMATION

If yes:

Other (explain):

TOTAL

Does the entity have an "old hire" firefighters' pension plan?

Total Appropriations By Fund
-$                                                    

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Complete the following capital & right-to-use assets table:

Land

Has the entity performed an annual inventory of capital assets in accordance with Section 
29-1-506, C.R.S.,? If no, MUST explain:

Does the entity have a volunteer firefighters' pension plan?

General Fund

Budgeted Expenditures

Did the entity file a budget with the Department of Local Affairs for the current year 
in accordance with Section 29-1-113 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain: 

  PART 6 - CAPITAL AND RIGHT-TO-USE ASSETS

  PART 7 - PENSION INFORMATION

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 
(Please enter a negative, or credit, balance)

Please indicate the amount budgeted for each fund for the year reported:

Did the entity pass an appropriations resolution, in accordance with Section 
29-1-108 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain:

Tax (property, SO, sales, etc.):

Fund Name
Governmental/Proprietary Fund Name

TOTAL

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

141

Draft



Yes No
9-1

Yes No

10-1
If yes: Date of formation:
10-2

10-3

10-4
If yes:

10-5
If yes:

10-6
If yes:

Yes No N/A

10-7

Has the entity changed its name in the past or current year?

Has the district filed a Title 32, Article 1 Special District Notice of Inactive Status  during 

If no, MUST explain:

Please use this space to provide any additional explanations or comments not previously included:

Streets, Safety Protection, Park and Recreation, Potable Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drainage, Transportation, Mosquito Control, General 
Operations and Maintenance, Fire Protection, District Debt, Capital Projects

  PART 9 - TAXPAYER'S BILL OF RIGHTS (TABOR)

Please indicate what services the entity provides: 

If yes:

See Below

Please list the NEW name & PRIOR name:

-                                           

Does the entity have an agreement with another government to provide services?

Is the entity a metropolitan district?

10-4: The District was organized in conjunction with other related districts.  Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2 ,3 ,4 ,5 ,6, 7, 8 and 10.  
The Districts, collectively, will undertake the financing and construction of the public improvements.

-                                           

Bond Redemption mills
General/Other mills
Total mills

Please provide the following mills levied for the year reported (do not report $ amounts):

  PART 10 - GENERAL INFORMATION

List the name of the other governmental entity and the services provided: 

Is this application for a newly formed governmental entity?

Date Filed:

Does the entity have a certified Mill Levy?

-                                           

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Is the entity in compliance with all the provisions of TABOR [State Constitution, Article X, Section 20(5)]? 
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

Note: An election to exempt the government from the spending limitations of TABOR does not exempt the government from the 3 percent 
emergency reserve requirement.  All governments should determine if they meet this requirement of TABOR. 

NEW 2023! If the entity is a Title 32 Special District formed on or after 7/1/2000, has 
the entity filed its preceding year annual report with the State Auditor as required 
under SB 21-262 [Section 32-1-207 C.R.S.]? If NO, please explain.

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

142

Draft



YES NO

12-1

Print the names of ALL members of current 
governing body below.

Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

If you plan to submit this form electronically, have you read the new Electronic Signature 
Policy?

A MAJORITY of the members of the governing body must sign below. 

  PART 11 - GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL

Office of the State Auditor — Local Government Division - Exemption 
Form Electronic Signatures Policy and Procedure

Policy - Requirements

The Office of the State Auditor Local Government Audit Division may accept an electronic submission of an application for 
exemption from audit that includes governing board signatures obtained through a program such as Docusign or Echosign. 
Required elements and safeguards are as follows:

• The preparer of the application is responsible for obtaining board signatures that comply with the requirement in Section 29-1-604 
(3), C.R.S., that states the application shall be personally reviewed, approved, and signed by a majority of the members of the 
governing body.
• The application must be accompanied by the signature history document created by the electronic signature software. The 
signature history document must show when the document was created and when the document was emailed to the various 
parties, and include the dates the individual board members signed the document. The signature history must also show the 
individuals' email addresses and IP address.
• Office of the State Auditor staff will not coordinate obtaining signatures.

The application for exemption from audit form created by our office includes a section for governing body approval.  
Local governing boards note their approval and submit the application through one of the following three methods:  
1) Submit the application in hard copy via the US Mail including original signatures.  
2) Submit the application electronically via email and either,
a. Include a copy of an adopted resolution that documents formal approval by the Board, or
b. Include electronic signatures obtained through a software program such as Docusign or Echosign in accordance with the 
requirements noted above.  

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

143

Draft



Jason Rutt
Board 

Member           
3

Board 
Member           

6

Print Board Member's Name

Print Board Member's Name I __________Jason Rutt________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Board 
Member           

4

Karen Voit

I __________Lisa Garcia________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Lisa Garcia

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

1

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

2

I _________Karen Voit_________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2025_______________                        

Print Board Member's Name

I ________David Crowder__________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2027_______________                        

David Crowder

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

7

Board 
Member           

5

Print Board Member's Name

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

3/8/2024 | 15:13:58 PST

3/8/2024 | 17:25:10 EST

3/8/2024 | 15:05:29 PST

3/11/2024 | 09:29:55 MDT

144

Draft



This sample resolution/ordinance for exemption from audit is provided as an example of the documentation that is required. The wording 
may be used as a basis for your own local government document, if needed; however you MUST draft your own ordinance or resolution 

making any changes where applicable. Legal counsel should be consulted regarding any questions.

EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT 
(Pursuant to Section 29-1-604, C.R.S.) 

 
A RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 20XX 
FOR THE (name of government), STATE OF COLORADO. 
 
WHEREAS, the (governing body) of (name of government) wishes to claim exemption from the audit 
requirements of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 29-1-604, C.R.S., states that any local government where neither revenues nor expenditures 
exceed seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars may, with the approval of the State Auditor, be exempt from the 
provision of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 

[Choose 1 or 2 below, whichever is applicable] 
 
(1)WHEREAS, neither revenue nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $100,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and  
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual), a person skilled in governmental accounting; and 
 

OR 
 
(2)WHEREAS, neither revenues nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $750,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and 
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual or firm), an independent accountant with knowledge of governmental accounting; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, said application for exemption from audit has been completed in accordance with regulations, issued by 
the State Auditor. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved/ordained by the (governing body) of the (name of government) that the 
application for exemption from audit for (name of government) for the Fiscal Year ended ____________, 20XX, 
has been personally reviewed and is hereby approved by a majority of the (governing body) of the (name of 
government); that those members of the (governing body) have signified their approval by signing below; and that 
this resolution shall be attached to, and shall become a part of, the application for exemption from audit of the (name 
of government) for the fiscal year ended ____________, 20XX. 
 
ADOPTED THIS ___ day of _____________, A.D. 20XX. 

10

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

145

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

 
________________________ 
Mayor/President/Chairman, etc. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Town Clerk, Secretary, etc. 
 
 
      Date 
Type or Print Names of   Term 
Members of Governing Body         Expires Signature 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

146

Draft



Click Here

--or--

PRIOR YEAR FORMS ARE OBSOLETE AND WILL NOT BE 
ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS SUBMITTED ON FORMS OTHER THAN THOSE 
PRESCRIBED BY THE OSA WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.
APPLICATIONS MUST BE FULLY AND ACCURATELY COMPLETED.

FOR YOUR REFERENCE, COLORADO REVISED STATUTES 
CAN BE FOUND AT:
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/

Has the entity corrected all Prior Year Deficiencies as communicated by the OSA? 

Checkout our web portal. Register your account 
and submit electronic Applications for Exemption 

From Audit, Extension of Time to File requests, 
Audited Financial Statements, and more! See the 

link below.

Has the preparer signed the application?

Will this application be submitted electronically? Click here to go to the portal
If yes, have you read and understand the 

new Electronic Signature Policy? See 
new policy  ->

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

If yes, have you included a resolution?

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON THE MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PROPRIETARY ACTIVITY SHOULD BE REPORTED ON A BUDGETARY BASIS

SHORT FORM

To qualify for exemption from audit, a local government must complete an Application for Exemption from Audit EACH YEAR and 
submit it to the Office of the State Auditor (OSA).

Approval for an exemption from audit is granted only upon the review by the OSA.

IF EITHER REVENUES OR EXPENDITURES EXCEED $100,000, USE THE LONG FORM.

Will this application be submitted via a mail service? (e.g. US Post Office, FedEx, UPS, 
courier.)

If yes, does the application include ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURES from the 
MAJORITY of the governing body?

Does the resolution state that the governing body PERSONALLY reviewed and 
approved the resolution in an open public meeting?

Has the resolution been signed by a MAJORITY of the governing body? (See 
sample resolution.)

Did you include any relevant explanations for unusual items in the appropriate spaces at 
the end of each section?

Has the application been PERSONALLY reviewed and approved by the governing body?

Under the Local Government Audit Law (Section 29-1-601, et seq., C.R.S.) any local government may apply for an exemption from 
audit if neither revenues nor expenditures exceed $750,000 in the year.

READ ALL INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE COMPLETING AND SUBMITTING THIS FORM
ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BE FILED WITH THE OSA WITHIN 3 MONTHS AFTER THE ACCOUNTING YEAR-END.

FOR EXAMPLE, APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE OSA ON OR BEFORE MARCH 31 FOR GOVERNMENTS WITH A 
DECEMBER 31 YEAR-END. APPLICATIONS FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT ARE NOT ELIGIBLE FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME

POSTMARK DATES WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AS PROOF OF SUBMISSION ON OR BEFORE THE STATUATORY DEADLINE

CHECKLIST

EXEMPTIONS FROM AUDIT ARE NOT AUTOMATIC

Any preparer of an Application for Exemption from Audit-SHORT FORM must be a person skilled in governmental accounting.

1

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

147

Draft

http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
http://www.lexisnexis.com/hottopics/Colorado/
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


Register and submit your Applications at our web portal! For faster processing the web portal is the preferred method for submission

MAIL:

Failure to file an application or denial of the request could cause the local government to lose its exemption from audit for that year and the 
ensuing year. 

In that event, AN AUDIT SHALL BE REQUIRED.

All Applications for Exemption from Audit are subject to review and approval by the Office of the State Auditor.   

1525 Sherman St., 7th Floor
Denver, CO  80203
Please Note:  The OSA's email addresses have changed as of December 1, 2023.  Please ensure you are using the email address 
noted below. 

Email: osa.lg@coleg.gov OR Phone: 303-869-3000

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lgWEB PORTAL:

Governmental Activity should be reported on the Modified Accrual Basis

Local Government Audit Division

Proprietary Activity should be reported on the Cash or Budgetary Basis

FILING METHODS

IMPORTANT!

Office of the State Auditor

QUESTIONS?

2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

148

Draft

https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg
https://apps.leg.co.gov/osa/lg


Please indicate whether the following financial information is recorded 
using Governmental or Proprietary fund types

GOVERNMENTAL 
(MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS)

PROPRIETARY 
(CASH OR BUDGETARY BASIS)

PREPARER (SIGNATURE REQUIRED) DATE PREPARED

FIRM NAME (if applicable) 

PHONE

TITLE
Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

For the Year Ended
12/31/23

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT

or fiscal year ended:

Horizon Metropolitan District No. 10

970-669-3611

District Accountant

550 W Eisenhower Blvd, Loveland, CO 80537

550 W Eisenhower Blvd

ireneb@pcgi.com

Loveland, CO 80537

SHORT FORM

CONTACT PERSON
PHONE
EMAIL

Irene Buenavista

PART 1 -  CERTIFICATION OF PREPARER

NAME:

I certify that I am skilled in governmental accounting and that the information in the application is complete and accurate, to the best of 
my knowledge. 

NAME OF GOVERNMENT
ADDRESS

Irene Buenavista
970-669-3611

c/o Pinnacle Consulting Group, Inc.

ADDRESS

3

3/7/2024

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

149

Draft

mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com
mailto:ireneb@pcgi.com


Line#
2-1 Taxes: Property (report mills levied in Question 10-6)
2-2 Specific ownership
2-3 Sales and use
2-4 Other (specify):   Property Tax TIF
2-5
2-6 Grants
2-7 Conservation Trust Funds (Lottery)
2-8 Highway Users Tax Funds (HUTF)
2-9 Other (specify): 

2-10
2-11
2-12
2-13
2-14
2-15 Debt proceeds                              
2-16
2-17 Developer Advances received                                            (should agree with line 4-4)
2-18
2-19
2-20
2-21
2-22
2-23
2-24

Line#
3-1
3-2
3-3
3-4
3-5
3-6
3-7
3-8
3-9

3-10
3-11
3-12
3-13
3-14
3-15
3-16
3-17 Debt service principal                                                                 (should agree with Part 4)
3-18
3-19 Repayment of Developer Advance Principal                     (should agree with line 4-4)
3-20
3-21 Contribution to pension plan                                                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-22 Contribution to Fire & Police Pension Assoc.                      (should agree to line 7-2)
3-23
3-24
3-25
3-26

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                                   

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

                  (should agree with line 4-4, column 2)
Lease proceeds

(add lines 2-1 through 2-23)        TOTAL REVENUE   

-$                                        

-$                                        

Administrative

-$                                        

Charges for utility services

EXPENDITURES: All expenditures for all funds must be reflected in this section, including the purchase of capital assets and principal and 
interest payments on long-term debt. Financial information will not include fund equity information.

PART 3 - EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES

Fire and police pension

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        

Round to nearest Dollar

-$                                        

Donations

County Treasurer's Fees

-$                                        

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

  PART 2 - REVENUE

Description Round to nearest Dollar

REVENUE:  All revenues for all funds must be reflected in this section, including proceeds from the sale of the government's land, building, and 
equipment, and proceeds from debt or lease transactions.  Financial information will not include fund equity information.

Licenses and permits

-$                                        

Intergovernmental:

Fines and forfeits

Employee benefits

-$                                        

Please use this 
space to provide 
any necessary 
explanations

-$                                        

Description

(add lines 3-1 through 3-24)  TOTAL EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES                      

Debt service interest

Other (specify): 

Insurance
Accounting and legal fees

Repayment of Developer Advance Interest

If TOTAL REVENUE (Line 2-24) or TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Line 3-26) are GREATER than $100,000 - STOP.  You may not use this 
form. Please use the "Application for Exemption from Audit - LONG FORM".

Capital outlay  

Repair and maintenance
Supplies

Public health
Streets and highways -$                                        

-$                                        

Utilities and telephone
Fire/Police

-$                                        

-$                                        

Utility operations
Culture and recreation

-$                                        

Charges for services

Investment income
Special assessments

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Other (specify): 

-$                                        

-$                                        

Salaries
Payroll taxes
Contract services

-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        

-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        
-$                                        

4

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

150

Draft



Yes No
4-1

4-2

4-3

4-4

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

**Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements *Must agree to prior year-end balance
Yes No

4-5

4-6
If yes:

4-7
If yes:

4-8

Amount Total
5-1 -$                
5-2 -$                

-$               

-$                
-$                
-$                
-$                

-$               
-$               

Yes No N/A
5-4

5-5

Is the entity current in its debt service payments? If no, MUST explain below:

Please complete the following debt schedule, if applicable:
(please only include principal amounts)(enter all amount as positive 
numbers)

Is the debt repayment schedule attached? If no, MUST explain below: 

Does the entity have outstanding debt?

What are the annual lease payments?
Is the lease subject to annual appropriation?

What is the original date of the lease?

8/22/2005

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes

Part 4 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach separate documentation, if needed

Number of years of lease?

  PART 4 - DEBT OUTSTANDING, ISSUED, AND RETIRED

Retired during  
year

TOTAL

Are the entity's Investments legal in accordance with Section 24-75-601, et. 
seq., C.R.S.?

Does the entity have any lease agreements?                                                                                        

Does the entity have debt that has been refinanced that it is still responsible for?
How much? -$                                         

124,753,000.00$                     

General obligation bonds
Revenue bonds
Notes/Loans
Lease & SBITA** Liabilities [GASB 87 & 96]
Developer Advances

Date the debt was authorized:
Does the entity intend to issue debt within the next calendar year?

Issued during  
year

If yes:

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.
Does the entity have any authorized, but unissued, debt?
How much?

                If Yes, please attach a copy of the entity's Debt Repayment Schedule. 

Are the entity's deposits in an eligible (Public Deposit Protection Act) public 
depository (Section 11-10.5-101, et seq. C.R.S.)?

If no, MUST use this space to provide any explanations:

Investments (if investment is a mutual fund, please list underlying investments):

  PART 5 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

5-3

If yes:

Other (specify): 

Please provide the entity's cash deposit and investment balances.

-$                                         

What is the amount outstanding? -$                                         

Outstanding at  
year-end

Outstanding at 
end of prior year*

Please answer the following questions by marking the appropriate boxes.

What is being leased?

Certificates of deposit
Total Cash Deposits

YEAR-END Total of ALL Checking and Savings Accounts

Total Investments
Total Cash and Investments

5

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

151

Draft



Yes No

6-1

6-2

6-3 Balance - 
beginning of the 

year*

Additions (Must 
be included in 

Part 3)
Deletions  Year-End 

Balance 

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

-$                -$              -$                -$               
-$                -$              -$                -$               

*must tie to prior year ending balance

Yes No
7-1
7-2

-$              
-$              
-$              
-$              

-$              

Yes No N/A
8-1

8-2

If yes:
Fund Name

Governmental/Proprietary Fund Name

TOTAL

Has the entity performed an annual inventory of capital assets in accordance with Section 
29-1-506, C.R.S.,? If no, MUST explain:

Does the entity have a volunteer firefighters' pension plan?

General Fund

Budgeted Expenditures

Did the entity file a budget with the Department of Local Affairs for the current year 
in accordance with Section 29-1-113 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain: 

  PART 6 - CAPITAL AND RIGHT-TO-USE ASSETS

  PART 7 - PENSION INFORMATION

Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 
(Please enter a negative, or credit, balance)

Please indicate the amount budgeted for each fund for the year reported:

Did the entity pass an appropriations resolution, in accordance with Section 
29-1-108 C.R.S.? If no, MUST explain:

Tax (property, SO, sales, etc.):

Complete the following capital & right-to-use assets table:

Land

TOTAL

Does the entity have an "old hire" firefighters' pension plan?

Total Appropriations By Fund
-$                                                    

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Part 6 - Please use this space to provide any explanations/comments or attach documentation, if needed:

Part 7 - Please use this space to provide any explanations or comments:

  PART 8 - BUDGET INFORMATION

If yes:

Other (explain):

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Infrastructure
Construction In Progress (CIP)

Indicate the contributions from:

Leased & SBITA Right-to-Use Assets

State contribution amount:
Other (gifts, donations, etc.):

Buildings

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

What is the monthly benefit paid for 20 years of service per retiree as of Jan 
1?

Does the entity have capital assets?

Who administers the plan?

6

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

152

Draft



Yes No
9-1

Yes No

10-1
If yes: Date of formation:
10-2

10-3

10-4
If yes:

10-5
If yes:

10-6
If yes:

Yes No N/A

10-7
NEW 2023! If the entity is a Title 32 Special District formed on or after 7/1/2000, has 
the entity filed its preceding year annual report with the State Auditor as required 
under SB 21-262 [Section 32-1-207 C.R.S.]? If NO, please explain.

Please answer the following questions by marking in the appropriate boxes.

Is the entity in compliance with all the provisions of TABOR [State Constitution, Article X, Section 20(5)]? 
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

Note: An election to exempt the government from the spending limitations of TABOR does not exempt the government from the 3 percent 
emergency reserve requirement.  All governments should determine if they meet this requirement of TABOR. 

Does the entity have a certified Mill Levy?

-                                           

  PART 10 - GENERAL INFORMATION

List the name of the other governmental entity and the services provided: 

Is this application for a newly formed governmental entity?

Date Filed:

-                                           

Does the entity have an agreement with another government to provide services?

Is the entity a metropolitan district?

10-4: The District was organized in conjunction with other related districts.  Horizon Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2 ,3 ,4 ,5 ,6, 7, 8 and 9.  The 
Districts, collectively, will undertake the financing and construction of the public improvements.

-                                           

Bond Redemption mills
General/Other mills
Total mills

Please provide the following mills levied for the year reported (do not report $ amounts):

If yes:

See Below

Please list the NEW name & PRIOR name:

Streets, Safety Protection, Park and Recreation, Potable Water, Sanitary Sewer, Storm Drainage, Transportation, Mosquito Control, General 
Operations and Maintenance, Fire Protection, District Debt, Capital Projects

  PART 9 - TAXPAYER'S BILL OF RIGHTS (TABOR)

Please indicate what services the entity provides: 

Has the entity changed its name in the past or current year?

Has the district filed a Title 32, Article 1 Special District Notice of Inactive Status  during 

If no, MUST explain:

Please use this space to provide any additional explanations or comments not previously included:

7

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

153

Draft



YES NO

12-1

Office of the State Auditor — Local Government Division - Exemption 
Form Electronic Signatures Policy and Procedure

Policy - Requirements

The Office of the State Auditor Local Government Audit Division may accept an electronic submission of an application for 
exemption from audit that includes governing board signatures obtained through a program such as Docusign or Echosign. 
Required elements and safeguards are as follows:

• The preparer of the application is responsible for obtaining board signatures that comply with the requirement in Section 29-1-604 
(3), C.R.S., that states the application shall be personally reviewed, approved, and signed by a majority of the members of the 
governing body.
• The application must be accompanied by the signature history document created by the electronic signature software. The 
signature history document must show when the document was created and when the document was emailed to the various 
parties, and include the dates the individual board members signed the document. The signature history must also show the 
individuals' email addresses and IP address.
• Office of the State Auditor staff will not coordinate obtaining signatures.

The application for exemption from audit form created by our office includes a section for governing body approval.  
Local governing boards note their approval and submit the application through one of the following three methods:  
1) Submit the application in hard copy via the US Mail including original signatures.  
2) Submit the application electronically via email and either,
a. Include a copy of an adopted resolution that documents formal approval by the Board, or
b. Include electronic signatures obtained through a software program such as Docusign or Echosign in accordance with the 
requirements noted above.  

A MAJORITY of the members of the governing body must sign below. 

  PART 11 - GOVERNING BODY APPROVAL
Please answer the following question by marking in the appropriate box

If you plan to submit this form electronically, have you read the new Electronic Signature 
Policy?

Print the names of ALL members of current 
governing body below.

8

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

154

Draft



Print Board Member's Name

I ________David Crowder__________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2027_______________                        

David Crowder

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

7

Board 
Member           

5

Print Board Member's Name

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Board 
Member           

1

I ______________________________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______________________                        

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

2

I _________Karen Voit_________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:_______May 2025_______________                        

Board 
Member           

6

Print Board Member's Name

Print Board Member's Name I __________Jason Rutt________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Board 
Member           

4

Karen Voit

I __________Lisa Garcia________ ,  attest I am a duly elected or appointed board 
member, and that I have personally reviewed and approve this application for 
exemption from audit.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Signed__________________________________                 
Date:_____________________                                                                                    
My term Expires:______ May 2025________________                        

Lisa Garcia

Print Board Member's Name

Board 
Member           

3
Jason Rutt

9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

3/8/2024 | 15:13:58 PST

3/8/2024 | 17:25:10 EST

3/8/2024 | 15:05:29 PST

3/11/2024 | 09:29:55 MDT

155

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

This sample resolution/ordinance for exemption from audit is provided as an example of the documentation that is required. The wording 
may be used as a basis for your own local government document, if needed; however you MUST draft your own ordinance or resolution 

making any changes where applicable. Legal counsel should be consulted regarding any questions.

RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE FOR EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT 
(Pursuant to Section 29-1-604, C.R.S.) 

 
A RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE APPROVING AN EXEMPTION FROM AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 20XX 
FOR THE (name of government), STATE OF COLORADO. 
 
WHEREAS, the (governing body) of (name of government) wishes to claim exemption from the audit 
requirements of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 29-1-604, C.R.S., states that any local government where neither revenues nor expenditures 
exceed seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars may, with the approval of the State Auditor, be exempt from the 
provision of Section 29-1-603, C.R.S.; and 
 

[Choose 1 or 2 below, whichever is applicable] 
 
(1)WHEREAS, neither revenue nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $100,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and  
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual), a person skilled in governmental accounting; and 
 

OR 
 
(2)WHEREAS, neither revenues nor expenditures for (name of government) exceeded $750,000 for Fiscal Year 
20XX; and 
 
WHEREAS, an application for exemption from audit for (name of government) has been prepared by (name of 
individual or firm), an independent accountant with knowledge of governmental accounting; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, said application for exemption from audit has been completed in accordance with regulations, issued by 
the State Auditor. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved/ordained by the (governing body) of the (name of government) that the 
application for exemption from audit for (name of government) for the Fiscal Year ended ____________, 20XX, 
has been personally reviewed and is hereby approved by a majority of the (governing body) of the (name of 
government); that those members of the (governing body) have signified their approval by signing below; and that 
this resolution shall be attached to, and shall become a part of, the application for exemption from audit of the (name 
of government) for the fiscal year ended ____________, 20XX. 
 
ADOPTED THIS ___ day of _____________, A.D. 20XX. 

10

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

156

Draft



EXAMPLE - DO NOT FILL OUT THIS PAGE

 
________________________ 
Mayor/President/Chairman, etc. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________ 
Town Clerk, Secretary, etc. 
 
 
      Date 
Type or Print Names of   Term 
Members of Governing Body         Expires Signature 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 
___________________________  _______ ________________________ 
 

11

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3936CD9A-F04C-41A9-8630-C9801BF0FC50

157

Draft


	Agenda
	4/3/2024 Meeting Minutes
	Contract Modification Report
	Ratification of Payment of Claims
	District Managers Report
	BV Site Assessment Report
	Community Enforcement Activities Presentation
	2024 Fee Schedule Form
	D1 Financial Statement
	D3 Financial Statement
	D4 Audit Exemption
	D5 Audit Exemption
	D6 Audit Exemption
	D7 Audit Exemption
	D8 Audit Exemption
	D9 Audit Exemption
	D10 Audit Exemption



